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Group turnover
£1,801.3m

2014: £1,756.7m (restated)™™

Group underlying profit before tax*
£300.4m
2014; £276.1m (restated)™

Group profit before tax
£148.2m

2014: £318.9m (restated)™

Dividend per share
84.90p

2014: 80.40p

Earnings per share**
107.2p

2014 92 5p (restated)™™
*  Before tax, exceptional items and gainsflosses on financial instruments.
«  Before deferred tax, exceptiona! items and galnsfiosses on financial instruments.
*+ Restated to classify Water Purification as a discontinued operation.
+ Good financial performance:
— Adjusted EPS up 15.9% year on year
-~ Underlying group PBIT £540.3 million, up 3.2% year on year
—~ Reported group PBIT up 2.6% year on year
« Focus on operational improvement:

- Improved or stable performance on 12 out of 14 Ofwat KP!s year on year

— Achieved target of 10% reduction in leakage over AMP5

s [nvested a further £547.4 million to complete AMP5 programme of £2.6 billion: RCV1 £7.7 billion at April 2015

e Customer bills remain the lowest in Britain at £329 for 2015/16

« Severn Trent Services re-focused — disposal of Water Purification business (US$81.2 million)
» Industry leader in renewable energy — self generation equivalent to 28% of Severn Trent Water's energy

needs

» Reported group PBT £148.2 million, reflecting fair value losses on financial instruments

*  Well positioned for AMPS:

Largest investment programme ever — £3.32 billion capital investment
New organisational structure and management team

£300 million of £372 million target efficiencies already locked in
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-~ Focused on outperformance

— 2015/16 dividend 80.66 pence, followed by annual growth of no less than RPI until 2020
1  Regulstory Capital Value
2 At2012/2013 prices

Cautionary statement

This document contains statements that are, or may be deemed to be, ‘forward-looking statements' with respect
to Severn Trent’s financial condition, results of operations and business and certain of Severn Trent's plans and
oblectives with regpect to thege items,

i i

Forward-looking statements are sometimes, but not always, identified by their use of a date in the future or such
words as ‘anticipates’, ‘aimg’, ‘due’, ‘'could’, ‘may’, ‘will’, 'would’, ‘'should’, ‘expects’, ‘believes’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’,
‘projects’, ‘potential’, ‘reasonably possible’, ‘targets’, ‘goal’ or 'estimates’ and, in each case, their negative or other
variations or comparable terminology. Any forward-locking statements in this document are based on Severn
Trent's current expectations and, by their very nature, forward-ooking statements are inherently unpredictable,
speculative and involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may
or may not eccur in the future.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and no assurances can be given that the
forward-looking statements in this document will be realised. There are a number of factors, many of which are
beyond Severn Trent's control, that could cause actual resuits, performance and developments to differ materially
from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.

These factors include, but are not limited to, changes in the economies and markets in which the group operates;
changes in the regulatory and competition frameworks in which the group operates; the impact of legal or other
proceedings against or which affect the group; and changes in interest and exchange rates.

All written or verbal forward-icoking statements, made in this document or made subsequently, which are
attributable to Severn Trent or any other member of the group or persons acting on their behalf are expressly
qualified in their entirety by the factors referred to above. Subject to compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, Severn Trent does not intend to update these forward-looking statements and does not undertake
any obligation to do so.

Nothing in this document should be regarded as a profits forecast.

This document is not an offer to sell, exchange or transfer any securities of Severn Trent Pic or any of its
subsidiaries and is not scliciting an offer to purchase, exchange or fransfer such securities in any jurisdiction.
Securities may not be offered, sold or transferred in the US absent registration or an applicable exemption from
the registration requirements of the US Securities Act of 1933 (as amended).
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What we do

Severn Trent provides clean water and waste wafer services in the UK and internationally through our
regulated and non-regulated businesses - Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services.

Regulated — Severn Trent Water
Wholesale water and waste operations

Retail services
Further detalls are provided on page 18

About us
One of the largest of the 10 regulated water and sewerage companies in England and Wales. We provide high
quality services to more than 3.3 million households and businesses in the Midlands and mid-Wales.

Where we operate
Our region stretches across the heart of the UK, from the Bristol Channe! to the Humber, and from mid-Wales to
- the East Midlands.

Key facts
Turnover

£1,581.2m

(2014: £1,544.8m)

Profit*

£539.0m

{2014: £518.6m)

*  Before interest, tax and exceptional items.
Households and businesses serviced
3.3m

Litres of drinking water supplied each day
1.8bn

Litres of waste water collected per day
1.4bn

Employees

5,181

(as at 31 March 2015)
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Non-regulated — Severn Trent Services
UK Operating Services
US Operating Services

Renewable Energy
Further details are provided on page 32

About us
UK Operating Services (incl. Italy and Ireland)

UK Operating Services provides contract services to municipal and industrial clients and the UK Ministry of
Defence (MOD) for design, build and operation of water and waste water treatment facilities and networks. Retail
services are also provided to UK businesses.

US Operating Services

US Operating Services provides coniract services to community, hunicipal and industriai clients for the operation
and maintenance of water and waste water treatment facilities and networks.

Where we operata )
Severn Trent Services includes our core non-regulated businesses operating in the UK, Americas and Europe.

Key facts

Turnover
£216.3m

(2014: £210.2m**)

Profit*

£9.7m

{2014: £13.3m (restated))™

* Before interest, tax and exceptional items.
**  Restatad to dassify Water Purification as a discontinued operation.

Employees

1,853

(as al 31 March 2015)

Renewable Energy )

Severn Trent's non-regulated business aiready generates renewable energy from wind turbines, hydro power and

anaerobic digestion (AD) of crops. We have now expanded into the food waste AD market, and have plans to add
solar technology as our fifth source of energy generation.
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At Severn Trent our role is to serve our communities and build a lasting water legacy.

Our challenge is to not only care for our water system, but to build upon it, to meet the changing needs of our
community and environment.

To do this, we continually invest in renewing and improving upon the legacy that we have, by creating new ways
to deliver fresh, clean water to our customers' taps, before retumning it safely to the environment.

We innovate so that we create a greener, cleaner water future for us all. We are investing in new technology to
create energy from waste and flexible water and waste water systems for communities and businesses around the
world.

We care for your water, so that you ¢can have peace of mind that it will always be there.
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Chairman’s statement

Andrew Duff, Chairman

This has been an Important year for Severn Trent. We have completed the final year of our AMPS
investment period in our regufated business and agreed a businass plan with our customers and
regulators for the next five years. At the same time, under the leadership of our new Chlef Executive,
Liv Garfield, and her team we have taken great strides in transforming our business to meet the
chailenges and opportunities of our evolving water sector.

Continued delivery
Looking back, the final year of AMP5 has again delivered significant value for our customers and our

shareholders.

Total group revenue rose by 2.5% to £1,801.3 million, while underlying group profit before tax was 3.2% higher at
£540.3 million. This resulted in adjusted sarnings per share of 107.2 pence, up 15.9% from 82.5 pence.

For 2014/15, your board is proposing a final dividend of 50.94 pence to be paid on 24 July 2015. This will result in
a total dividend for the financial year of 84.90 pence, representing growth of 5.6%. Since the start of AMP5, we've
delivered a total shareholder return of 125.4%, well ahead of the 42.4% return from the FTSE 100.

For many people, being abie to afford our services is key and so we're pleased to have had the lowest average
combined water and sewerage bilis in Britain for the last six years, a position which is sel to continue at least to
2020. Our average bill in 2014/15 was £333, which is lower in real terms than at the start of AMP5.

As well as good value, our customers have also benefited from an improved level of operational performance.
Over the Tast 12 months, we have further improved our ranking and performance in Ofwat's measure of customer
service performance, the Service incentive Mechanism (SIM), and | am confident that our rate of improvement will
see us climb further over the coming years. We have also produced very good environmental performance with
continuing strong results in leakage and significant reductions in the number of poliution incidents.

These efforts are refiected in rising customer satisfaction scores. This is an important indicator for us as we
continue our journey to put customers at the heart of everything we do.

Performance has improved over the last five years and | am confident we will continue to deliver furthet
improvements in our operational and customer service performance into AMP6.

Underlying group PBIT* Dividend Dividend
£540.3m +5.6% 84.90p
*  Before exceptional items

The next five years

The last year has been necessarily dominated by our PR14 process, as we prepared and submitted our business
plan for the next five years, and accepted Ofwat's Final Determination. It has been the cuimination of over

18 months of work, which has benefited significantly from input from our customers and a wide range of other
important stakeholders. This engagement has been an innovation in this price review and has helped us to better

evaluate risk, quality and cost through the eyes of our customers.

Throughout, we have had a constructive dialogue with Ofwat and the outcome is a challenging settlement, but
nonetheiess a fair deal for our customers. We are undertaking one of our largest ever investment programmes
with a total AMP8 expenditure of £6.6 biflion, most of which will directly benefit our customers and the Midlands’
economy. By 2020 the average annual Severn Trent Water bill will be £60 below the industry average.

Strategic report
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Severn Trent Water has always had a good record an social tariffs for thase customers who are struggling 1o pay.
We plan to do even more in AMP8, with up to four times more people benefiting from our new special tariff
scheme.

In accepting Ofwat's Final Determination, we have also committed to some stretching operational targets, through
our Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODls), and achieving operational efficiencies over the next five years. We also
took the opportunity to assess the implications for our capital structure and dividend policy. After careful
consideration, we decided to reduce the dividend by 5% in the coming financial year, with a policy of growth in
subsequent years by no less than the Retal! Prices Index (RP1) each year to 2020. We aiso announced that we
would commence a share repurchase programme of up to £110 million of ordinary shares. This programme was
considered a low risk method of returning capital to shareholders, satisfying future share awards and moving
gearing in Severa Trent Water towards the 62.56% net debt/Regulated Capital Value (RCV) notional level usad by
Ofwat in the price review.

Severn Trent has one of the fastest growing RCVs in our sector and we are confident that we can continue our
track record of delivering sustainable growth for our shareholders into the longer term. Our focus on operatichal
excellence, and continuous innovation in the delivery of excellent customer service, gives us confidence that we
can earn additional rewards through our new ODls,

Board changes
Delivering for the future depends on many things, bui the most important success faclor is our people.

Leadership starts at the very top and at the beginning of the year we appointed Liv Garfield to be our Chief
Executive 10 lead the next stage of your company's journey. Liv has identified that the commitment and skills of

our people will be critical.

With this in mind she has created space for our managers to lead and empowered them to take accountability and
to innovate. Dellvering operational improvement, steering the price review process and at the same time building
the organisational structure and culture necessary for success over the next five years has been quite an
achievement in her first year.

During the year we also bade farawell {o two board members who have made an enormous contribution to the
success of Severn Trent in recent years, our Chief Financial Officer, Michael MciKeon, and Richard Davey, who
has served as Senior Independent Director and Chairman of our Remuneration Committee. | would like to place
on record my personal thanks and that of your board for their distinguished contribution and service. At the same
time, I'm delighted to welcome our new Chief Financial Officer, James Bowling.

Our changing sector
In transforming our business and preparing for a future in a changing sector, we are indebted 1o our people.

It is they who identified the need for change and throughout the changes we have made over the last year, they
have unfailingly accepted the need to transform our business. The board and | are grateful to each and every one
of them for all that they do and for the commitment they have shown.

Our sector is quietly evolving and the future is a worid of increased competition and further opportunities in non-
regutated water markets. We believe that the renewable energy market has growth potential for us and have
made a significant financial commitment to increase our own energy generation. With our focus on operational
excellence and our established track record of environmental guardianship and technical innovation, you can be
confident that Severn Trent is well positioned to benefit from growth in these future markets.

As we conclude the final year of AMP5, we can look back on five years of continucus impravement. Looking
forward to AMP6, we believe we've put the foundations in place to deliver continued long term sustainable growth
for our shareholders and real benefits for our customers and the communities in which they live and work.

Andrew Duff, Chairman
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Chief Executive’s review
Liv Garfield, Chief Executive

It's the end of my first year as Chief Executive of Severn Trent and ! have enjoyed every minute of the
challenge of getting our business in the best possible shape for the next five years.

We are now facing the future with confidence, despite one of the toughest price setttements in our history.

When | took up my role in 2014, | was clear that in order to create the most trusted company in our sector we
needed to focus on transforming our culture, driving operational excellence and putting customers at the heart of
what we do. It's what successful businesses do, it's what we all want and it creates value for our customers and

our shareholders.

The changes we have made over the last year have built those foundations, and | have been out to meet
everyone in our business personally, to listen to their views and share our vision of the kind of awesome company
we want to create. !t's been a huge journey condensed down into a single year, but | genuinely believe that
creating the right culture is how we'll get the whole organisation aligned as one and ready to deliver for the future.

Performance in 201415
Our performance over the last year has demonstirated where we are strong and the areas where we need to drive
improvement,

Looking at our iImprovement areas first, no one in our business is in any doubt that water quality is a key focus
area for us. We've made progress in the year, but our performance hasn't been as good as we would like it to be.
So we have put together a seven point improvement plan and reprioritised £35 million of investment to replace
and refurbish water quality assets nearing the end of their life, which will also provide a greater degree of
resilience in both our networks and to our water treatment works. We will also put significant focus on investing in
the professional expertise of our people and developing our process analytics to improve the reliability and
availability of our assets.

Lowest average combined bill Leakage over AMPS Efficiencies identifled
201415 -10% £300m
£333

The other area where we think we can do better is around 12 hour interruptions to water supply to our customers.
We are good at managing three hour interruptions, but we are not as sharp as we could be on the bigger, more
complex events. We've done a lot of work over the iast year to improve on that and we will continue to invest and
use better technology to help our teams to improve our service for customers.

On waste water services, we are very good at the majority of measures, but if there's one area where we can do a
befter job, it's around sewer blockages and we have set the bar very high for the next few years.

Aside from these matters, there are also many highlights from the last year, where we are pleased with our
performance,

Leakage performance has been very good over recent years and we have hit our target of a 10% reduction over

AMPS. We've set ourselves tough targets and we're challenging ourselves to improve further. We remain
confident about our continuing performance where we are strong and on many of our waste water measures we

are already upper quartile in the industry.

We've been recognised by the Environment Agency as the only 4* rated company in 2014 across the entire sector
for environmental performance, We're also proud of our focus on and commitment to catchment management and
we are one of the few companies to have put in serious investment in the coming five year period.

“Together with the lowest average bills in Britain, our customers increasingly feei that they are receiving
good value for money, which is an encouraging sign that we are getting the balance right.”

Stratagic report
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We have alse improved our customer service performance. During the year we created approximately 100 new
fronttine roles and have focused on resolving customer issues faster. Together with the lowest average bilis in
Britain, our customers increasingly feel that they are receiving good value for money, which is an encouraging
sign that we are getting the batanca right; although, of course, there is much more for us to do.

All of this makes us confident that Severn Trent will be one of the winners in the new world of ODIs from 1 April
2015, and in areas where we aren't currently doing as well as we would like, we have an opportunity to improve
and then earn rewards. ‘

A year of transformation
My fundamental belief is thal successful organisations are customer focused ones, so we are focusing on
operational excellence and embedding the customer in all that we do.

The strategy we have put in place over the last year is designed to deliver an outstanding customer experience,
the best value service and environmental leadership. In doing so we will create long term value for afl our
stakeholders, our customers, our communities, cur employees and our investors,

This is the bigger vision and the bigger contéxt which is driving our thinking as we look forward to the future.

We want to be in the best possible shape to deliver our strategy so we made the decision over the year to create
a different organisational structure and put in place a new management team. No one else in our sector has a
structure like this and we believe it will give us an edge in an increasingly competitive world.

We've chosen to bring together our water and waste water businesses intc one Wholesale Operations business.
This change will simplify our structure, speed up decision making and make us mare efficient and agile as a
business, enabling us to drive the operational excellence and innovation we're looking for. Our new Managing
Director for our Wholesale Operations business is Emma FitzGerald who will, } am sure, bring her experience,
passion and drive to deliver a great customer service through operational excellence.

The second structural change we've made is to create a Chief Customer Officer role, bringing together our IS
function, our contact centres and transformation teams. Our industry needs to fully embrace digital technology to
become more efficient and to deliver what our customers expect. Bringing everything together in one place
creates a sense of a joined up business for our customers and aliows us to fulfil our digital ambition. Sarah
Bentley, who has previously looked after digital for Accenture, has joined as our new Chief Customer Officer.

In Severn Trent Business Services we have reorganised and brought together our non-regulated businesses,
Operating Services US, Operating Services UK, including non-household retail and renewable energy, each with
a very good management team in place and a clear future. With the sale of the Water Purification business the
management team will be able to focus on creating value from these core businesses in water and waste services
and renewable energy. Our new non-regulated businesses are led by Andy Smith who has extensive experience
in the water sector having been the Severn Trent Water, Water Services Director for seven years.

“The changes we've made will create a more dynamic, empowered culture, where the customer is very
much at the heart of our business.”

To ensure we have the very best enginsering expertise, we have created a Chief Engineering Officer function, led
by Martin Kane. Martin’s team will give us assurance that we are challenging ourselves to create the very best
engineering soiutions. We've got one of the biggest investment programmes we've ever had over the next five
years and we need to ensure we have the right assurance that we are choosing the most cost-effective solutions.
The Chief Engineering Officer function will also assist in bringing innovation to life within our business.

The final structural change we made during the year was the creation of a Chief Commercial Officer function, led
by Helen Miles. We have a big agenda over the next five years and we want to drive significant efficiencies. We
know what the drivers are and we now have a plan in place to deliver them, which has already identified over
£200 million of AMP6 savings from the supply chain.

Strategic report
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In addition to these structural changes, our Chief Financial Officer, Michae! McKeon, has decided after nine years
with Severn Trent to retire. | would like to sincerely thank Michael for his heip in my first year in the role. He's been
a superstar. I'm also delighted to have been joined by James Bowling as our new Chief Financial Officer, who

i know will be excellent.

In transforming our business, we've also made difficult but important organisational changes, including significant
reductions in our cost base and de-layering of management levels. These changes were tough, but will deliver
over £100 miliion of savings for AMPB whilst allowing more space for our managers to lead.

So together with £200 million of supply chain and other efficiencies that we have already identified, this now

equates to £300 million already locked in, as at the date of this report, for the coming five year period, which is a

significant way towards the £372 million target agreed in our Final Determination.

The changes we've made will aiso create a more dynamic, empowered culture, where the customer i very much

at the heart of our business.

Our business plan for AMP6 promises better value, better services and a cleaner environment, | believe that with

the changes that we have put in place we are well placed to deliver our commitments.

1. Water quality is a key focus area for Sevem Trent, £35 million of investment has been reprioritised to reptace and refurbish water quallty
assets.

2. Severn Trent has been recognised by the Environment Agency as the only 4° rated company in 2014 across the entire sector for
environmental parformance.

How we create sustainable growth

s Embed customers at the heart of all we do

= Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation
s Invest responsibly

« Change the market for the better

« Create an awesome place to work

Sustainable growth

Our strategy is to invest responsibly in sustainable growth. in our UK regulated business, our £6.6 billion AMP6
expenditure includes one of our biggest investment programmes and gives us a fantastic opportunity to
outperform and grow our regulated asset base.

We also have an opportunity to earn additional rewards over the five years by performing well on our ODls. There
are bound to be good and bad years on various measures, but in aggregate we are confident that we're
positioned to do well. As an industry and as a company we have lobbied hard for incentives and we're looking
forward to the challenge.

Severn Trent has always been known for environmental leadesship and we also see a positive future in green
energy. We have announced over £190 million of new investment in renewable energy over the next five year
period and in particular in anaerobic digestion and solar technologies.

This will take our seli-generation of renewable energy from the equivalent of 28% of Severn Trent Water's gross
energy consumption over 2014/15 to around 50% by 2020, providing efficient green energy and a long term
hedge against volatile energy prices. Sevemn Trent remains the sector leader in this area.

Looking forward
I'm delighted to be part of Severn Trent and very excited about how Severn Trent and our people can play a part

in changing our market for the better.
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The future is a world where there will be more competition in the water sector and we are already seeing the start
of a gentle disaggregation of the value chain. New markets are opening, including the retail non-household market
in 2017. We want to be an active part of that, and we would also love to see a competitive market for sludge
trading and water trading, as we believe they present opportunities for competition in the sector and value for our
customers.

We've put in place the building blocks o ensure that Severn Trent is a leader in our sector: the lowest bilis for
custorners; strategically well positionad in sludge, retall competition and water resources; a standard setter in
renewables; and the right people, leadership and organisational structure to deliver.

So this has been a year of transformation, but for us there is atways more to do, more efficiency 1o be found, more
success to be had. it's the aggregation of small, marginal gains every year that you should expect from us and
that will transiate into long term shareholder value,

We've done some good work over the last 12 months and we know where we need to improve. It's the start of a
brand new regulatory period and we feel we're building from a good place.

Liv Garfield, Chief Executive

WATCH NOW
Watch a video of Liv on our new online Annual Report and Accounts.

www.severntrent.com/AR2015
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Our strategic framework

Qur purpose To serve our communities and build a lasting water legacy.

Our vision By 2020 to be the most trusted water company:

Our strategy Savern Trent are transforming service today, driving growth, and shaping our industry for
tomorrow — for the mutual benefit of our customers, communities and investors.

How we do it Embed customers at the heart of all we Drive operational excellence
do and continuous innovation
What we mean by this What we mean by this
We'll improve the way in which customers We'll build a smart water and waste water
engage with us through improved insight network, develop our business intelligence
and understanding of what's important to and simplify our cross business processes.
them.

Our market Wholesale operations and enginearing Household customar services

segments What we mean by this What we mean by this
Regulated water and waste water Customer services for household customers
infrastructure and non infrastructure assets. | in the UK.

Qur values We put our customers first We are passionate about what we do
What wa mean by this What we mean by this
We're here for our customers 24/7. We want | We're passionate about the work we do and
to create a relationship based on empathy our expertise. We go the extra mile for
and respect. customers and team mates.

delivering an outstanding customer experience, the best value service and environmental leadership.

Invest responsibly

for sustainable growth

What we mean by this

We'll develop an effective strategy
which optimises our regulated asset
base, whilst creating new growth
opportunities for the future,

Change the market
for the better

What we mean by this

growth in new water markets
worldwide.

We'll embrace market opening in
the UK and explore opportunities for

Create an awesome place to work

What we mean by this

We'll create a culture of
empowerment and accountability
with a focus on skills, talent and
career development.

Business retail and
operating services

What we mean by this
Customer and operating services
for our business customers in the

UK and overseas,

Green energy

What we mean by this
Renewable energy generation

including gas to grid, food waste
biodigestion, wind and solar power.

New water markets

What we mean by this
Opportunities in sludge trading,
water trading and upstream
competition.

We act with integrity

What we mean by this
We strive to do the right thing by

being transparent and

that we do. We want to create a

better future for all.

We protect our environment
What we mean by this
We're committed to a cleaner,
greaner future, protecting and
improving our environment for
generations to come.

honest in all

Woe are inspired to create an
awesome company

What we mean by this

We'll all work together to be creative
and to make special things happen.

Further details are provided

Strategic report
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Our performance
2014/15 performance measurement — 2014/15 Key performance indicators

1. Embed customers at the heart of all we do

Basis Key performance indicators 201415 201314 2012113
MAT DWiI reportable events (category 3. 4, 5) KPI: 3 A 24 23
MAT Service Incentive Mechanism Qualitative (SIM) score ! KPI: 4 4.38 4.48 4.36
ACT Service incentive Mechanism Quantitative (SIM) score” KPI: 5 105 143 187
MAT Water supply Interruptions index per property mins* KPI: 6 10 16 29

Sewerage serviceability (intemal)* KPLi: 7 54 57 78

Water serviceability (internat) ! KPI; 8 270 202 80
ACT Security of Supply Index {SOSI}® KPI: 14 100 99 99

2. Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation

Basis Kaey performance indicators 201415 2013/14 2012113
MAT Poflution incidents (sewerage cat 1, 2,3)%7 KPI: 12 368 449 376
ACT Sewerage treatment works — falfing consent, timits % ° KPI: 13 0.14 0.71 0.85
MAT Net energy use Gwh % KPL: 15 634 691 650
MLE Leakage levels ML/d KPI: 16 41 a4 441
MAT Wasts water treatment performance Severn Trent Services %" STSKPI: 1 74 5.6 10.8

3. Invest responsibly for sustalnable growth

Basis Kay performance indicators 2014115 2013/14 201213
ACT Capex £m (UK GAAP, net of grants and contributions) *° KPL: @ 542.7 583.2 541.8
ACT Debtor days ** KPI: 10 347 345 36.7
ACT Opex £m KPt: 11 588.9 585.3 566.5

4. Create an awesome place to work

Basis Key performance indicators 201415 2013114 201213

MAT Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked * KPI: 1 0.2 p.21 0.21
Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked 2

MAT Sevem Trent Business Sarvices STSKPI: 2 0.30 0.27 0.30

QR Employes engagement % KP: 2 79 L] 79

QR Employee engagement % ** STSKPI: 3 75 79 77

Key

Executive director balanced scorecard performance measure seg Remunaration Committee report on pages 69 to 85
Black:  Regulated business KPi
Purple: Non-regulated business KPI

Deslred direction of KPI

Strategic report 10
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MAT  Moving Annual Total

GR  Quarterly Review

MLE Maximum Likelihood Estimate

ACT  Year End Actual

Notes )
1. In 2014/15 Ofwat changed the methodology for this measure. It Is not comparabla with 2013/14 and 2012/13,On a compar‘ative basis we

8.

9.

10.
1.
12.
13,
14.

moved from 13th In 2613/14 to 6ith in 2014/15 out of 18 water companles.
Actual performance based wholly or partially on internaj data.
Number of minutes lost due to supply interrugtions for three hours or longer per property served.

Ofwat servicaabiiity score assesses how effectively we are maintaining our network and assets against a range of measures. Assessed
as elther improving, stable, marginal or deteriorating.

Score represents Internal KPI. The measure Is out of 100.
Total number of pollution incidents {category 1, 2, 3).

2012113 figures are not comparable. in 2013 the Enviranment Agency changed its reporting methodology for small incidents. As a result
of this reclassification we now report more smaller incidents.

Measured on a calendar year basis.

Nen-compliance with consent pemmits or formal client requiremants during the previous 12 months.
Investment excluding PDaS and IFRS adjustments.

Actual performance based on sudited financial statements for the ysar ended 31 March 2015.
Actual performance across all employees and agency staff.

Performance based on annual survey of all employees.

Performance based on annual survey of all employees, including the Water Purification Business.

KPI3  Drinking Water Inspectorate — Reportable Events. This KP| measures the number of significant events reportad to the DWI.
KPI7  Senviceabillty waste water, This KPI Is an Index based on pellutions and blockages {both measures of how our below ground assets

are performing) and sewage treatment works non-complience {(above ground). The index reflects a 50:50 weighting for abova and
below ground assets.

KPi8  Serviceability water. This index Is based on mains bursts and supply interruptions greater than 12 hours (both are measures of how

our befow ground assets are performing) and Water Treatment Works (WTW) non-compliance {above ground). The index reflects.a
50:50 weighting for above and below ground assets.

KPPl 14 Security of Supply Index (SOSI) is a measure of how resilient we are against periods of drought. The index calculation is based

Strateglc report
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Future performance measurement — Our Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODls)

1. Embed customers at the heart of all we do*

Internal sewer flooding
Penalty/Reward

1,014

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per incident}
£42,000

Minutes without supply

Penalty

14.5

Reward

12

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per minute)
£1.1 million

SIM - Customer experience
Reward and penalty mechanism to be decided by OFWAT July 2015

External sewer flooding
Penalty

7.639

Reward

7.452

Rate of Penalty/Reward {per incident)
£19,800 .

Complaints about water quality
Penalty

41,900

Reward

9,992

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per complaint)
£960

2. Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation®

Improvements to river water quality’
Penalty/Reward

233

Strategic report
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Rate of Penalty/Reward {per point)
£150,000

Successful catchment management schemes
Penaity/Reward

12

Cap

21

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per scheme)
£1.03 million

Asset Stewardship — Coliform failures
Penalty/Reward

7

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per failure)
£463,000

Number of poliution incidents
Penalty

457

Reward

374

Rate of Penalty/Reward {per incident)

- £53,900

Leakage
Penalty/Reward

444
Rate of Penalty/Reward (per megalitres per day)
£123,314

3. Invest responsibly for sustainable growth
Severn Trent Water Severn Trent Business Services

See note 1 See note 1

Strategic report
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4. Create an awesome place to work

Lost time incidents per 100,008 hrs worked
Severn Trent Water

0.21 Seenote2

2013/14 0.21

Severn Trent Business Services
0.30 Seenote2

2013/14 0.30

Employee engagement
Severn Trent Water

79 See note 2

2013114 79

Severn Trent Business Services
75 " See note 2

2013/14 75

Notes

1. [llustrative positioning onty. Intemal KPls for 2015/16 to be reported.
2. 2014/15 figures for lllustrative purposes.

3. Consolidation of two ODIs relating to river water quality.

4. The thresholds stated refer ta the application of rewards and/or penalties.
For full list of all ODls and the details of each see www.severntrent.com

Strategic report
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CASE STUDY

Producing local gas from local waste!

By investing in an innovative process at our Minworth sewage treatment works, we're unlocking even more of the
hidden power in sewage.

Minworth treats sewage from 2.5 million people around Birmingham ~ that's nearly 350,000 litres every hour.
Valuable energy is locked away in this sewage. We release it by feeding the sludge from our treatment process
into our anaerobic digesters. These work like giant cow's intestines, generating gas as they break the siudge
down.

So far, we've used around 40% of this gas to produce electricity. Now we can also clean, pressurise and odorise

the gas, before we ‘inject’ it into the network that supplies local homes. We're the first UK water company to do
this on such a large scale, saving us £1.7 million every year while benefiting both customers and the environment.

Strategic report 15
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Market and industry overview

The water and sewerage industry
The industry in England and Wales delivers services to homes and businesses of over 50 million people.

There are 19 regional suppliers, who serve the majority of these customers. 10 of the regional companies —
including Severn Trent Water ~ provide water and sewerage services. The other nine provide water services only.

The UK water industry was privatised in 1989 and has made significant progress since, aftracting more than
£4 billion of private investment every year to improve operational performance and make customer service
improvements. As a result, drinking water quality in the UK is among the highest in the world. The industry also
makes a substantial contribution to the economy, estimated at £15 billion a year for the UK as a whole, and
directly or indirectly supports the equivalent of 127,000 full-time jobs.

“We expect the industry landscape to continue to evalve in the coming years.”

Despite the sector’s progress since privatisation, it still faces substantial challenges that must be tackled in the
coming years. These must be met whilst still keeping bills affordable for customers, both now and in the future.
In particular:

e Much of the sector's infrastructure is ageing. For example, approximately 20% of Severn Trent's sewers and
10% of our water mains are more than 100 years old, which means we need to continue to reinvest in the
renewal of our networks.

e We can expect to see more extreme weather. This means we need to build resilience, so we can cope with
increased flooding and periods of droughts.

e The UK's population is growing, which is adding to the pressure on water resources and our networks. Severn
Trent serves 3.1 million households, a total that's increasing by about 12,500 households each year. That's
the equivalent of adding a city the size of Wolverhampton every seven years, in our region alone. We need to
make sure we have the infrastructure in place to serve these people.

» Customers quite rightly expect better levels of service, making it ever more challenging for alt organisations to
meet their customers' expectations. Water companies know they've got to work harder at improving customer
service. ‘

e Ourindustry has to compete for global capital to invest for the future. The sector must remain an attractive
investmant opportunity. Otherwise the only way we’ll be able to attract investment is by having to pay more for
it, which will push up customers' bills.

Sevemn Trent has always contributed to the debate about our industry's future, including through our series of

Changing Course publications. We'll continue to be an active participant in these conversations, so we can help

shape thinking about how to best serve our customers in the future.

1. Much of the sector's infrastructure is ageing. We need to continue to reinvest in the renewa! of our infrastructure and networks for future
generations.

2. The AMP6 pusiness plans are designed to deliver what customers say they valus the most. We conducted our biggest ever customer
consultation for PR14.

How the industry is regulated

Severn Trent Water is a regulated business. We work within five year regulatory planning cycles, known as Asset
Management Plan (AMP) periods. This financial year was the last in AMP5, with AMPE starting on 1 April 2015.
The industry operates within the following policy and regulatory framework:

e The European Union (EU) sets water, wasle water and environmental standards across member countrias.
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» Government sets the overall water and sewerage policy framework. This is done by the Department for b

Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) in England, and by the Welsh Government in Wales.

¢ Ofwat is our economic regulator, which means that it sets the prices we can charge our customers in each
AMP period, and ensures that we carry out our functions properly and are appropriately financed.

e The Drinking Water Inspectorate (DW|) is the drinking water quality regulator and makes sure we comply with
the water quality regulations.

= The Environment Agency (EA) is the environmental regulator in England. It controls water abstraction, river
poftution and flooding.

» Natural Resources Wales is the environmental regulator in Wales. it ensures that the country’s natural
resources are sustainably maintained, enhanced and used.

We also work with other agencies, including:
= The Consumer Council for Water (CCW), which represents the industry's customers; and
» Natural England, which protects and improves England's natural environment.

The reguiatory regime for AMP6

During the year, Ofwat concluded its price review for AMP8, which runs from 2015 to 2020. Most of the

companies have agreed business plans with Ofwat, setting out what they commit to deliver during the period and

the bills that customers will pay.

The AMP6 business plans are designed to deliver what customers say they value most, in termis of the service

they receive and the benefits to the environment and society. Across the industry, water companies engaged with

more than 250,000 customers — the largest ever consultation in the utifities sector — to get a clear understanding
of what they were willing to pay for.

Key features of the regulatory regime for AMPS include:

» Greater flexibility to spend money where it's most needed. In previous AMPs, spending was regulated
between capital expenditure {Capex) to meet long term investment needs, and operating expenditure (Opex)
to meet day-to-day running costs. The ability to earn a return on Capex arguably incentivised companies to

. seek Capex type solutions to issues, even if Opex might be more efficient. In AMP& Ofwat has considered
expenditure on a total expenditure (Totex) basis, so we can choose the most cost-effective and innovative
solutions to meet our commitments,

s  Aligning the Interests of customers and investors. In AMPS, company performance is measured against
metrics called Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODis). While failure to achieve targets can lead to penalties, as
in previous AMPs, many of these ODIs alsc include incentives for companies to outperform. As the ODIs are
based an what is important to customers, outperformance means that both customers and companies benefit.
Companies can also do better if they deliver their investment programme for less than their plan, sharing the
savings with customers.

¢ A better environment. Several ODls are designed to deliver important environmental improvements, such as
better river quality, which focuses companies on achieving their environmental commitments over the next
five years.

* Reduced bills for customers. Customers must be willing and able to pay for the costs of the programmes
we'll deliver during AMP6. They'll benefit from rising standards and an average reduction in bills of 5% across
the industry, over the five years. Companies will also be doing more to help people who struggle to pay their
bills, for example by enhancing the social tariffs they offer.

To ensure we meet our commitments during AMPG, we've set out our strategy which is detailed on pages 810 9.

Our ODls, against which our performance will be measured, are explained on page 11. The regulated

performance review on pages 20 to 29 talks about some of the specific initiatives we'll be undertaking as part of

our plan.
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“This will give business customers increased cholce and encourage companies to provide a better
service to them.”

An evolving industry
We expect the industry landscape to continue to evolve in the coming years. in addition to the opening up of non-
household retail competition, as discussed under 'The non-regulated market', there's scope for more competition
in the wholesale business. For example, we believe customers would benefit from a greater role for water trading,
which would allow companies with surplus water to sell it to those with resource constraints, saving the significant
capital investment required for capital solutions such as desalination plants.

The regulatory regime also makes consalidation less difficult than before. This could encourage companies to
take innovative approaches to consolidation, for example by merging their wholesale operations to deliver
efficlencies, while demerging their retail businesses.

The non-regulated market

Our non-regulated markets provide additional opportunities for growth in the next few years. We are already active
in the UK operating services market providing waste water and water treatment for clients, We also have a small
presence in the Scottish water retail market. Competition for non-household retail in England will open up in April
2017 and we are preparing for this. This will give business customers increased choice and encourage companies
to provide a better service to them. We are positioning our business 1o succeed in this market and working with
the rest of the industry to support OpenWater. OpenWater is the body charged by the government with developing
the market rules, framework and systems that will be needed for effective non-household retail competition.

In the US operating services market, the large majority of customers are municipalities which are looking to
outsource the management of their treatment facilities to companies such as Severn Trent. There are signs that
the market could create new opportunities, as municipalities turn to the private sector for expertise and funding in
response to increasing demands from customers and regulators. We are looking at how we can take part in this

market, as it develops.

The renewable energy market also has growth potential for us. We see scope to increase our electricity
generation from sources such as food waste digestion and solar, allowing us to sell any electricity not used by our
regulated business to National Grid. Similarly, we can sell surplus gas generated by our waste treatment works to

the grid.
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Working in partnership to protect our watercourses.

Our customers’ top priority is having a reliablé supply of high quality water. To achieve that at an affordable price,
we have to protect our watercourses from pollution.

The traditional way to tackle raw water pollution is to invest in new treatment processes, which is often expensive.
However, by working in partnership with landowners and users, we're stopping pollution at source at a fraction of
the cost.

For example, since September 2013 we've been working with farmers in two catchment areas, to reduce their use '
of pesticides containing metaldehyde.

Treatment of this chemical with conventional methods is difficult. We've therefore engaged with farmers and
ancouraged them to work together with us. By incentivising them to use alternative treatments and rewarding
them for reducing pollution, we've cut metaldehyde levels in the two areas by up tc 90%. We're now looking to
expand this approach during AMPS, with the aim of having 12 successful catchment management schemes
by 2020.

Strateglc report 18




SEVERN TRENT PLC _AR15

Regulated
Our business m6de|

— The role of Severn Trent Water Limited

Sevarn Trent Water Limited is a regulated business. We work within five year planning cycles, with customer
prices set by our economic regulator, Ofwat. This allows us to fund our investment programme and cover an
efficient level of opetating costs.

We are also subject to regulation by two quality regulators ~ the Drinking Water Inspectorate and the Environment
Agency.

Our prices and assét base are adjusted by RP! inflation sach year. In certain circumstances we can ask for prices
to be reviewed within the five year period due to costs associated with ‘notified items’ or ‘relevant changes of
circumstance’. Customer bad debt and the adoption of private drains and sewers (PDa$8) are included in these
categories for the current five year period. Severn Trent has absorbed the costs associated with PDaS and has
not sought to review prices for this reason during 2010-2015. '

The company eams a return on its asset base. We can generale additional relurns if we outperform Ofwat's
assumptions by becoming mare efficient in the delivery of our capital programme, managing our operational costs
more effectively, and by financing our business at a lower cost.

Our operaling performance is assessed and benchmarked against the sector by Ofwat. Over the period 2015 —
2020 there will be scope to earn additional income, or incur penalties, based on our performance (as discussed on
page 11).

Life cycle of water
1. Water is 2. Water is 3. Clean water 4. Customers enjoy | 5. Waste water 6. Waste water is
collected cleaned is distributed our services is cotlected treated and
returned to the
environment |
Regulatory
framawork
+  Ofwat Ofwat Ofwat Ofwat Ofwat Ofwat
« Natural Drinking Water Drinking Water Consumer Environment Natural
England Inspectorate Inspectorate Coundcil for Agency England
+  Natural Health and Health and Water Health and Natural
Resources Safety Safety Drinking Water Safety Resources
Wales Executive Executive Inspectorate Executive Wales
»  Environment Environment
Agency Agency
« Healthand Health and
Safety Safety
Exacutiva Executive
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Risks
Failute of key assets | Fallure of key assets | The performance of | Failure to improve Failure to deal with We may suffer
may result Or processes may our distribution our customer service | customer waste operational failure in
in damage to result in a declinein | network may fall and meet customer effectively maylead | our waste water
property, Injury to water quality, below the standards | expectations. to sewer flooding. operations which
peopls and/or disruption In our expected by DWior | Principal Risk Ref 1* | Principal Risk results in damage to
disruption to our supply to customers | Ofwat, resulting in Ref 7 the iocal
abllity to supply our | or failure to mest poor senvice to our environment,
customers. regulatory targets, customers and Principal Risk
Principal Risk Principal Risk Increased leakage Ref 7™
Ref 6** and 7 Ref 6*** and 7*** from our natwork.
Principal Risk
Ref 7+

Hazardous Failure of cne of our | We may be unable Hazardous

processes key assats could to respond processes may

or chemicals may result in disruption to | effectively to the result

result supply to customers. | opening up of in people bsing

in people being Principa! Risk the business retail injured.

injured, Ref 74** market to Principaf Risk

Principal Risk compatition. Ref 7**

Ref 8"** Princlpal Risk Ref 2*

Investment and maintenance

Networks invested and maintalned

Our capital programme this year was £547 million, or around £165 per connected property, reflecting a decreased investment year on year
{(2013-2014: £602 million} in our water and sewerage networks. This induded finding and fixing more feaks and reducing the number of supply
interruptions, improvements to our water and sewage treatment plants and upgrades to our sewer network to reduce incidents of sewer
flooding. We fund this investment programme from the profits we generale, and also by borrowing money from the capital markets. Capital
investment is added on to our asset base, called the Regulated Capital Value (RCV). Qur asset base aisa rizes in line with Inflation each year.
The retumns that we generate for sharehoiders on that asset base are set by our sconomic regulator, Ofwat, over five year planning cycles. We
can [ncreass these refums by outperformance in future years through Outcome Delivery Incantives (ODls).

Regulatory framework

Risks

¢  Ofwat

¢+ Health and Safety Exacutive

+  Environment Agency

. Drinking Water Inspectorate

We operate within a complex legal and regulatory environment as a
waief and sewerage service provider in England and Wales.

As a result we face a number of risks inciuding those associated with
possible non-compllance with our legal and regulatory framework,
and enforcement by our regulators (e.g. DWI, EA and Qfwat) and
fallure to meet the terms of our regulatory contract as set out in our
agreed business plan for 2015-2020. We also face risks associated
with possible future changes in legislation which may resuilt in our
business plans becoming unsustainable or uneconomic,

Principal Risk Ref 3, 4 and 6 *“*

*  Principal Risk Ref 1 and 2 on page 40.

**  Principal Risk Ref 3, 4, and 5 on page 41.
“*  Principal Risk Ref €, 7 and 8 cn page 42.
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Regulated business performance review

1. We have achieved an underlying improvement In interruptions to supply, reducing the average number
of minutes that customers are without supply from 16 minutes to 9 minutes 54 seconds.

2. We answaer at least 80% of calls within 20 seconds.

Our goal is to provide a reliable service that our customers, communities and investors can trust. This will enable
us to generate long term sustainable growth, by delivering an outstanding customer experience, the best value
service and environmental leadership.

In this section, we explain how our regulated business performed during the last 12 months, as well as the actions
we're taking to position us for success over the next regulatory cycle.

Embedding customers at the heart of what we do

In recent years, we've worked hard to improve our service. These efforts are reflected in rising customer
satisfaction scores. However, we recognise that we've got a lot further to go and we intend to make significant
pragress during AMP6.

For many people, being able to afford our services is key. Household budgets remain under pressure. We're
therefore pleased to have had the lowest average combined water and sewerage bills in Britain for the last six
years. Our average bill in 2014/15 was £333, which is lower in real terms than at the start of AMPS.

We're confident that we'll continue to have the lowest bills for the next five years, with customers seeing further
reductions in real terms. At the same time, we're introducing an enhanced special tariff, which will offer customers
discounts of up to 90%, depending on their circumstances. We'll continue our other support for our customers,
such as our WaterSure tariff for those in financial need, which caps bills for people who use a lot of water because
they are ill or have a large family. We'll also be introducing water health checks, to promote the support available
and make sure customers are on the right tariff. Every year this will mean that help is available to around 50,000
customers who are struggling financially. Our partnership with Coventry Citizens’ Advice Bureau is an important
part of our approach.

Keeping bills affordable also means ensuring that everyone who can pay does, so they don’t increase the burden
on others. This year, we’ve improved bad debt levels to around 2.0%. This continues to be one of the best
performances in the industry. We've made more effactive use of our contact centres, making more calls to
customers 1o engage with them and help them to manage their liabilities.

Ofwat's Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) is an important indicator of how good our customer service is. The
SIM score has two elements - qualitative and guantitative. During the year, we improved both parts of our score.

The qualitative element captures our customers’ views of our service. This year, our qualitative score, as an
average over the whole year, was 4.36. This is based on Ofwat's new methodology for 2014/15 and ranks us sixth
among the 18 companies in our sector, up from thirteenth last year. In the final wave of results we came third —a
great foundation for continued improvement through AMPS. Over the last 12 months, we've introduced around 35

initiatives to deliver a better customer experience.

“Providing the service our customers want means we need the right resource, so we’ve added
approximately 100 front-line roles.”

The quantitative metric reflects the number of customers who have had to contact us. Our performance here
improved by 26.6%.

We also capture customer satisfaction data by directly surveying thousands of customers each month to get

feedback after contact. To broaden our understanding of our performance, we've expanded these surveys to
cover our customer operations contact centre, as well as the billing contact centre and we've seen our scores

steadily increase.
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Consistent with rising customer satisfaction, we've seen a 20% reduction in complaints this year. An important
confributor was the new resolutions team, which fooks at the underlying causes of complaints and ensures we fix
them.
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Providing the best possible service to our customers means we need the right ievel of resource, so we've added
approximately 100 frontline roles. We've created a customer strategy and experience department, bringing
together the training, quality and complaint handling functions from across our contact centras. This gives us a
more consistent approach to best practice. In addition, we've reviewed the role of our frontline managers, to halp
them to coach and develop our agents.

Another important focus this year has been reducing the work in progress. The changes we've made are helping
us to meet the industry standard of answering at least 80% of calls within 20 seconds, which we didn't always
manage in the first part of the year. We're also responding to customer emails more quickly, cutting the time it
takes us to answer from five days to less than 12 hours.

Improving customer service means offering more ways to interact with us, so customers ¢can choose the channsl
that suits them best. We want to be a ‘digitally savvy’ organisation, so we've invested heavily in our capabilities
this year. This includes enhancing our web and mobile offerings, making them easier and more attractive to use.
As part of this, we've been trialling web chat, which we plan to expand during the coming year.

Going forward, we'll help our customers to adopt new channels, by using analytics to gain insight into why they
contact us and how we can encourage them {o self-serve. As part of cur digital strategy, we've also been
investing in understanding the key points when our customers contact us. By analysing how best we can engage
with them at each point, we’ll know how to defiver the brilliant service they expect.

Enhancing intelligent use of customer data and the way we use it will be an important part of cur approach during
AMPS. We're investing in a new customer relationship management system, which will draw together customer
information from across our systems. This will help our agents to resolve more queries first time. Increasing our
knowledge of each customer will also help us to predict their likely needs, so we can offer them a more relevant

and personalised service.

Developing customers’ trust also means engaging with our communities and being increasingly open and
transparent to deal with. We're also using channels such as social media to keep customers better informed about
issues that may affect their service, so they know when they are likely to be resolved and any action they need to
take. We are delighted that we are already ranked in the top ten in the empathy index for UK companies using

Twitter.

Driving operational excellence and continuous improvement

Our overall operational performance continued to improve during the year. We've developed a cutture of
delivering against performance metrics and have achieved a stable or improved performance in 12 of Ofwat's

14 non financial KPls during the last year. :

The quality of our drinking water is high but our performance is not as consistent as we would like. In 2014, our
overall compliance with the DWI's quality standards was 99.96%. However, we had 41 significant events,
according to categorisations by the DWI, against a target of 15, while the serviceability of our water non
infrastructure assets (above ground assets such as water production works) is rated as deteriorating. To improve
performance, we've undertaken a significant amount of work at our water treatment works and borehales,
inspecting the sites and increasing our maintenance and capital replacement. We also increased our programme
of water pipe cleaning, from around 1,000 km in a typical year to around 1,500 km last year. '

In relation to leakage we have achieved our regulatory commitment for the fourth year running. Performance this
year benefited from the continuation of our mains replacement programme and our new way of working, which we
call Valuing Every Drop. This came from our Safer Better Faster approach to continuous improvement, which we
use to diagnose issues, redesign our processes, train our people and equip them differently.

Valuing Every Drop has significantly reduced our time to process and react to leaks. By the end of the year, we
were fixing 38% of ali leaks within 24 hours, up from around 25% earlier in the year.
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We have also achieved an underlying improvement in interruptions to supply, reducing the average number of
minutes that customers are without supply from 16 minutes 1o around 10 minutes. However, a single very large
mains burst, which affected 2,111 properties early in the year, meant that the number of properties with a supply
interruption longer than 12 hours was 3,365, compared with 2,699 in 2013/14. We've continued to work to reduce
the impact of interruptions, for example by faster despatch of emergency tankers.

CASE STUDY

Securing Birmingham’s water supply for the next 100 years.

The Elan Valley Aqueduct has brought water to Birmingham for more than a century. Now we need to modernise
and refurbish it, so it can serve our customers for at least the next 100 years.

The aqueduct carries water 74 miles from Waies. It's an amazing piece of Victorian engineering but it wasn't
designed with long term maintenance in mind.

As it's Birmingham’s main water supply, we can only turn it off for short periods, giving us a maximum of three
days at a time to work on it.

To give the aqueduct the attention it needs, we'll have to provide a second major source of water for Birmingham.
That means investing around £340 million in AMP6, 80 we can fake water from the River Severn during its peak
flow in the winter months and pump it 25km to our treatment works at Frankley. This complex project is our
biggest ever. It will allow us to rebuild entire sections of the aqueduct, giving it another century of life and a secure
waler supply for the pecple of Birmingham.

Although very rare, internal sewer flooding is one of the worst things that can happen to our customers, so we
waere pleased to have further reduced the number of customers who suffered repeated flooding. In 2014/15 there
were 198 incidents, down from 204 in 2013/14. We've continued to invest in capital solutions, enabling us to
protect 192 properties from the risk of repeated flooding this year and a total of 746 over AMPS.

As our overall waste water infrastructure (below ground assets) serviceability assessment by Ofwat remains
marginal, we've continued to focus on the areas that affect this. We reduced the number of sewer blockages by
8.4%, through initiatives such as First Time Resolution. Rather than simply unblocking the sewer, we provide a
more holistic customer service by sending a sophisticated vehicle, capable of diagnesing and removing the
problem, surveying the sewer and carrying out minor repairs. We've also trialled different ways of engaging with
customers, to raise awareness of the problems caused by putting the wrong things down the sewer.

Pollution incidents happen when there are unplanned discharges of water or sewage into the environment. In
2014 the Environment Agency assessed our averall environmental performance as 4*, the highest score possible.
We aim to maintain this strong performance by further reducing polluticn incidents.

We had a record-breaking year for compliance al our waste water treatment works, directly contributing to the
health of our rivers. Only one of our 704 consented sites failed to reach its compliance limits, giving us 96.9%
compliance, up from 99.29% in 2013/14. We've continued to invest to maintain this strong performance.

Our pollution performance also benefited from our Safer Better Faster approach. During the year, we ran a series
of 12 week improvement interventions. This included developing and launching an e-learning package for
everyone working on our sewerage infrastructure, including our subcontractors. This educates them on how to
spot problems, react quickly and better resolve customer issues.
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Helping our engineers to work smarter

We're equipping all our engineers with robust and waterproof smartphones. The devices include satellite
navigation, connectivity through video caliing and instant messaging, and administrative functions such as
timesheets and expenses. Our engineers will soon be able to access job and customer histories, so they can
serve our customers better and complete more jobs first time. By working smarter, we'll enable our managers o
spend more time in the field, while motivating and empowering our workforce.

Adapting how we work

During the year, we took an important step in preparing for AMP8, by bringing together our water and waste water
wholesale operations. Combining them enables us to take advantage of cross skilling between water and waste,
to reduce our support and management costs, and to put more emphasis on network control and asset
management. This helps us to befter understand risks, target our investment more effectively and drive improved
performance for customers. Being efficient also requires us to adapt the way we work. For example, we're
standardising our operating processes, while ensuring that we can adapt them guickly in response to new ideas.

Technology has an important role as we look to improve our performance during AMPS. We've started to rollout
the next generation of handheld smart devices to our work crews, to give them better information about the sites
they're visiting and the assets they'll be working on, so they can resolve problems more effectively. They can also
update the data on our system, to ensure it's as accurate as possible.

“Renewable energy which is self generated allows us to keep costs down and bills low for customers.”

We're also developing apps to enhance what we call the ‘colleague journey’. This helps us to provide the
information our people need at each stage of responding to and completing a job. They'll be able to complete jobs
faster and first ime, improving life for our customers. As part of this, we're asking our people to tell us what apps
they want, so they can do their jobs better.

A new system we've introduced this year allows our customers to give us immediate feedback on our work crew’s
quality of service and workmanship. This allows us to talk in real time to work crews about where they're doing
well and how they can improve, so we can shorten improvement timescales and share best practice more quickly.

We're continuing to invest in our telemetry system, so we can get more information on the performance of aur
pipes and treatment sites. By developing our analytics capability and combining this data with other information,
such as weather patterns, we'll be abie to be more predictive about future performance, so we can tackle

problems before they affect our customers.

innovation has always been important for us. We've brought together our water and waste research and
development (R&D) teams, to give us an integrated programme that supports our Wholesate Operations business
more efficiently. We're now reviewing our R&D plans and making sure we only focus on projects that contribute to
our customer commitments either in the AMP6 ptan or in the future.

Investing responsibly for sustainable growth

In 2014/15, we successfully completed our AMPS investment programme. Investment of £547 .4 million during the

year brought the total for the last five years to £2.6 billion. Our 201 4/15 programme included:

s investment in mains replacement;

« improving the resilience of our water treatment works, including our largest at Frankley, in Birmingham;

e further improvements at our waste water treatment works, to ensure we continue to comply with regulatory
requirements;

« expenditure on sewer replacement and sewer flooding schemes; and
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» continuing to grow our renewable energy assets within our regulated business, by installing more combined
heat and power plants,

This year's expenditure also included £60 million of investment we brought forward from AMP6. We used this to
imprave our sewer flooding performance and to invest in mains resilience. It also enabled us to accelerate some
of our planned water quality schemes for AMP6 by 18 months, by carrying out feasibility studies and design work
ahead of schedule.

Our investment programme for the next five years will total £3.3 billion (based on 2012/13 prices) and will deliver
further benefits for customers, in terms of service quality and value for money, as well as improving the
environment. We'll spread this investment across our asset base, to improve its serviceability, reliability and
resilience.,

The largest single scheme in our plan, and the largest by any company during AMPS, is the first phase of the
Birmingham Resilience Scheme. A major source of Birmingham's water is the Elan Valley aqueduct, which is
more than 100 years old. Over the next five years, we'll be constructing a scheme to allow us to abstract water
from the River Severn and treat it at Frankley, providing a new supply for Birmingham.

AMPS sees Ofwat's KPIs replaced by ODls, which allow companies {0 earn more for outperformance or suffer
penalties for underperformance. The ODIs reflect our customers' priorities and our focus on them will ensure we
deliver better value, better services and a healthier environment over the next five years. Given our track record of
delivering against performance metrics we are conﬁdent that we're well placed to perform well against the ODls
and to succeed in AMPG.

Our AMPS plan requires us to achieve £372 million of efficiencies (at 2012/13 prices), which is a significant
challenge. Excellent procurement will be an important component of these savings and we've developed joint
efficiency plans with our One Supply Chain partners. This will help us to deliver our capital programme more
effectively, by standardising the products we buy and by planning more carefully with our suppliers, so we spend
less time on-site and work more efficiently while we're there, We're also looking at our second level suppliers, so
we can understand them better and work more directly with them, where it adds value.

Before we commit to capital expenditure, we're investigating whether we could solve the problem by operating our
existing assets better or differently. We need to become ever more efficient and only build the assets we need to
solve the problems we're facing, and get the best value. At the same time, we're developing methods to help us
understand whether Capex or Opex will enable us to deliver the best outcome — an essential component of the
new Totex regime in AMP6.

In AMPE, we'll invest in the next stage of enhancing our treatment warks. This includes £234 million to help us
meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive; in what we believe is the most ambitious programme in
the sector, we'll be looking to make the biggest impact on as many watercourses as possible.

Our catchment management approach allows us to work in partnership with our stakeholders to protect our raw
water sources from pollution. For example, we've encouraged farmers to praduce ‘clean run-off from their land,
as waell as removing metaldehyde from one of our catchments, This approach Is both better for the environment
and for our customers, as it reduces our need to spend money to clean affected water. We've also agreed to host
two partnerships, covering the Tame, Anker and Mease rivers and the Lower Trent and Erewash catchments.
Working as a partnership with other industries, regulators and NGOs allows us to have a more positive impact
than when we work on our own.

Treating water and sewage is energy intensive, The majority of our carbon emissions come from pumping water
around our network and trealing sewage at our works. This year we reduced our emissions by 4% to 491
kilotonnes of CO.e. We also met our 2009 commitment to have no net increase in emissions, with an overall 12%
reduction over the period since this commitment. More information on our greenhouse gas impact can be found in
the Directors’ report on pages 87 and 88.
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Renewable energy is an important part of our approach and a number of our processes use by-products or
essential features of our water or sewage treatment. In 2014-2015, renewable energy provided 28% of our
reguiated business’s energy needs. We intend to increase this further over the next few years. More on our
renewable energy initiatives can be found in the non-reguiated performance review on page 35.

Our long term impact on the environment also depends on our customers. With this in mind, we put considerable
effort into educating our current and future customers, s0 people understand how to use water efficiently and what
can be safely disposed of in our sewers. As part of this, we run a schools education programme, which teaches
children each year about the value of water. We've also continued our volunteering programme. This engages our
local communities in what we do, whilst improving our people’s skills and building working relationships.

The suppliers we work with aiso have an important part to play in our sustainability efforts. While we've always
taken care to select suppliers with, for example, strong health and safety records, we haven't specifically focused
on other aspects of their sustainabllity performance. To address this, we have a new programme to review our
suppliers' sustainability credentials, so that we understand their performance in key areas such as the
environment and human rights.

Creating a great place to work
To achieve our objectives, we need Severn Trent to be a great place to work, and for our people to be flexible,
to embrace new ways of working and skills and to focus on our customers’ needs.

This was a year of considerable change, as we positioned the business to succeed during AMPE. We put our
water and waste water operations into one wholesale and engineering function. We also created a Chief
Customer Officer role to bring our customer and digital ambitions together. A key part of these changes was to
reduce the number of layers in our organisation from nine to five. This gives our people more contro! over their
roles and empowers them fo do more. Empowerment and trust will be important themes for us going forward and
we have teams looking at how we can further embed them into our culture.

The organisational change also reduced the number of roles in our business by approximately 500. We consuited
widely with employees during the process and ran a comprehensive outplacement programme, 1o support those
of our peopie whose roles were removed.

Despite the amount of change, we ran our annual employee engagement survey during this period and achieved
our highest ever completion rate of 85%. The survey showed that our people remain highly committed, with our
engagement index coming out at 79%, compared with 81% last year. This is a very creditable performance in the
circumstances. We are determined to improve our scores next year.

Highlights from the survey included our employees’ strong loyalty to Severn Trent, how rmuch they enjoy their
work and their willingness to go the extra mile for customers. However, our people would like more opportunities
fo share their views before we make changes that affect their jobs and they want more inspirational leadership

from our senior feam.

Our engagement survey highlights the importance of our senior team being visible and accessible across the
business, so we are complementing what already happens with leadership led sessions called ‘Friday Focus' at
our largest sites. This will allow our people further opportunities to ask our leaders questicns about anything they
want to complement their day-to-day dealings with their team managers. In addition, our CEO, Liv Garfield, hosted
more than 60 sessions during the year, meeting more than 5,000 of our people. She used these sessions o
explain our performance challenges in AMP6 and how we need to adapt to meet them. These sessions were
extremely well received by attendees and helped to align our people on the areas of foeus.
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As the world becomes more complex, we need to have more talented people in our organisation and provide
more opportunities for them to reach their potential. Our apprenticeship programme brings in new talent each year
and we currently have 80 apprentices. We've adapted the programme so that it now takes three years instead of
four, by changing the way we train our apprentices and their college wark, so they can reach the required
technical level faster. Qur graduate programme is also going from strength to strength. We took on 27 graduates
in 2014-2015, our largest intake for some years. As at May 2015, Severn Trent Waier Limited is one of
thejobscrowd's “Top 100 Companies for Graduates to Work for in 2015-2016' ranking at no.83. Thejobscrowd is
the only graduate employer ranking based on realtime feedback and reviews from current graduates, so refiects
actual graduate/employee engagement and experience. As the only water company represented in the ‘larger
intake' category, this is a great result for the first year of entering the survey.

The performance challenges we face in AMPS are greater than in AMPS, so we've redesigned our performance
framework. Qur goal is to inspire everyone to achieve great performance, with a clear plan of how they can
develop the skills and behaviours needed to achieve performance excellence. Individuals will discuss and review
their performance every quarter to identify successes and areas where improvements can be made. We're aiming
to create a culture that's performance led, and which encourages our peopie to achieve their full potential.

Turning Severn Trent into an awesome company

With the challenges of AMPE fast approaching, our CEO Liv Garfield met more than 5,000 employees on her
‘Awesome Company Tour'. Over more than 60 sessions, she engaged our people in our journey to become an
awesoms company. She set out how we'll delight our customers and give them the cleanest water, with brilliant
people who work safely and take a ‘digital first’ approach. The outcome will be ‘fab financials’, which will fund our
plans and reward our investors.

1. Turning Severn Trent into an awesome company. Visible and accessibla leadership is key to building
trust. ' -

2. Protecting our people’s health and wellbeing is one of our core responsibilities. Our lost time injury
rate during the year was 0.21 per 100,000 hours worked. Our goal Is zero.

Training the engineers of the future

Severn Trent Water apprentice maintenance technician, Hannah Black is one of 80 young people who has joined
us in operational apprentice roles. For Hannah it made perfect sense to become an apprentice giving her an
opportunity to learn whilst she earned money to kick start her career. New apprentices will also gain a brand new
‘Trailblazer’ qualification, which we've designed with our industry colleagues and the Sector Skills Council,

We also need leaders who can challenge and engage. During the vear, we completed our Leading for
Performance programme, which aims to make leaders confident in driving high performance and creating an
environment of empowerment. In total, we've trained 400 managers.

With our greater focus on performance comes the need to recognise and reward it. Our employee awards scheme
reinforces a culture of continuous improvement and recognition, with more than 500 people nominated this year.
Wa also offer flexible benefits, which are very popular. For example, employees can buy or sell holidays to suit
their needs. Most of our people are shareholders in Severn Trent, meaning they benefit directly from our good
performance. Nearly 48% of those eligible have joined our Sharesave scheme.

Protecting our people’s health and wellbeing is one of our core responsibilities. Our lost time injury rate was

0.21 per 100,000 hours worked, which is the same as last year. Qur performance remains industry leading but is
not as good as we hoped for, given our considerable focus on health and safety. Minor accidents are a continued
reminder of the need to remain focused and the need te refresh our approach to heaith and wellbeing. We
continue to prioritise reductions in minor accidents, such as slips, frips and falls, as well as safety in our supply
chain. In 2014/15 we ended the year with 2 RIDDOR score of 0.12 on our major construction programme
delivered by our One Supply Chain team. This is 40% better than the construction industry average and 25%
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better than the industry benchmark programme of work {the London 2012 Olympics). We're also creating a
stronger central health and safety function, which will help to direct how our operational teams should work and
provide more assurance that they're doing the right things. We also address employees’ wellbeing, paying
attention to factors such as workplace stress and other mental heaith issues.

“We take a long term view of our business, so we’re big supporters of the sclence, technology,
engineering and maths agenda in education.”

We recognise that diversity and inclusion are important for our success and have made them a business
imperative over the last 18 months. As a customer focused organisation, we need our workforce to reflect the
customers and communities we serve, so we can understand and respond to their needs. Qur workforce remains
slightly more diverse than the sector average, with female employees making up 30.4% of the total, compared
with 26% across the industry. 7.8% of our employees are black, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME), against an
industry average of 3.4%.

To help us make meaningful progress during AMP6, we have priaritised three key areas:
s women in operational ieadership positions;

« women and BAME peogple in engineering positions; and

« BAME people in technical operator positions.

We continue to take action to improve diversity, for example by training managers in how to interview effectively
and fairly. More than 400 managers have been through this training, which has a strong focus on unconscious
bias in the recruitment process. More than 130 leaders in our Wholesale Operations business have attended
awareness-raising sessions, focusing on the benefits of diverse teams and building an inclusive environment.

We've taken action to encourage diversity among job applicants, for example by revamping our recruitment
website to profile a broader range of employees and addressing the language we use in our job descriptions.
We've been successful in attracting more female graduates, which will give us a greater female talent pool for
future senior management team appointments. However, we have more work to do in attracting more female

apprentices for operational roles.

More information on our gender diversity can be found in the Nominations Commiitee report on pages 61 and 62,
The Corporate Responsibility Committee report on pages 66 to 68 contains information on human rights issues for
the group.

We take a long term view of our business, so we're big supporters of promoting science, technology, engineering
and maths in education. We encourage young people to study these subjects, so they can become the engineers
and technicians of the future. For example, we support initiatives such as Tomormow's Engineers and work with
universities and technical colleges to make their curriculums more refevant to industry. We also support the Big
Bang, a national programme to get children interested in technology and science careers.

Outlook

During 2014/15, we've put in place the foundations for success in AMPS. We have a plan that will deliver better
value and better services for customers and a healthier environment for all. By achieving our plan, we'll deliver
long term sustainable growth and real benefits for our customers, communities and investors.

1. We sponsor the Big Bang Fair, which provides 7-19 year olds with a fun and educational experience to
help inspire them towards careers using their science and maths subjects.
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CASE STUDY

Using food waste to power our processes,

At our Coleshill sewage treatment works, we're turning food waste into enough electricity to make the site self-

sufficient.

We've invested £13 million in an anaerobic digestion plant, which uses food waste from local businesses to create
methane gas. We then convert this gas to green energy, sufficient to power aver 4,000 homes or the whole of the
works and more. Nothing is wasted, with plastic packaging going for recycling and the leftover material becoming

fertiliser for local fields.

By digesting this food waste, we're preventing around 8,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions each year. That's
equivalent to taking 3,300 cars off the road. And we're enabling local businesses to save money and meet their
environmental goals. The National Exhibition Centre is one of the first to send its food waste to Coleshill. We’'ll be
taking around 120 tonnes of its waste each year, helping to ensure it sends zero to landfill.

Non-regulated

Our business model
Our non-reguiated business allows us to apply our water and waste water services knowledge to create and
deliver services and products to UK and giobal municipal, industrial and commercial customers.

We also provide renewable energy to the group and are looking to identify new opportunities in energy

generation.

Role

Identify and develop Create products Build strong and Maximise Associated
opportunities and servicas respacted brands our return risks

Savermn Trent Operating Servicas

Operating Services
analyses markets and
works with customers to
identify opportunities and
markets where our
capabilities can be
applied for customers’
and shareholders’
benefit.

In the UK we provide
design, bulld and contract
opsrations for water and
waste water treatment
facilities for a variety of
industrial segmants and
Supply retail water 0
businesses throughout
the UK.

Qur strategy is to
continue growing our
Operating Services
business in the US and
Europe.

Water supply services
across the UK are
changing, with fegislation
giving businesses a
choice from whom they

‘buy thelr water and waste

watar sarvices.
Operating Services is
pursuing this open
market movement,
helping businesses
achigve oplimum water
and waste water
management through
enhanced services,

Severn Trent Operating
Servicss Is the largest
private operator of
facilitios operated in the
US, serving mora than
321 fadilifies in 22
states.These facilities
regularty win awards In
areas such as
environmental
complience, health and
safety and overall plant
performance.

With water services
licences for Scotland,
England and Wales, we
offer multi sited
businesses the benefits
and synergies of a single
supplier approach,

We continue to enter new
states in the US.

In February 2015 OSUS
was awarded a contract
in Quincy, In the mid wost
ragion, replacing
American Water, 2014/15
also saw the first year of
our largest monetary
contract to date in
Bridgeport, Connecticut,
while expanding our
presence in Callfornia
with the acquisition of 14
contracts from
SouthWest Water
Company. In the UK long
termn contracts with the
Ministry of Defence
(MoD) and First Milk
provide continuing
stability.

Hazardous processes
may result in our people
being injured (Principal
Risk Ref 7).

Failure of products or
treatment processes may
result in environmental
damage and regulatory
nencompliance
(Principal Risk Ref 6).
Regulatory or pofitical
change may lead to
decreased demand for
our services.

We may be unable to
take advantage of the
opening up of the UK
retall market to

com petition {Principal
Risk Ref 2).
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Rengwable energy

Severn Trent generates -
renewable energy from
anaerobic digestion (AD),
wind turbines and some
hydro. We are also
expanding Into the food
waste market. Our new
facility at Coleshill, UK,
will convert up to 48,000
tonnes of food waste into
17,026 MWh of electricity
and approximately
30,000 tonnes of
biofertillser for agricufture
per year by 2016. We
plan to Investigate the
developmant of other
technologles including
photovoltaics (PV) and
biomass combustion.

In 2014/15 we will supply
over 40,000 MwWh of
electricity and heat to
our regulated business.
Our new food waste

AD business wili provide
a service for the
recycling of Industrial,
commercial, retail and
domestic food waste.

We are recognised as
being experlenced in the
field of AD. Our expertise
in this complex biclogical
process means that we
can be trusted to provide
an excellent senvice.

We have established
electricity and heat power
sale/purchase
agreaments with our
regulated business. We
will be entering into long
term contracts with the
wider supply market to
process food waste.

Hazardous processes
may result in our people
being Injured.

We may ba exposed fo
increased volatility in
energy prices.
Regulatory or politicaf
change or focal
opposition to our plans
may affect our ability to
generate sufficient
ranewable energy to
achieve our targets.
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Non-regulated business performance review

-1. During the year we won a major contract with the Coal Authority to operate and maintain mine water
treatment plants across the UK for the next 10 years.
Following the sale of our Water Purification business, we have reorganised and brought together our remaining
non-regulated businesses — Operating Services US, Operating Services UK, including non-household retail and
renewable energy — into a new Business Services division led by Andy Smith.

Severn Trent Services reported revenua rose by 2.9% to £216.3 million, with reported PBIT down 27.1% to £8.7
milfion. After adjusting for the impact of exchange rate movements, revenue was 4.6% higher and PBIT
decreased by 27.1%.

“The busingss benefited from a number of actions we took to pasition it for growth and greater efficiency. We
maved from being an integrated business to three separate business units, each focused on its own markets and
customer needs, and each under new leadership teams.”

Operating Services

Operating Services provides contracted operating services, to manage and maintain water and waste water plants
and networks. It delivered revenue growth on the back of new contract wins in the US and the UK. Revenue in
2014/15 was £216.3 million, up 4.6% after adjusting for the impact of exchange rates.

In the US, we won a number of cantracts in the Northeast and Pacific regions. We also benefited from the first full
year of our contract in Bridgeport, Connecticut. This gontract, which we won in 2013/14, is our largest in the US by
monetary value, with annual revenues of £13.8 million over 10 years. We operate, maintain and manage two
waste water treatment facilities, 10 pumping stations and nearly 300 miles of sewers. Our performance to date
has been strong, which has helped us fo build an excsllent relationship with the client. Most recently, we have
assisted with the development of a five year capital pian, to address the challenges of ageing infrastructure,

In the UK, we continued to pick up selected new retail business in Scotland, with contract wins in the healthcare,
retail and leisure sectors. Our approach here is disciplined, focusing on winning profitable work and using the
opportunity to develop our understanding of the market, ahead of the opening up of non-household retail
competition in England from April 2017,

Woe are actively preparing for the infroduction of cempetition in non-household retail in England. We now have
new processes which will equip us to deliver outstanding service to customers.

Qur 25 year, £1 billion operation and maintenance contract with the UK Ministry of Defence is now in its 10th year.
We continue fo work with our customers to find new ways to improve our performance. During 2014/15, we also
won a major confract with the Coal Authority, to operate and maintain mine water treatment plants across the UK
for the next 10 years.

Renewable Enefgy

During the year, we continued to build our industry leading position in renewable energy generation. We sell the
energy we create to power our regulated business' operations, with the surplus sold to National Grid.

Key deveiopments during the year included opening our ‘gas to grid’ plant at Minworth, Birmingham. This piant is
the first of its kind in the water industry, and injects the gas generated from the anaerobic digestion of sewage
sludge into the nationa! grid. As weil as being & source of revenue for us, this has important environmental
benefits by enabling power stations to turn the gas into electricity more efficiently than we could on-site. Qur first
food waste digestion plant, at Coleshill, Warwickshire, began generating electricity in December 2014.

We will invest in solar energy, making use of surplus land on or around operational sites.
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Outlook _
We believe Severn Trent Business Services has a number of attractive growth opportunities and that we've
positioned the business to take advantage of them. In Operating Services, our preparations for non-household
retail competition in England are going well, and we see potential in the US market, which is showing signs of
opening up, as described on page 16.

We'll continue to invest in our renewables business, with the aim of increasing our external sales and providing
around 50% of Severn Trent Water's energy needs by 2020. We intend to expand energy production from food
waste, to upgrade our sewage anaerobic digestion to the latest technology and to add solar generation, with
technological developments having made this more economically attractive.

“Wo belleve Severn Trent Business Services has a number of attractive growth opportunities and that
we've positioned the business to take advantage of them.”

Improving efficiency, compliance and union relations

Our US Operating Services business has a 10 year contract to help the city of Bridgeport, Connecticut, meet the
challenges of ageing plants, a struggling sewer system and improvements to safety and compliance. Since we
started work in January 2014, we've built productive relationships with all five labour unions, by aiigning our goals
with theirs and the client's. This has helped us achieve outstanding regulatory compliance, enabling the city to sell
credits under the state’s Nitrogen Credit Exchange Program.

CASE STUDY

Taking the lead on environmental performance.
Our customers and other stakeholders value healthy rivers and want us to continue improving our local
environment. That's why environmental performance is central to our plans.

We've invested more and achieved another record breaking year at our waste water treatment works. Of more
than 700 sites, 99.9% met their compliance limits.
We've also further reduced the number of poliution incidents, by improving the way we work and launching new

training for our people and subcontractors. Our environmental performance over the last year places us amongst
the best in the industry. We'll continue to work hard to improve our local environment, with our plan for AMP6

including no fewer than 12 performance commitments.

34
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Risk management

Our approach to risk

We have set ourselves some very challenging targets and continually strive to improve our standards of servics
delivery to customers and our overall performance. The group’s risk management and internal control systems are
vital to the delivery of these targets and enable the identification, assessment and mitigation of risks inherent in
our business activities.

Accountability for the effectiveness of the group’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) policies sits with the board,
with oversight from the executive team, supported by operaticnal risk owners and the central ERM team who are
responsibla for carrying out the ERM process.

Risk owners throughout the business, with support and challenge from the ERM team, identify and assess risks
and undertake risk improvement actions to move risks to their target position. The ERM process starts from
understanding the objeclives we have set ourselves, as shown below:

The ERM process

]

When considering how best to manage our risks, our approach reflects the need to efficiently mitigate the inhereni
risks in our business whilst seeking to improve our performance through the targeted management of selected

risks.

Within Severn Trent Water, our approach refiects our status as a regulated utility providing essential services and
operating as part of the Critical Naticnal Infrastructure for the UK, The nature of our Severn Trent Water business
is such that there are some significant inherent risks, as illustrated on page 18 ‘our regulated business model’. We
aim to have a strong control framework in place to enable us to understand our risks and manage these risks both
effectively and efficientty.

In our non-regulated businesses we take a more commercial approach to our decisions around which risks are
acceptable. However, we recognise that we provide products and services for clients who operate in regulated
environments. As a result, for risks that could impact on our clients’ services, we take a similar approach to risk as
in our own regulated business. The risks inherent in our non-regulated business are illustrated on page 32 ‘our
non-regulated business model’.

Risk appetite

The board keeps under constant review the relationship between our strategic ambitions and the management of
risk. In particular, this year the board focused carefully on the ambition in our AMP6 programme and the risk to its
delivery.

~ The ERM process establishes target risk positions for each of our strategic risks. The board formally discuss the

progress towards this position and the mitigating actions being undertaken every six manths. Previously, the
board has held a series of risk appetite discussions focusing on eight key strategic areas in the context of the
below framework:
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Strategic risk framework

Risk appetite Culture Customer Investor Regulatory
perspectives and values fogus confidence regime
Risk focus .| Protecting health, welibeing and safety

areas Financing the business

Ambition for growth

Future competitive position

Customer confidence

Resliience of our networks

Relationships with regulators “

Sustainability of the business

Our Enterprise Risk Management process

We use an established ERM process across the group to assess and manage our most significant risks, which
are linked to our corporate objectives. The ERM process covers all types of risk including operational, financial,
legal and regulatory. Our assessment of risk includes explicit consideration of the possible impact of the risk on
the reputation of the group as a whole.

We analyse both the potential causes and impact of risk. Using this process, we are able to consider the controls
needed to minimise the likelihood of risks occurring and those which can help to maximise our resilience to risks.
The understanding which we are able to gain from our ERM process allows us to put in place effective mitigation
strategies. Resilience of our services is vital and we regularly carry out exercises jointly with other agencies such
as focal authorities, police and fire services to test this resilience.

Across the group, we manags risks within the overall governance framework which includes clear accountabilities,
delegated authority limits and reward policies. These are designed to provide employees with a holistic view of
effective risk management. The key risks are reported to the Audit Committee and discussed at the board every
six months in the form of risk maps. In addition, individual risks or specific risk topics are also discussed by the
board during the year.

An overview of accountability for our ERM process is illustrated in the below chart:

Managing risk ' ) J

Financial risks

Like all businesses, we need to plan future funding in line with business needs. This is part of our normal business
planning process (see Principal risk 3). The board receive regular updates refating to funding, solvency and
liquidity matters.

Financial risks are discussed in detail on page 42.

Strategic report 36




SEVERN TRENT PLC _AR15

r)"m example of risk management in practice

W\.’e have a humber of large assets which are particularly vital to our abllity to continue to supply high quality water to our custorners all of the
time. '

One of these is the Elan Valley Aqueduet, 2lso known as the EVA. This asset transfers water from reservoirs in the Elan Valley to
Bimingham’s Frankley Reservoir, carrying drinking water to supply Birmingham. If the aqueduct were to be damaged, for example by extreme
weather or by third parties, or if we exparience malor bursts on the agueduct, this could result in an unacceptable disruption to supply to these
customers. We have concluded that we are cammying an unacceptable lavel of long term risk, particularly in terms of loss of supply
consequences In Birmingham. Our AMPE Investment plans are o provide a full altemative supply to Birmingham which can be deployed in the
event of a failure of the EVA, and allow extended cutage periods to undertake major maintenance or replacement activities as required.

The Bimmingham altemative supply scheme will construct a new pumping station on the River Severn and an independent pipeline to Frankley
Water Treatment Works. The works will ba upgraded to treat river water and will have two fully independent streams to provide resilience
against major fzilure at the works and protect supplies to Birmingham.
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Principal risks

The principal risks identified in our ERM process are set out below and are categorised across:

s customer
« legal and regulatory

» operations, assets and people

s financial risks

For each risk we state what it means for us and what we are doing to manage it.

Principal risks

Ref What is the risk?

Which part of Severn
Trent Is affacted?

What does it moan for us?

What are we doing to manage the
rish?

Customer perception

1 We may be unable to improve
and maintain our levels of
customer service sufficiently
to deliver what our customers
tell ys they want,

Savemn Trent Water

Woe are a regulated utility
providing essential services
to our customers. We
recognise that our custormers
increasingly expect mare
from us, demanding higher
sarvice levels. As other
industries improve their levels
of service, the baris
constantly being raised.
Failure {o deliver the service
customers expect will lead to
customer dissatisfaction and
we may suffer financial
penalties under Ofwat’s
Service Incentive
Mechanism.

We have made changes to our
organisationa! design to embed
customars at the hean of what we
da, creating a Chief Customer
Officer role and bringing together
our IS function, contact centres and
transformation teams, '
Providing the high quality service
that our customers demand means
we need the right processes,
sysiems and resources. As part of
bacoming a digitally savwvy
arganisation wa are investing in a
new customer relationship
management system, which will
draw together customer information
from across our systems giving us
greater insight into the needs of our
customers. We are also giving
customers more choice in the way
that they interact with us by
introducing new contact channels
such as web chat and moblle,

Wa know that providing great
customer service needs the right
resource so0 we have invested
heavily in training our staff and
added an additional 100 frontiine
roles.

To help make sure we continuously
improve wa are directly surveying
thousands of customers each month
to get feedback on thelr expsrience
of contacting us enabling us to
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Principal risks

Ref What is the risk?

Which part of Severn

What does it mean for us?

What are we doing to manage the

Tront is affected? risk?
improve our service, spot trends and
react to our customers’ needs.

2 We may be unable to take full | Group-wide Competition will give Wae are positioning our buysiness to
advantage of the opportunities business customers succeed in this market and are
presented by the opening up Increased choice and will actively preparing for the
of the business retail market encourage companies to introduction of competition in non-
to competition, provide a better servica. Fwe | household retail in England. As part

fail to keep pace with change
or fail to recognise the needs
of our business customers,
wa may lose customers to
our competitors. We may fail
to successfully grow our
business by being unable to
devslop sufficlently attractive
services 1o win new
customers.

of our preparations we have
changed cur processes to equip us
with the technology to deliver
outstanding service to customers,
Cur strategy reflects the needs of
different customer groups, buth
large and small users and thosa
users where water is critical to
their operations.

We are developing our sarvice
offering which includes, for example,
services to help customers
understand and reduce their water
consumption.

We have recently restructured our
business and we believe that our
new organisation is in good shape o
meet the needs of the changing
market place. We also have full
representation on the OpenWater
project helping to define the markat
rules, framework and systams for
competition in the industry.

We will be rolling out refreshar
training in competition law to ensure
that as we move into the new
environment we can also maintain
full compliance with the relevant
legislation and regutations.

Legal and regulatory environment

3 We may be unable to
effectively anticipate andfor
influence future developments
in the UK water industry
resulting in Qur business plans
becoming unsustainable.

Savern Trent Watsr

Severn Trent Water operates
In a highly regutated
environment. Whilst we are
broadly content with

the direction of changes
proposed for our Industry,
there remains a risk that

Severn Trent has always contributed
to the debate about our industry's
future, including through our series
of Changing Course publications.
We will continue to be an active
particlpant in these conversations,
s0 we can halp shape thinking about
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Princlpal risks

_Ref What is the risk?

Which part of Severn
Trent is affected?

What does It mean for us?

What are we doing to manage the
risk?

future changes could
have a significant Impact on
Severn Trent Water.

how to best serve our customers in
the future.

We have contributed to the
establishment of OpenWater, the
body which will ovarses competition
in the non-household retall market.
We continue to liaise with
Govemment, regulators and other
stakeholders to ensure we
understand the future direction of
policy, its implications for our
business and are able to put forward
our own case for changein a
constructive way.

We will continue to engage with our
peers, Ofwat and other regulators,
UK Government departments and
other stakeholders, Including the
Weish Government, to influence the
direction of regulatory policy where
possible.

4 The regulatory landscape s Group-wide Our policies and processes We understand that the regulatory
complex and subject to must reflect the current legal landscape is changing and following
ongueing change. There is a and regulatory environment on from the restructurng of our
risk that processes may fail or and afl relevant employees organisation and In preparation for
that our processes may not must be kept aware of new the opening up of the retail market,
effectively keep pace with requirements. Due to the we plan to refresh our policy
changes in legislation, leading spread of our operations, and | framework.
to the risk of non-compliance, changes in activity and We plan to continue extensive
arganisational structure, this training across the group,
is not ahways straighforward. | particularty In relation to transactions
The group as a whole may between group companies and
face censure for non- compatition faw.
compliance in an individual
group company or a specific
region In which we operate.

Operations, assets and

people

5 We may experience l6ss of Group-wide The risks arising from loss of | We recognise that the cyber threat

data or interuptions to our

one or more of our major

to the business is constantly

key business sysiem as a systems or cormuption of date | evolving and one which we need tp
result of cyber threats. held in those systems could monitor and act on in a timely
have far reaching effects on manner.
our business. We have Using guidance from the
recegnised the Increasing Government's Centre for Protection
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Principal risks
Ref What is the risk? Which part of Severn What doss It mean for us? What are we dolng to manage the
Trent is affected? risk?
threats posed by the of Critical Nationa! Infrastructure we
possibility of cyber attacks on | have identified key areas where we
our systems and data. Whilst | can improve our controls, focusing
this threat can never be on tfraining our people to be more
eliminated and will continue security aware and ensuring our
to evolve, we are focused on | processes and technology are
the need ta maintain effective | designed with security In mind.
mitigation. Woe have impraved the resilience of
our systems through implementation
of disaster recovery services and
regularly test our ability to recover
from systems failure.

6 We may fail to meet our Sevem Trent Water if we are unable to meet Qur business plan for 2015-2020
requlatory targets, including operational performance includes considerable Investment in
targets from Ofwat in relation targets, we may be subjected | our assets to improve the resilience
to operational performance of to significant regulatory of our networks, reduce interruptions
our assets, resulting in penalties, aither within the and (mprove the service that our
regulatory penalties. current price review period, customers recelve.

or applied to the next price We recognise areas where our
review. . performance is not as consistent as
Regulatory targets apply to we would like and are committed to
all of our water treatment, improving these ereas. We have
distribution, sewerage and undertaken a significant amount of
sewage treafment assets. work at our water freatment works
Measures are in place in and boreholes, inspecting the sites
refation to water quality, and increasing our malntenance and
continuous supplies, sewer capital replacement.
fiooding, sewar collapses and | e remain committed to Investing in
pollution events. continuous improvement activites
such as our Valuing Every Drop
programme which has significantly
reduced our time to process and
react to leaks.
We have also continued to work to
reduce the impact to our customers
when things unfortunatety do go
wrong, for example by faster
despatch of amergency tankers and
providing our staff with incldent
management training.
To improve our waste water
performance we have triatied
different ways of engaging with
customers to raise awareness of the
problems caused by putling the
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Principal risks
Ref What ig the risk? Which part of Severn What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage the
Trent is affected? risk?
wrong things down our sewers. We
are also investing in capital solutions
to enable us to protect properties at
risk of sewer flooding.
7 Failure of certaln koy assets Group-wide Some of our assets are Cur 2015-2020 business plan
or processes may result in critical to the provislon of Includes substantial investment in
inability to provide a water to farge populations for | some of our largest strateglc assets
continuous supply of quality which we require altemative - | such as the Elan Valley and
water to large populations means of supply. Dearwent Valley Aquaducts. We ars
within our area, or cause Examples include failure of alsp investing £340 million in one of
darnage to third parly property ane of our reservoirs or use our largest ever capital schemes to
or injury ar il health to our of chemicals in our treatment | improve the resilience of our water
pecpls, contractors and processes. These assets are | Supply to Birmingham.
members of the general regularly inspected and These investments wil! improve the
public. malntained and our resllience of our services and
assessmant of the overall reduce the risk of injury as a result
condition of these assets is of fallure of one of our assets.
good. As well as investing in
Another example is our IT improvements we also have
and telephony systems which | assurance plans in place o monitor,
are critical to our operations Inspect and malntaln our most
and fallure of these systems, critical assets.
for example our remote We also have security measures in
monitoring system, could place and contingency plans to
have a significant effect. malntain supplles in the event of
_ failure.
Financial risks
8 Changing demographics and Group-wide We already provide We regularly revalue our schemes

fluctuations in the investment
market may affect our ability
to fund pensions promises
sustainably.

slgnificant funding. We may
be called upon to provide
more monay fo reduce
deficits in our pensions
schames.

and monltor our investment
performance and will continue to
monitor the performance of our
pensions investments and to work
closely with our third party advisors
to ensure that the schemes are
managed effectively.
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Financial review

Chief Financial Officer’s review

The group has delivered a good financiat performance in 2014/15, underpinned by continuing improvements and
growth in our regulated business, and continued revenue growth in our non-regulated Severn Trent Services
business.

On 13 May 2015 we announced the sale of our Water Furification business to Industrie De Nora. The disposal
follows a successful turnaround of the business, and will enable our reorganised Business Services division to
focus on its core strengths in water, waste, retail and renewables. The Water Purification business has been
classified as a discontinued operation, and our prior year results have been restated to reflect this.

We made some important changes to our financing structure at the end of the year, to reduce short term financing
risk and increase exposure to currently low floating interest rates. These included replacing our revolving credit
facility with a new £900 million facility and negotiating and drawing down on a new £530 million European
Investment Bank (EIB} facility. In addition, we cancelled some floating to fixed interest rate swaps and purchased
€183 million of our fixed rate €700 million Eurcbond loan, due for repayment in March 2016, which resulted in a
one time financing charge of £6.6 million in 2014/15. As a result, we have reduced the interest cost on £415
million of debt and swaps from an average interest rate of 5.1% to a floating rate, currently 1%. This has moved
the proportion of our debt that is at floating rates to 10%, in line with our stated policy for AMPE to increase the
level of variable rate debt. Further details are set out in the Treasury management and liquidity section below.

A brief overview of our financial performance for the year is as follows:

Group turnover from continuing operations was £1,801.3 million (2013/14; £1,756.7 millicn), an increase of 2.5%.
Underlying PBIT" increased by 3.2% to £540.3 million (2013/14: £523.8 miflion).

Net exceptional charges before tax totalled £18.7 million (2013/14: £15.2 million).

Reported group PBIT' was £521.6 million {2013/14: £508.6 million).

Net finance costs were £240.0 million (2013/14: £247 9 million).

1. PBIT is profit before interest and tax; underlying PBIT excludes exceptional items as set out in note 8.

Regulated — Severn Trent Water
In Severn Trent Water, underlying PBIT increased by 3.9% to £539.0 million (2013/14: £518.6 million).

Turnover increased by £36.4 million, or 2.4%, to £1,581.2 million as a result of price increases of 1.5%
(£23.0 million); higher consumption from metered commercial customers (£1.9 million); growth, net of meter
optants (£1.0 million) and other increases including tariff mix effects of £10.5 million.

Operating costs, excluding depreciation and infrastructure maintenance expenditure, increased in line with
expectations by 3.1% to £619.1 million.
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Increasel{decrease)

2015 2014
£m £m £m %
Employee costs 2484 242.0 6.4 2.6
Hired and contracted 163.8 154.1 9.7 8.3
Costs capitalised {82.4) (92.6) 0.2 0.2
Raw materlals and consumables 47.4 42.5 49 11.6
Pawer 63.9 65.3 (1.4) {2.1)
Bad debts 264 313 (2.9) (9.3}
Rates and service charges 113.2 112.3 0.9 0.8
Other 46.4 454 1.0 2.2
619.1 600.3 18.8 31

Employee costs were 2.6% higher, broadly in line with annual pay inflation. The benefits of the recent
reorganisation, which included a reduction of 500 roles, will be seen from 2015/16. Hired and contracted costs
were 6.3% higher as we invested in key operational areas, such as sewer blockages and mains cleaning, to make
a fast start in AMP6. The benefits of this will flow through to 2015/16. Raw materials and consumables increased
by £4.9 million due to inflation and additienal spending on water quality improvements.

Power costs decreased by £1.4 million. We continue to make good progress on our renewable energy generation,
and generated the equivalent of 28% of gross consumption from self-generation in the year, providing an effective
hedge against energy price volatility.

Bad debt charges improved to 2.0% of turnover (UK GAAP), down from 2.2% in 2013/14 as we saw the benefit of
improved collection of older household debt and a range of social tariffs which help customers pay their bills.

Depreciation increased by £2.7 million, due to the growing asset bage. Infrastructure maintenance expenditure
declined £5.5 million due to operational efficiencies and programme phasing as we closed out AMPS.

We completed our planned capital programme for AMPS, investing £647.4 million (UK GAAP, net of grants and
contributions) during the year. Included in this total was net infrastructure maintenance expenditure of
£134.8 million, which is charged to the income statement under IFRS.

Non-regulated — Severn Trent Services

2015 2014 Increase/
Restated {decrease)
£m £m %
Turnover
Senvices as raported . 216.3 210.2 2.9%
Impact of exchange rate fluctuations - (3.5)
Like for like 246.3 208.7 4.6%
Underlying PBIT
Services as reported 9.7 13.3 (27.1%)
Like for Hke 9.7 13.3 (27.1%}

The results above exclude the Water Purification business, which has been classified as a discontinued operation.
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In Severn Trent Services we saw good growth in turnover, up 4.6% on a constant currency basis to £216.3 million.

Underlying PBIT was down £3.6 million to just under £10 million. This was due to business development
investment in US concessions and a number of one off favourable items in the prior year.

Corporate and other

Corporate overheads totalled £13.2 million (2013/14: £13.6 million). Our other businesses generated a net profit of
£1.1 million (2013/14: £2.5 million),

Exceptional items before tax
MNet exceptional operating costs totalled £18.7 million (2013/14: £15.2 miflion) and included:
+ Inour regulated business:

» £28.3 million of restructuring costs to transform the business for AMPS, reducing the cost base and de-
layering the management levels; offset by

+ £7.7 million of profit on disposal of property.
» Inour non-regulated business:

» £4.4 million of restructuring costs to prepare the business for retail competition in AMP6 and to reduce the
cost base; offset by

» the release of 3 £6.3 miilion provision previously made against accounts receivable in ftaly.

Net finance costs

The group’s net finance costs were £240.0 million, down from £247.9 million in the prior year. The benefits of
lower interest rates (in particular on our RPI linked debt) were partially offset by higher levels of net debt.

In addition, in March 2015 the group reduced 2015/16 financing risk by purchasing approximately 26% of the
€700.0 million, fixed rate Eurobond which is due for repayment in March 2016. This led to a charge of £6.6 million
in finance costs.

Profit before tax

Underlying group profit before tax increased by 8.8% to £300.4 million (2013/14: £276.1 million). Group profit
before tax was £148.2 million (2013/14: £318.9 miltiocn).

Taxation
The total tax charge for the year was £32.7 million (2013/14: credit of £152.9 million).

The current year tax charge for 2014/15 was £37.8 million (2013/14: £55.8 million before exceptional tax). The
deferred tax credit was £5.1 million (2013/14: charge of £21.5 million before exceptional tax).

In the prior year there was an exceptional current tax credit of £52.2 million and an exceptional deferred tax credit
of £171.0 million.

See note 13 for further detail.

The underlying effective rate of current tax on continuing operations, excluding prior year credits, exceptional tax
credils and tax on exceptional items and financial instruments, calculated on profit from continuing operations
before tax, exceptional tems and gains/(losses) on financial instruments was 17.6% (2013/14: 17.3%).

Wae expect the effective rate of curent tax, as defined above, for 2015/16 to be in the range of 17% to 19%.
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Reported group profit for the period and earnings per share

After a profit of £4.7 million (2013/14: loss of £36.9 million) from discontinued operations, reported group profit for
the period was £120.2 million (2013/14: £434.9 million). The decrease was a result of a fair value loss on financial
instruments, largely due to lower expectations for future interest rates, and an exceptional tax credit in the prior
year which arose from an agreement with HMRC on a long standing discussion regarding overpayments of tax in
prior periods.

Adjusted basic earnings per share (from continuing operations, before exceplional items, gains/{losses) on
financial instruments, current tax on gainsf{losses) on financial instruments and deferred tax) was 107.2 pence
{2013/14: 82.5 pence) (see note 15). The main drivers of the increase were an increase in underlying PBIT, as
described above, a lower interest charge due to lower RP{ year on year, and a lower current tax charge arising
from adjustments of prior year computations.

Basic eamings per share were 49.9 pence {2013/14: 182.1 pence). .

Group cash flow

2015 2014
£m £m
Cash genarated from operations 760.1 7302
Net capltal expenditure (416.1) (463.9)
Net interest paid {218.2) (204.5)
Payment to close out interest rate swaps (139.2) -
Tax (paidyrecelved (28.6) 272
Other cash flows (1.4} (0.6)
Free cash flow (43.4) 88.4
Acquisitions and disposals - (11.4)
Dividends (196.9) (185.3)
Net issue of shares {16.7) 2.3
Change in net debt from cash flows (257.0) {106.0)
Non cash movements (48.1) (44.2)
Change in net debt (305.1) {150.2)
Net debt 1 April (4,447.5) {4,297.3)
Net debt at 31 March {4,752.8) (4,447 5)
Net debt comprises:
Cash and cash equivalents 176.7 123.2
Barnk loans {1,279.2) {594.9)
Cther loans (3,467.5) (3,826.0}
Finance leases (180.0) {201.2)
Cross currency swaps hedging debt (2.6) 51.4
{4,752.6) (4,447.5)
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Tax paid was £28.6 million {2013/14: received £27.2 million). The group has obtained agreement with HMRC to
offset quarterly tax payments for the current year against a refund of overpayment of tax in prior periods, as
outlined in the prior year results announcement.

Net debt at 31 March 2015 was £4,752.6 million (2013/14: £4,447.5 million). Balance sheet gearing (net debt/net
debt plus equity) at the year end was 85.2% (2013/14: 80.3%). Net debt, expressed as a percentage of RCV at
31 March 2015 of £7,740 million was 61.4% (2013/14: 58.4%). The group’s net interest charge, excluding
gainsf(losses} on financial instruments and net finance costs from pensions, was covered 3.5 times (2013/14;
3.3 times) by profit before interest, tax, depreciation and exceptional items, and 2.3 times (2013/14: 2.1 times) by
underlying PBIT.

The fair value of net debt at 31 March 2015 is estimated to be £5,645.4 miilion (2013/14: £4,799.7 million)
compared to the book value of £4,752.6 million (2013/14: £4,447.5 million}. The difference between the book
value and fair value of debt arises from fixed rate and index linked debt where the interest rate on the debt is
higher than prevailing market rates at the year end.

Treasury policy and operations

Qur treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance with our Treasury Procedures Manuaf and Palicy
Statement. The treasury operation’s role is to manage liquidity, funding, investment and our financial risk,
including risk from volatility in interest and (to a lesser extent) currency rates and counterparty credit risk. The
board determines matters of treasury policy and its approval is required for certain treasury transactions. The
board has established a Treasury Committee to monitor treasury activities and to faciiitate timely responses to
changes in market conditions when necessary.

Our strategy is to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost
compatible with the need for continued availability. Our principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, is a
long term business characterised by multi year investment programmes. Our strategic funding objectives reflect
this and the liquidity position and availability of committed funding are essential to meeting our objectives and
obligations. We therefore aim for a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding
sources at the best possible economic cost. The group also seeks to maintain an investment grade credit rating
and a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure,

We use financial derivatives solely o manage risks associated with our normal business activities. We do not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for financial trading.

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which is fully hedged, our business does not involve significant
exposure to foreign exchange transactions. We have investments in various assets denominated in foreign
currencies, principally the US dollar and the euro. Our cusrent policy is to hedge an element of the currency
translation risk associated with certain foreign currency denominated assets.

The group issues notes in foreign currency under Its European Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme and uses
€ross currency swaps o convert the proceeds 10 sterling. The effect of these swaps is that interest and principal
payments on the borrowings are denominated in sterling and hence the currency risk is eliminated. The foreign
currency notes and the cross currency swaps are recorded in the balance sheet at their fair values and the

. thanges in fair values are taken to gains/(losses) on financial instruments in the income statement. Since the
terms of the swaps closely match those of the underlying notes, such changes tend to be broadly equal and
opposite.

Treasury management and liquidity

In February and March 2018, the group took a number of financing steps in readiness for AMP6, aimed at
reducing short term refinancing risk and increasing expesure to currently low floating interest rates. Thase steps
included:
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s Entering into a new £530.0 million, floating rate, nine year facility with the E!B. At 31 March 2015, £200 million
of the facility had been drawn, with the balance drawn down in April 2015.

+ On 31 March 2015 the group purchased €182.6 million of its €700 million Eurcbend which is due for
repayment in March 2016. On the same date the equivalent amount of the corresponding swap, paying fixed
rate 6.325%, was cancelled. '

« in March 2015 the group cancelled floating to fixed interest rate swaps with a notional principal amount of
£275 miltion, for a cash payment of £139.2 millien. The average fixed rate interest on the swaps was 5.2%.
The cash payment was charged against the fair value liability on the balance sheet, and £11 million that had
been recognised in reserves was recycled through the income statement.

e On 18 March 2015 the group amended and extended the revolving credit facility which was due to mature in
October 2018. The new £900 million facility has a period of five years, with two one year extension options
exerclsable with lender consent. At 31 March 2015 £485 million of the facility was drawn.

The group continues to ensure it has adequate liquidity to support business requirements and provide headroom
for downside risk. At 31 March 2015 the group had £176.7 million (2013/14: £123.2 miliion) in cash and cash
equivalents and committed undrawn facilities amounting to £745.0 mifiion (2013/14: £500 miliion).

The group is funded for its projected investment and cash flow needs up to at least July 2016.

Cash is invested in deposits with financial institutions benefiting from high credit ratings and the list of
counterparties is reviewed regularly.

The group's policy for the management of interest rate risk requires that not less than 45% of the group’s
borrowings should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or forward rate
agreements. Going forward, the group intends to manage its existing debt portfolio and future debt issuance to
increase the proportion of debt which is at floating rates. At 31 March 2015, interest rates for 67% (2013/14: 77%)
of the group’s net debt of £4,752.6 million were at fixed rates of interest.

The group uses financial derivatives solely to hedge risks associated with its normal business activities including:
+ Exchange rate exposure on borrowings denominated in foreign currencies;

» Interest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings; and

e Exposures to increases in electricity prices.

Accounting rules require that these derivatives are revalued at each balance sheet date and, unless the criteria for
cash flow hedge accounting are met, the changes In value are taken to the income statement. If the risk that is
being hedged does not impact the income statement in the same period, then an accounting mismatch arises
from the hedging activities and there is a net charge or credit to the income statement.

Derivatives are typically held to their full term and mismatches will net out over the life of the instrument. The
changes in value that are recorded during the lives of the derivatives, unless crystallised, do not represent cash
flows. Therefare the group presents adjusted earnings figures that exclude these non-cash itemns. In exceptional
circumstances the group may terminate swap contracts before their maturity date. The payments or receipts
arising from the cancellations are charged or credited against the liability or asset on the balance sheet, and
amounts previously recognised in reserves are recycled through the income statement.

The group holds interest rate swaps with a net nofional principal of £583.7 million and cross currency swaps with
a net notional principal of £396.6 million, which economically act to hedge the interest rate risk on floating rate
debt or the exchange rate risk on certain foreign currency borrowings. However, the swaps do not meet the hedge
accounting rules of IAS 39 and therefore the changes in fair value are taken to gains/{losses) on financial
instruments in the income statement. During the year there was a charge of £183.4 million in relation o these

instruments,
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An analysis of the amounts charged to the income statement in the period is presented in note 12 to the financial
statements.

The group manages its electricity costs through a combination of self generation, forward price contracts and
financial derivatives. The group has fixed around 100% of the wholesale energy cost for the first two years of
AMPE and around 50% of the energy cost for the third year of AMPG.

The group’s long term credit ratings are:

Long term ratings Severn Trent Ple Severn Trent Water
Moody's _ Baat A3
Standard and Poor's BBB- BBB+

The outleok is stable for Standard and Poor's, negative for Mocdy's,

Pensions

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes for its UK employees, of which the Severn Trent
Pension Scheme (STPS) is by far the largest. The most recent formal triennial actuarial valuations and funding
agreements were carried out as at 31 March 2013 for both schemes. As a result, deficit reduction contributions of
£40 million in 2013/14, £35 million in 2014/15, £15 million in 2015/16 and £12 million per annum in subsequent
years to 2024/25 were agreed. Further payments of £8 million per annum through an asset backed funding
arrangement will also continve to 31 March 2032,

As previously announced, the defined benefit schemes closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015. On 1 April
2015, members of the defined benefit schemes were transferred to the defined contribution Severn Trent Group
Personal Pension scheme, which was opened on 1 April 2012,

The key actuarial assumptions for the defined benefit schemes have been updated for these accounts. On an IAS
19 basis, the estimated nst position of the schemes was a deficit of £468.9 million as at 31 March 2015. This
compares to a deficit of £348.3 million as at 31 March 2014. The movements in the net deficit can be summarised
as follows: ’

£m
Present value at 1 April 2014 ) {348.3)
Change in actuarial assumptions {336.8)
Asset outperformance 193.4
Contributions in excess of income statement charge 22.8
Present value at 31 March 2015 (468.9)

Accounting policies and presentation of the financial statements

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards that have been endorsed by the European Union.

The Strategic Report, as set out from the inside front cover through to page 46, has been approved by the board.

By order of the board

- Bronagh Kennedy

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
21 May 2015
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Chairman’s letter

UK Corporate Governance Code Compllance Statement

The version of the Corporate Governance Code applicable to the current reporting period is the September 2012 UK Corporate Governance
Code (Govemnance Code). The Govenance Cods is avallable on the Financial Reporting Council's website {www.frc.org.uk).

For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2015, Sevem Trent was compiiant with the Governance Coda, except that the adequacy of
arrangements in relation to the company's whistleblowing pracedures falls within the remit of the Corporate Responsibiiity (CR) Committee,
rather than the Audit Committee. The CR Committes's remit is to deal with any allegations from employees relating to any breaches under
Severn Trent's Code of Conduct. The Audit Committee reviews reports of matters arising in respect of financial or internal control matters from
the company's whistleblowing procedures and the company’s procedures for preventing and detecting fraud and bribery, and receives reports
on non-compliance.

The board considers that these arrangements are appropriate.

Andrew Duff

Dear shareholder

| am pleased o introduce the Governance Report for 2015 on behalf of your board. My rele, together with the
board, is to ensure that Severn Trent operates to the highest standards of corporate governance to effectively and
efficiently deliver the group's strategic objectives and to meet its obligations to the company’s stakeholders.
Ultimately, good governance requires that the board has access to timely, relevant and robust information, so it
can run the business effectively and promote the long term success of the company in the best interest of all
stakeholders.

The Annual Report remains the principal means of reporting to our shareholders on the board’'s governance
policies and therefore | welcome this opportunity to set out how the main and supporting principies of good
corporate governance, as set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code (Governance Code), have been applied
in practice.

During the year the Severn Trent Charter of Expectations was introduced to ensure best practice corporate
governance throughout the business in line with the group’s culture, values and behaviour. in turn, we have also
overseen a review of our Code of Conduct, ‘Doing the right thing — the Severn Trent way’, across our businesses
and reviewed our supporting group policies and our behaviours model. Further details of these can be found on
our website (www.severntrent.com).

This report marks the end of the first year of Liv Garfield as Chief Executive Officer. The board has continued to
support her approach to the business with key strategic changes to both the board and Executive Committee
taking place in the past 12 months, which are outlined in this report.

The planned retirement from the board of two long serving directors during the year gave us the opportunity to
think carefully about the composition and size of our board going forward. We decided that a smaller board would
enable us to be more nimble in a changing, more competitive regulatory environment. We have therefore reduced
the board from eleven directors to eight.

" Richard Davey stepped down as a non-executive director, having served nine years and was succeeded by

Martin Lamb as Senior Independent Director and by Philip Remnant as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. After almost ten years in post, Michael McKeon retired as Chief Financial Officer and was succeeded

by James Bowling.
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Dr Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith retired from the board, but have remained key members of the
Executive Committee.

The board would like to thank Richard, Michael, Tony, Martin and Andy for their commitment, service and
contribution over many years.

I firmly believe that we will continue to deliver value and achieve sustainable growth for our company through the
successful mix of good governance, a clear strategy with a supporting business plan, effective risk management
and a strong organisational structure in place to execute it.

Andrew Duff
Chairman
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Governance report

Group Authorisation Arrangements

The Group Authorisation Arrangements (GAA) are the framework through which the Severn Trent Plc board
authorises the right people, at the right level, to take important decisions as we manage legal, financial and
administrative issues throughout the group. The GAA are designed to facilitate good control, efficient decision-
making and demonstrable compliance. These arrangements are reviewed annuatly, with the last review
undertaken in March 2015.

The flow of authority is from the Severn Trent Plc board to the Chief Executive and the Severn Trent Executive
Committee. In respect of certain issues, the delegated authority is subject to an obligation to work with specialist
business services areas (such as Tax, Treasury, Group Finance and Company Secretariat), which provide
additional expertise and a group-wide perspective.

Governance of subsidiaries

The membership of the board of the listed company, Severn Trent Pic, is the same as that of its regulated
subsidiary, Severn Trent Water Limited. This structure was implemented in 2007 to ensure that the highest
standards of corporate governance were applied at the regulated subsidiary level and to promulgate greater
visibility and supervisicn of Severn Trent Water Limited by the Plc board. Severn Trent Water Limited will
therefore be voluntarily complying with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code (the Governance Code) to
ensure these high standards aiso apply to it.

The two companies operate as distinct legal entities. The boards comply with the Severn Trent Plc Board
Governance document and the Severn Trent Water Limited Matters Reserved to the board. They are assisted
through the management of separate agendas, meetings and minutes by the Company Secretariat and advised in
their meetings by the Company Secretary where appropriate.

Subsidiary company boards are required to be managed scrupulously with respect to legal, fiscal and
administrative matters. In particular, the relationships between Severn Trent Water Limited and cur other
businesses such as Severn Trent Business Services are monitored and controlled to ensure that our obligations
under competition law and regulatory requirements are complied with in respect of all transactions between them,
or with third parties.

This Corporate Governance report describes the manner in which the company has applied the principles set out
in the Governance Code during the year. The Governance Code sets out five key principles: Leadership,
Effectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration and Relations with shareholders. This report demonstrates how the
company has applied best practice corporate governance in thesa key areas.

Leadership

Charter of Expectations

During the year the Severn Trent Charler of Expectations has bean adopted to promote and implement best practice corporate
govemnance. The Charter sets out the role profiles and expectations of all key positions on the group's boards (together
referred to as the ‘board’), and board committees, and also reflects the board's responsibility for setting the tone for the group’s

culture, values and behaviour.

It is envisaged that having such expectations clearly documented will assist in the assessment of the effectiveness of the
board and its committees, and that of individual directors.

The Charter of Expectations is published and available on our wabsite (www.severntrent.com) so that there is complete
transparency of the standards we set ourselves for all of our stakeholders.

The performance of the board and board committees and of each director will be measured against these expectations.

Governance
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Board membership

2014715 saw a number of changes to the board's composition due to carefully managed succession planning and evaluation of
its required skills and capabilities. As a consequence, it was announced that the board would be reduced from eleven to eight
directors, with effect from 23 January 2015.

Richard Davey stepped down as non-executive director, having served nine years and was succeeded as Senior Independent
Director by Martin Lamb who has been on the board for six years and by The Hon. Philip Remnant as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Michas! McKeon ceased to be a director and Chief Financial Officer on 1 April 2015 having served
almost ten years. Michael was succeeded by James Bowling effective the same date.

Dr. Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith retired from the board, but remained members of the Severn Trent Executive
Committee and retained their exacutive responsibilities in their areas of remit.

The board would like to thank Richard, Michael, Tony, Martin and Andy for their service.

These changes will support the effectiveness of the board with an appropriate balance of innovation, experience,
independence and challenge to ensure effective decision making.

Photographs of the members of the board, together with their biographies and a description of the complementary skiils and
diverse experience that they bring to bear, can be found on pages 48 and 48.

In accordance with the Governance Code, al! the directors will retire at this year's Annual General Meeting {AGM) and submit
themseives for elaction ar re-election by the shareholders.

Details of our policy on diversity in the boardroom are provided in the Nominations Commitiee report on pages 61 and 62.

Reporting obligations
As a public listed company, the company is required to comply with a range of reporting obligations set out by law
and regulation.

The company recognises the importance of effective communication as a key part of building shareholder value
and that, to prosper and achieve growth, it must earn the trust of security holders, employees, customers,
suppliers, communities, regulators and other stakeholders, by being open in its communications and consistently
delivering on its commitments. )

The company announces its resuits on a half yearly basis and aiso provides quarterly trading updates to the
market,

The Chief Executive has established a Disclosure Committee, chaired by the Chief Financial Officer, to oversee
the company’s compliance with its disclosure obligations and to consider the materiality, accuracy, reliability and
timeliness of information disclosed. The committee also oversees the delivery of an integrated plan incorparating
. all elements of the year end reporting process, namely the group’s preliminary results announcement and Report
and Accounts, the company’s AGM, the statutory and regulatory accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited, the
Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement and the Annual Regulatory Performance Report.
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Role of the Chairman

‘The role of Andrew Duff, your Chairman, is to lead a unitary board, facilitating the contrbution of its members at its meetings,
and to be respansible for ensuring that the management and processes of the board are maintained in line with the Code of
Conduct and the Charter of Expectations.

Agoendas for board meetings are agreed by the Chairman in consultation with the Chief Executive, the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary, although any director may request that an item be added to the agenda. The Chairman demonstrates
effective and ethical leadership for the company, and has authority to act and speak for the board between its meetings,
including engaging with the Chief Executive, and providing support and advice where appropriate. He reports to the board and
committea Chairmen on decisions and actions taken between meetings of the board and ensures effective working relations
with open lines of communication with other group executive committes membars. He also meets with the non-executive
directors without the executive directors present, to consider the performance of the executive directors, to maintain the
necessary depth and breadth of knowledge and skills to ensure the effectiveness of the board as a team.

The Chairman maintains effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders by meeting with them in person to
ensure the board maintains an understanding of the views of major investors and other key stakeholders, whilst promoting

highest standards of corporate govermnance.

Senior Independent Non-executive Director

Martin Lamb replaced Richard Davey as your Senior Independent Non-executive Directar with effect from 23 January 2015.
Martin is a member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees. The board has agreed that Martin will act as
Chairman of the board in the event thal the Chairman is unable to do so for any reason. The Senior Independent Director
supports the Chairman in the delivery of his objectives and ensures that the views of all major shareholders and stakeholders
are conveyed to the directors, to help develop an understanding of any key issues and concerns. He is available to all
shareholders should they have any concems, if the normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive or Chief Financial Officer
have failed to resolve them or for which such contact is inappropriate.

The Senior Independent Director meets with non-executive directors, without the Chaimman present, at least annually, and
taking into account the views of the executive directors, leads the non-executive directors in the angoing monitoring and
avaluation of the performance of ihe Chairman, including communicating the resulis of such.

Together with the Nominations Committee, he takes responsibility for ensuring that an ordery succession planning process is
in place, in relation io beth the role of the Chairman and the board in general.

Non-executive directors

Your non-executive directors are appointed to the board to contribute their independent extemnal expertise and experience in
areas of importance to the group. Their competencies include corporate finance, including mergers and acquisitions, general
finrance, corporate strategy, customer care, property, environmental and technology matters, engineering, regulation, general
management, transformational change, science, regulatory compliance and supply chain management. They also provide
independent challenge and rigour to the board's deliberations and are encouraged to make Independent assessments of the
group's competencies. The non-executive directors, led by the Senior Independent Non-executive Director, meet without the
Chairman at least once a year for them to appraise the Chairman’s performance and they have other meetings during the year
without executive directors present,

As part of the board effactiveness review, the board has reviewed the status of the non-executive directors and considers them
all to be independent in character and judgement as defined by the Governance Code.
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Formal schedule of matters reserved for the board

The processes in place regarding the board's tasks and activities and the matters specifically reserved for the
-board’s decision making, the role of and the authority delegated to the Chief Executive, the accountability of the
Chief Executive for that authority, and guidance on managing the relationship between the board and the Chief
Executive are documented. In addition to these processes, we have adopted the Severn Trent Charter of
Expectations to ensure best practice corporate governance throughout the business.

These processes are reviewed annually, )

The board has reserved the following for its own consideration:
» Strategy and Management

e Structure and Capital

» Financial Reporting and Controls

e Internal Controis

+ Contracts and Policies

e Board Membership and other appointments, including the appointment of the Chief Executive, directors and
the Company Secretary

e Remuneration

» Delegation of Authority including the Group Authorisation Arrangements (GAA) which sets out the group’s
delegated approval limits

« The approval or adoption of documents, including the Annual Report and Accounts, required to be made by
the board by the company's GAA, constitutional documents, statute or external regulation.

Chief Executive

Responsibility has been defegated to the Chief Executive to develop and implement the group’s strategy and overall
commercial objectives. The non-executive directors, led by the Chairman, appraise the Chief Executive’s performance
annually. Liv Garfield is empowared to take all decisions and actions that further the company's strategy and policies and
which in her judgement are reasonable, having regard to the limits which apply to her role as Chlef Executive, as set oul in the
company’s Group Authorisation Arrangements (GAA). She will ensure a continual dialogue with the Chairman on the strategic
issues facing the group including forthcoming complex, contentious or sensitive issues which may affect the group, of which
the Chairman might not be aware. The Chief Executive is required to promote and conduct the affairs of the group with the
highest standards of integrity, probity and corporate governance.

Executive directors

The executive directors support the Chief Executive in effectively leading Severn Trent towards the achievement of its strategic
objectives and implement the strategy decisions taken by the board. Thay are committed to doing this in a responsible way
which takes account of commitment to our Code of Conduct, the long term sustainable and responsible stewardship of the
business and the delivery of an outstanding customer experience, the best value service and environmental leadership. This
year saw our number of executive directors reduce from five o two, with Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith stepping
down, allowing for a slimmer board structure.

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, Bronagh Kennedy, and the Company
Saecrotariat team. Bronagh is responsible for ensuring that the board operates in accordance with the governance framework it
has adopted and that there is an effective flow of information to the board and its committees and between senior

- management and the non-executive directors.

Governance
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The appointment and resignation of the Company Secretary is a matter for considaration by the board as a whole.

Independent advice
Directors have access to independent professional advice at the company’s expense on any matter relating to their
responsibilities.

Terms and conditions of appointment

The terms and conditions of appointment of the directors are available for inspection by any person at the
company’s registered office during normal business hours. They will also be made available before and during the

AGM.
Effectiveness

Board meetings
There are regularly scheduled meetings of the board and of its permanent committees throughout the year and any additional
meetings and ad hoc committee meetings are convened as and when required.

Papers, including minutes of board and Executive Committees held since the previous board mesting and performance

reports, are circulated approximately a week in advance of each meeting.

There is a documented procedure in place which allows directors to take indapendent professional advice in the course of their

duties and all directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. If a director has a concem over any

unresolved matter he or she may require the Company Secretary to minute that concern.

The chart opposite shows how the board has spent its time at scheduled board meetings. The board's agenda is normally

structured as follows:

«+ Standing items — regular reports from the Chief Executive and Chief Financia} Officer on the operational and
financial performance of the business, regulatory matters and external affairs and from the Company
Secretary on governance issues.

+ Non Standing ltems — Strategic Discussion Topics and ad hoc matters requiring approval, discussion or
noting by the board.

The board monitors the performance of Severn Trent Water Limited and Sevemn Trent Business Services at every meeting and

recelves monthly updates on performance against the KPls and ODls stated on pages 10 and 11 of the Strategic report. The

board also reqularly discusses reports on capital efficiency. The board monitors governance matters and developments in best

practice through the Govemance report provided by the Company Secrelary, a slanding item on the board agenda. The board

also formally reviews compliance with the Govemance Code on an annual basis and reviews conflicts and other arising

disclosure requirements bi-annually.

As part of its annual work plan, the board reviewed and approved all financial results announcements, the Annual Report and
Accounts, the PR14 Five Year Plan and dividend payments and all changes to the composition of the board and its

committees.
During the year, seven board meetings were held, with the attendance figures of these meetings detailed below.

Director Meetings attended

Andrew Duff n
Tony Ballance 6/6
John Coghlan® 717
Richard Davey 6/6
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[ Director Meetings attended
Gordon Fryett T
Liv Garfield Hr
Martin Kane 6/6
Martin Lamb 77
Michae! McKeon . , 77
Baroness Noakes*™ 6/7
Andy Smith 6/6
Dr Angela Strank : 717 -

* John Coghlan was appointed at the May 2014 board meeting.

** Apologies were given by Baroness Noakes at the July board meeting. Baroness Noakes retired following the
July 2014 meeting.

The above figures take into account board changes detaited in this Annual Report and Accounts.

Board committee meetings 2014/15

There were three committee meetings of the board convened throughout the year to consider such matters as
Sevemn Trent Plc's preliminary and interim results and interim management statements. ‘

Board Strategy Day and Preparation for PR14

In addition 1o formal meetings, the board attended a full day strategy session in Novernber 2014, where the board and
Executive Committee together considered the areas of future value creation across the Severn Trent group. Key areas of
discussions included the defivery model for AMP6, developmentis following recent legistative changes in the Water Act 2014
and how the company should respond, innovation and external matters impacting the company and its strategic options for
future growth.

Board committees

Thae four permanent committess of the board gssist in the execution of its responsibilities and the board has delegated some of
its responsibilities to those board committess. The committees assist the board by fulfilling their roles and responsibilities,
focusing on their specific activities, reporting to the board on decisions and actions taken, and making any necessary
recommendations in line with their terms of reference. The effectiveness of each of the committees has been reviewead during
the year as part of the externally facilitated board review. The terms of reference of each commities have also been upclated 1o
take account of best practice as part of their annual review.

The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Neminations Committees comply with the provisions of the
Govemance Code, except as reported on page 47, and are available for inspection, together with the terms of reference of the
Corporate Responsibility Committes, on our website (www.sevemtrent.com) or may be obtained on request from the Company

-Secretary.
Raports from the Chairs of these commitiees are set out on pages 61 to 65 and 89 to 85 of this report.
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Treasury Committee : .

In March 2015 the board approved the establishment of a new permanent commitiee of the board, the Treasury Committee, to
provide oversight of treasury activities in implementing the policies and the funding and treasury risk management plan
approved by the board, including inter alia: the measurement and management of interest rate, funding, counterparty credit,
liquidity and operational risks; funding proposals; relationship with rating agencies; debt investor relations; bank relationship
management and treasury intemal controls. The committee will review and approve the Group Treasury Policy Statements, at
least annually, and present an annual report to the board in relation to its activities. '

Training and development

Induction ,

On joining the board, a director’s induction needs are evaluated and then they are provided with a comprehensive and
personalised induction pack which includes information an our business, key operations and processes, how we are reguiated,
how we are shaping future regulation, strategic plans, financial reports, business plans and information on our governance
framework and directors’ roles and responsibilities and legal and regulatory duties,

Meetings are arranged with members of the executive management team and with external advisors who provide support to
the relevant board committees on which the directors may serve. Visits to operational and office sites across the group and
management presentations are also arranged for directors joining the board and subsequently throughout the year.

These arrangements have been followad for the induction of James Bowling, prior to him joining the board on 1 April 2015,
and John Coghlan following his appointment to the board on 23 May 2014.

Directors’ resource library

An online directors’ resource library and Continuing Professional Development (CPD) repositary has been created for use by
the directors, which is subject to periodic reviews and updates where appropriate. The library includes a Corporate
Govemance Manual, a Results Centre and Investor Relations section, Strategy Day materials and details of board training
sassions. It also includes a further reading section which contains regular updates and guidance on changes to legislation and

best pracfice.

Continulng Professional Development

All directors receive updates throughaut the year on matters such as changes to best practice govemance guidelines. The
directors also have access to professional development provided by external bodies and our advisors. CPD requirements were
considered, through Individual review meetings between the Chairman and each director, as part of the board effectiveness
review in 2014/15 and remain an integrai part of the development of our directors.

Board Effectiveness Review »

The effectivaness of the board is reviewed annually and an independent extarnally facilitated review of the effectiveness of the
board is conducted every three years. The board therefore conducted an externally faciliated board effectiveness evaluation

this year, the last having taken placs in November 2011.

In September 2014 a range of potential providers were identified and it was agreed that the evaluation exercise should be
facilitated by Manchester Square Partners (MSP). MSP has no other connection with the company.

MSP provided a questionniaire {0 explore the board's approach ta:-

« Strategy

« Challenges and risks

s Values and culture

s Role of the board, board dynamics and engagement

e Structure of the board, its composition and succession planning

Governance 58




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

+ (Governance and leadership

This was supplemented by a review of historic board papers and individual face-to-face interviews with all board directors, the
former Senior Independent Director, Richard Davey and the Company Secretary.

The Chairman also discussed the contribution of directors with each of them in person and the Senior Independent Director
conducted an evaluation of the Chairman with the assistance of the non-executive diractors.

The subsequent repert prepared by MSP was discussed by the Nominations Committee in its consideration of the re-election
of directors and it was also the subject of a presentation to the board.

" The report concluded that:-

* There was a strong level of consistency on the key purpose, role and focus areas for the board, which was
hard working, fully committed and engaged.

» There was a real openness and quality of debate at board mestings.

- Board structures and processes were efficient, effective and thorough. Committees were well chaired,
operating well and had good linkage to the board.

Areas for further focus were:-

» Allocation of agenda time to agreed key strategic pricrities.

=  Mentoring, talent management and succession planning below Executive Committee ievel.

»  Enhance KP's to reffect risks and operational performance against new AMP6 Regulatory Requirements.

Code of Conduct principles

Working relationships:

= Keeping everyone healthy and safe

e Supporting employees’ nights and diversity
Personal and business integrity

» Maintaining ethical and honest behaviour

Staying free from bribery and corruption

Keeping our communications open and responsible

Delivering excellent customer service

Our place in the world
e Working within the community

¢ Protecting our environment
¢ Standing up for what's right
+ Inall our hands

‘Doing the right thing — the Severn Trent way’ details the principles we work by. You can view our Code of
Conduct by visiting:
http:/imww severntrent.com/about-us/corporale-governance/code-of-conduct.
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Accountability

Code of Conduct: ‘Doing the right thing — The Sevem Trent way’

Every day Sevemn Trent employees have to make choices about what they do and how they do it. Most of the time itis clear
what the right thing to do is, whether it is about doing what is safe, doing the right thing for customers, doing what is right
ethically, and indeed what is right legally.

However, sometimes it is not so clear. ‘Doing the right thing — The Severn Trent way’ details the principles we work by. This is
our Code of Conduct and explains who we are, what we stand for and how we work. It also tells our customers, investors and
business partners that they can trust and rely on us. These principles apply to everyone in Severn Trent’s businesses, no
mattar where in the world they are based or what they do. They provide a common and consistent framework for responsible
business practices and set out the standards we need to fellow in our day-to-day activities.

During the year we have continued to roll cut the Code of Conduct across the group to make sure that everyone in the
business understands what it is all about and upholds our ethical standards. All employees are provided with a copy in their
local language as part of their induction. Training sessions are made avaiiable and all teams have been encouraged to discuss
it through regular communlication exercises.

We have also continued 1o roll out our Code of Conduct into our supply chain, as explained in the Corporate Responsibility
report on pages 66 to 68.

Policies

The Code of Conduct is supported by our group policies and our behaviours model. Further details of these ¢an be found on
our website {www.sevarntrent.com). During the year, we have completed the annual review of the policies and our behaviours
model to ensure they are fit for purpose.

Independence
The board considers each of the non-exscutive directors, seeking re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(AGM), to be independent in character and judgement.

Interests
No diractor had a material interest at any time during the year in any contract of significance with the company or any of its
subsidiary undertakings. ’

Conflicts of interest

The board has a full documented process in place to authorise situational conflicts in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and under the Company’s Aricles of Association. An annual review of conflicts is camried out with a
simultaneous review of the Sevemn Trent Gifts and Hospitality Register, and is incorporated into the year end process of

. verifying directors’ interests. Half yearly repotis are also made to the board of all directors’ conflicts and directors are reminded
of their obligations to disclose any potential conflicts.

At the beginning of every board mesting there is a standing ag anda item to consider and discuss whether any potential conflict
exists. If it does then the relevant director does not attend the meeting when that item is discussed,

During the 2014/15 financial year, the Nominations Committee discussed the proposed management of the situational conflict
created by Martin Lamb's Chairmanship of Evoqua Water Technologies. Given the benefits of Martin Lamb's valuable
contribution to the board as a recently retired Chief Executive and the relative insignificance of the Business Services Water
Purification business (WP’) in the context of the group as a whole, the committee considered that it could recommend
authorisation of the conflict and the proposed means of management by the board, provided such was made transparent and
kept under regular review to ensure that the poard's effectiveness was not compromised. The management of the conflict
through redaction of papers and his ahsence from discussions on WP specific matters was also adopled by the Audit
Committee in relation to his membership of such, in March 2015,

With the disposal of the Water Purification business, which was announced on 3 May 2015, this will no longer be necessary.
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Relations with shareholders

Retail shareholder engagement strategy
The board has an active shareholder engagement strategy, the main elements of which are set out below.

The Annual Report and Accounts is the principal means of communicating with shareholders. The group has adopted e-
communications as an alternative method of sending company Information. In March 2015 shareholders were re-consulted as
to their preferred method of receiving company communications. Following the consultation 54,417 shareholders (88%)
receive confirmation that the Annual Report is available to view online, whilst 7,494 (21%) continue to recelve a hard copy.

Our website (www.severntrent.com) contains an archive of annual reports together with other information relevant to investors.
This includes comprehensive share price information, financial results, company news and financial calendars. The company
offers a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP). Details of the DRIP are available on our website and the website of Equiniti, our
registrar. ‘

Institutional shareholders and analysts

The board recognises the impartance of representing and promoting the interests of its shareholders and that it is accountable
to shareholders for the performance and activities of the company and various mechanisms have been put in place to ensure it
remains in touch with key activities and developments, including: ’

e Monthly update of the key shareholder engagement activities carried out by the Executive Committee and the
Investor Relations team;

« A monthiy report, provided by Makinson Cowell, of our shareholder register, outlining the significant buyers
and sellers of Severn Trent shares; and

+ Regular summarias of sector research notes, allowing shareholders to understand the key opinions being
communicated to investors by analysts.

Presantations are made to shareholders and analysts following the release of the interim and year end results. The Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer regutarty meet shareholders during the year. The Chairman and Martin Lamb, the Senior
Independent Non-executive Director, have also met with shareholders separataly from executive directors in March 2015. All
major shareholders were offered a meeting and those who requested one were accommodated. The Chairman and Martin
L.amb were available to meet sharehclders at thair request throughout the year. The board receives written feedback from
Makinson Coweli following meetings with institutional sharehalders and monitors shareholder activity on a quarterly basis at its
meetings.

“The Culture of the organisation is one that is wiiling to listen and to engage - they are available if you need them.”

Communication with Institutional shareholders and the market

We are committed to serving the needs of our institutional investors and have an extansive programma of events designed to
give them access to key senior management and our Investor Relations team. The following table summarises some of the
main events of our engagement programme during 2014/15. The events were usually attended by the Chief Executive, the
Chisef Financial Officer and the Investor Relations team and comprised roadshows in the regions where our key investors are
situated, such as the UK, Europe and North America, as well as varicus conferences to meet with a wide range of institutionai
investors. In addition to these avants, the Chief Executive, the Chief Financial Officer and the Investor Relations team also
attended numerous ad hoc meetings with key investors over the course of the year.
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Events in 2014/15

May/June London Roadshow
Jure Bank of America Mermill Lynch Utilities Conference
June Brean Capital Global Resources and Infrastructure Conference
Juna Germany/Switzerland Roadshow
June North American Roadshow
July Private Client Roadshow —~ Londen

“July Edinburgh Roadshow
September Morgan Stanley Power & Utility Summit
September Private Cliant Roadshow — London
September Credit Suisse UK Utility Reverse Roadshow
November London Roadshow
February Dividend Roadshow
March North American Readshow
March Capital Markets Day

Our conversations with investors during 2014/15 have inevitably focused largely on Ofwat's PR14 review process and the
associated implications of such for Severmn Trent. Key concems for investors included the changes to the weighted average
cost of capital, the introduction of Totex and OD!s, opportunities around our capital structure and discussions with Ofwat
regarding our proposed investment in the Elan Valley Aqueduct. Other key areas of interest for investors have been the Water
Bill and tha upcoming changes to the regulatory framework, including water trading and the potential for future mergers, as
well as the appointment of the new Chief Executive, Liv Garfield, and her plans for the business.

During the year, the Investor Relations section of the Sevem Trent Plc wabsile was updated. The aim of this was to improve
navigation around the different areas, make it more intuitive and easier for investors to find the information they ware looking
for, as wall as providing additional content.

Capltal Markets Day

A key ovent in our timetable this year was our Capital Markets Day, beld on 17 March 2015. This followed the receipt of cur
Einal Determination on 12 Decamber 2014, which set out Severn Trent Water Limited's allowed returns, expenditure and
performance commitments for the next five year period from 2015-2020 {AMP 8) and the subsequent announcement of our
dividend policy. The purposa of the day was to sel out our strategy for the next five years and outline the plans being put in
place to enable us to mest the requirements set out in our Final Determination. On the day, 70 of our key investors and
analysts fravelled to Severn Trent Centre in Coventry. The day’s agenda included presentations from key management
personnel, covering financials, operational performance, regulatary reform and cur customer focus, as well as demonstrations
of some of the key initiatives belng implemented, such as the roll cut of new digital devices to employees in the field. The day
concluded with site tours of two strategically Important sites, Minworth Sewage Treatment Works and our recently opened food
waste digestion plant in Coleshill.

Members of the Water Forum
Members of the Water Forum comprise those with a statutory remit or key interest in the water industry.

The Water Forum is made up of nine organisations who represent our customers or have a stake in what we do.
Membership is currently under review.
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Organisation
CBIl West Midlands

Natural England

National Farmers Union

Citizens Advice Bureau — Coventry
East Midlands Councils
Environment Agency

Drinking Water Inspectorate
Scottish and Southern Energy
Consumer Council for Water

Customer engagement

As PR14 reached its concluding stages this year, we continued to engage with the Sevem Trent Water Forum. The Forum is a
multistakeholder group, independently chaired by Professor Bemard Crump of Consumer Council for Waler, established o
challenge the development of Severn Trent Water Limited's business plan for 2015-2020 to ensure that it takes into account
our customers' priorities. Members of the Forum comprise those with a statutory remit or key interest in the water industry. The
Forum is made up of nine organisations who represent ocur customers or have a stake in what we do.

The Forum met six times over the course of the year and discussed a range of issues including: our proposals to improve the
resilience of water suppfies to Birmingham; the development of an expanded range of support for customers who are
struggling to pay, and our proposals to improve river water quality In our region.

The Forum submitted two reports to Ofwat during the year setting out its independent views of these and other issues. Both
reports are available at sevemntrent.com/waterforum.

Following Severn Trenf Water Limited’s acceptance on 28 January 2015 of the Ofwat Final Determination, the role and
membership of the Forum during AMPS is under raview.

Voice of the Customer programme

We take serfously the voice of every Individual customer. We have launched a new SMS text survay so that all customers that
contact us are sent a survey by text for them to rate how we performed. This may relate to a call to our contact centre or an
incident in the field. By listening to what our customers say about the service we provide, we are able to give real time insights
to our agents in the contact centre and also to our colleagues in the field. We then call back every customer who scores us 1,
2 or 3 out of & for our service (1 being low, 5 being high). By doing this we can seek te understand the reason for the scora,
the situation that the customer is experiencing and resolve it for them. Qur resolutions team who conduct these calls also ook
at the root causa and make sustainable changes to our business.

Looking ahead to 2015/16

Leoking forward to 2015/16, we expect to see our extensive programme of investor events continuing. The early part of the
year will ba dominated by the start of the new reguiatory period, with investors keen 1o understand how well our pians and
strategy are being implemented as well as how well we are performing under the revised regulatory regime. The departure of
our former Chief Financial Officer, Michael McKeon, and the appointment of James Bowling on 1 April 2015 to replace him, wil
also be of key interest to our investors. Our programme of roadshows is expected to be maintained, and we intend to continue
to visit our key investors in Europe and Narth America, as wel] as those in the UK.
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Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company will be held at the International Convention Centre, Broad Strest,
Birmingham B1 2EA at 11am on Wednesday 15 July 2015,

Presentations are made on the group’s activities and performance during the year prior to the formal business of the meeting.
The Chairs of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility, Remuneration and Nominations Committees, together with all other

directors, attend the AGM.

The AGM gives shareholders an opportunity to feed back 1o the company on performance, management and the way we work
in a very direct fashion, through the questions they ask. Shareholders often also meet informally with directors and senior
management before and after the mesting.

The board encourages shareholders to attend the company’s AGM and to exercise their right to vote. The notice of meeting
and related papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed
on each substantially separate issue. The poll results from the 2015 AGM will be made available on our website after the

meeting.
VIEW ONLINE

Our online Annual Report and Accounts
Easier, greener and only a click away.

We're always looking to make life easier. Our online Annual Report is designed to help you read the information
that matters to you, wherever you may be, whether on the move or at your desktop. It reduces our paper use too,
which is kinder to the environment. We hope you like it.

www.severntrent.com/AR2015
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Nominations Committee
Andrew Duff

Chairman of the Nominatlons Commlttee

This report provides details of the role of the Neminations Committee and the work it has undertaken during the
year. The main purpose of the committee is to assist the board by keeping the composition of the board under
proactive review and conducting a rigorous and transparent process when making or renewing appointments of
directors to the board. It also advises the board on issues of directors’ conflicts of interest and independence
matters that may arise. The full terms of reference for the committee can be found on our website

(www .severntrent.com) and are also available from the Company Secretary.

Succession planning

When considering new appointments to the board, the committee oversees the preparation of a role specification
that is provided to an independent recruitment organisation retained to conduct a global search. In addition to the
specific skills, knowledge and experience deemed necessary, the specification contains criteria such as:

+ a proven track record of creating shareholder value;

* unquestioned integrity and a diversity of psychological mindset;
« acommitment to the highest standards of governance;

+ having the required time available {0 devote to the job;

» a strategic mindset, an awareness of market leadership and outstanding monitoring skills;
« apreparedness to gquestion, challenge and openly assess; and
+ an independent point of view.

During the year the committee considered:;

s  Succession planning for the board and board committees

s The board's diversity policy

» Talent management

+ Effectiveness of the board committees

+ Re-election of directors for the AGM

Attendance at scheduled committee meetings:

During the year, there were three scheduled meetings of the Nominations Committee. The attendance figures for
these meetings are detailed below.

Director Meetings attended
Lﬁwrew Duff 313

John Coghlan * 33

Richard Davey ** 2/3

Gordon Frystt 313

Liv Garfield *** 2/2

Martin Lamb 313
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Director Meetlngs attended
Philip Remnant 33
Dr Angela Strank 3/3

* John Coghlan was appointed as a member of the Nominations Committee in May 2014.
~ Richard Davey retired as a director on 23 January 2015.
++ | iv Garfield stepped down as a member of the Nominations Committee in October 2014,

Baroness Noakes was unable to attend the meeting in July and sent her apologies. Subsequently, Baroness
Noakes retired as a member of the Committee in July 2014,

The committee keeps under review the balance of skills on the board and the knowledge, experience, length of
service and performance of the directors. It also reviews their external interests with a view to identifying any
actual, perceived or potential conflicts of interest, including the time available o commit to their duties to the
company. The results of these reviews are important when the board considers succession planning, the
effectiveness of the board and its committees and the election and reappointment of directors. Members of the
committee take no part in any discussions concerning their own circumstances.

The members of the committee in 2014/15 were the non-executive directors of the board. Liv Garfield stepped
down as a member as of October 2014, and Richard Davey retired as director as at 23 January 2015.

In accordance with the Governance Code, the succession planning and searches in respect of the appointments
of Liv Garfield, effective 11 April 2014, and John Coghlan, effective 23 May 2014, during the year under review,
were disclosed in the Nominations Committee Report in the Annual Report and Accounts for 2014.

The committee initiated a process to search for a new Chief Financial Officer following Michael McKeon's
indication to the board of his desire to retire. Russell Reynolds was appointed as an advisor and was provided
with a role specification and a detailed brief of the desired candidate profile. The committee considered a list of
potential candidates and those shorilisted were interviewed by members of the board. Michael McKeon took no
part in any meetings refating to his succession.

Following this process, the board accepted the committee’s recommendation that James Bowling join the board
as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 1 April 2015.

In accordance with the requirements of the Governance Code, all members of the board will seek election or re-
election at the AGM on 15 July 2015. In April 2015, the committee formally reviewed the performance, contribution
and commitment of each of the directors retiring at this year's AGM and seeking reappointment, and supported
and recommended their reappointmant to the board. The committee confirmed that each director continues 1o
perform weli, on both an individual and collective basis, making a valuable contribution to the board’s deliberations
and demonstrating commitment to the long term interests of the company.

The committee also supported and recommended the election of the newly appointed directors, as detailed on
page 50, The appointment of these new executive and non-executive directors brings a wealth of new skills and
experience to the board and benefits from a significant investment of the committee in planning and executing the

SUCCession process.
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Diversity .

Further to the publication of the Davies Report, ‘Women on Boards’, in February 2011 and its third annual
progress repart in March 2014, boards of FTSE 350 companies have been encouraged to promote greater female
representation on corporate boards. Guidance from the Financial Reporting Council has also highlighted the
importance of greater diversily of psychological profile around the board table. Severn Trent has recently
developed a Board Divarsity Policy and recognises the importance of diversity in its broadest sense throughout its
organisation, including that of the board. 256% of the board are now women, including the Chief Executive. Even
more impaortantly, over 50% of the Executive Committee are now women. However, Severn Trent is committed to
increasing diversity at all levels of the company in all respects and not just gender.

As stated above, the Nominations Committee reviews the board effectiveness and composition each year and, in
particular, considers the balance of skilis, experience and independence of the board. It also considers

the benefits of all aspects of diversity, but without compromise as to the calibre of directors, when identifying
candidates for appointment.

The selection of female candidates to join the board, will therefore be made based on merit and the individual's
ability to contribute to the effectiveness of the board, which in turn will be dependent on the pool of female
candidates available. .

Severn Trent is seeking o build a diverse pool of future leaders and details of diversity initiatives being
undertaken are set out in the Corporate Responsibility Committee report on page 67.

As and when board appointment opportunities arise, we make full use of the procedures recommended by the

Davies Report and by the Governance Code to support this aspiration. All board appeintments have besn and will
continue o be based on merit and must be in the interests of all stakeholders.

A breakdown by gender of the number of persons who were directors of the company, senior managers and other
employees as at 31 March 2015 is set out opposite.

As at 31 March 2015, we had 2 female members on our board of 8 (representing 25%) and 5 female members out
of 9 on the Executive Committee {representing 50%). As at the date of this report, there are 2 female members on
our board of 8 (representing 25%) and 5 female members out of 9 on the Executive Committee (representing

55%).

Androw Duff
Chairman of the Nominations Committee
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Audit Committee
John Coghlan

Chairman of the Audit Committee

The committee assists the board in discharging its responsibilities for the integrity of the company's financial
statements, the assessment of the effectiveness of the systems of internal controls and monitoring the
effectiveness and objectivity of the internal and external auditors. it also oversees the assurance of regulatory
returns made by Sevarn Trent Water Limited to Ofwat. The role and the responsibilities of the committee are set
out in written terms of reference. These can be found on our website {www .severntrent.com} and are aiso
available from the Company Secretary.

This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee and the work it has undertaken during the year.

Composition of the Committee

The members of the commiitee during the year were John Coghlan as Chairman, Richard Davey and Philip
Remnant, whose experience and backgrounds are set out on pages 48 and 49. Richard Davey stepped down on
23 January 2015 and Martin Lamb became a member on 23 January 2015.

The board is satisfied that all the committee members have recent and relevant financial experience and that all
membaers of the committee remain independent.

Activities of the Committes

The members of the committee receive updates on financial reporting and the group’s regulatory framework in
various forms throughout the year. The Chairman, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Internal
Audit, Group Financial Controller and the external auditors normally attend, by invitation, all meetings of the
committee. Other members of senior management are also invited to attend as appropriate. The committee
regutarly holds private discussions with both the internal and external auditors.

In performing its duties, the committee has access to the services of the director of internal Audit, the Company
Secretary and, if required, external professional advisors.

Key areas of focus In 2014/15
The committee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board on the commiitee’s work. it met four times in
2014/15 and its work focused on the following key areas:

e financial statements and accounting policies;

» risk management and internal controls;

o oversight of internal and external audit;

s regulatory reporting aobligations of our subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited; and
« scrutinising the assurance process underpinning the PR14 submission.

The committee's performance was included in the review of the Board Committee’s effectiveness referred to on
page 56.
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Internal controls

=

Commiittee receives regular reports from intemal Audit and revisws management letters recelved from the extorna! auditor

Identifies principal risks and related controls

Provides guldance to risk owners on the board's tolerance for differant types of risk

Reviews the group's approach to cyber security and IT continuity

Reviews the procedures, systems and controls designed 1o prevent and detect fraud and bribery

Internal Audit

The Head of Intemal Audit and his team report on a day-to-day basls to the executive team

This work is summarised and reported to the committee on a regular basis

The Head of Internat Audit can reise any issues with the committes or its Chaiman at any time during the year

Financial statements and accounting policies

The committee looked carefully at those aspects of the financial statements which required significant accounting
judgements or where there was estimation uncertainty. These areas are explainad in note 4 of the financial
statements on page 106. The commitiee receives detailed reports from both the Chief Financial Officer and the
gxternal auditors on these areas and on any other matters which they believe should be drawn to the attention of
the committee. The committee also reviews the draft of the external auditars’ report on the financial statements,
with particular reference to those matters reported as carrying risks of material misstatement. The committee
discusses the range of possible treatments both with management and with the external auditors and satisfies
itself that the judgements made by management are robust and should be supported. The following areas wete
the most important ones for 2014/15: -

s restructuring costs relating to the business as a whole;

« the outcome of the triennial valuation of the pension scheme, the deficit calculation and the consistent
application of appropriate assumptions;

» the amount of the provisions held for tax liabilities and the calculation of current and deferred tax benefits in
relation to changes in industrial buildings allowances;

« the proposed disclosure of material items of income or expenditure which met the criteria for classification as
exceptional items; and

s the implications of and the proposed response to the new Financial Reporting Council reporiing requirements
on going concern and viability statements.

The committee reviewed and challenged the evidence and assumptiens underpinning the current use of the going

concern assumption in preparing the accounts and in making the statement made in the Directors' report that the

company is a going concern.

The committee reviewed the draft results announcements for interim and full year resuits and the proposed

.presentations to analysts and paid particular attention to ihe tone of the announcements and presentations to
consider their consistency with the financial statements.

in reviewing the financial statements, the committee receives input from the Disclosure Committes, which is
chaired by the Chief Financial Officer.
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The Audit Committee reviewed the outcome of the process (established in 2014) to confirm that the report and
accounts are ‘fair, balanced and understandable’. As last year, the Disclosure Committee undertook a detailed
review of the Annual Report and Accounts prior to making a recommendation that the board could make the fair,
palanced and understandable statements contained in the Directors’ responsibility statement on page 80. Deloitte
LLP (Deloitte) reported to the committee on its review of the half-year interim results and on its audit of the year
end financial statements.

Internal controls
The committee receives regular reports from Internal Audit in respect of its work on the internal control framework
and reviews management letters received from the external auditors.

The committee reviewed the processes for and outputs from our Enterprise Risk Management process, through
which the principal risks and related controls are identified. The committee discussed the approach fo
documenting the board’s risk appetite and providing guidance to risk owners on the board's tolerance for different
types of risk. in addition, it monitored the ongoing development of our compliance and assurance processes in
respect of the Key risks.

The committee reviews the procedures, systems and controls designed to prevent and detect fraud and bribery

and receives a log of incidents of fraud or bribery every six months, which includes the actions taken to investigate

and respond to the incidents. There were no material incidents during the year.
The committee also reviewed the group's approach to cyber security and IT continuity.
Furiher details of our internal control framework can be found in the Directors’ report on page 88.

internal Audit

The Head of Internal Audit and his team report on a day-to-day basis to the executive team on the effectiveness of
the group’s systems of internal controls and the adequacy of these systems to manage business risk and to
safeguard the group's assets and resources. This work is summarised and reported to the committee on a regular
basis and is a key element of the assurance that the committee receives on the risks and contrals in the group.
The Head of Internal Audit is free to raise any issues with the committee or its Chairman at any time during the

year.
The effectiveness of the Internat Audit function, the audit plan and budget are reviewed at least annuaily by the
committee. :

Policy on the provision of non-audit services

The company has approved a formal policy on the provision of non-audit services aimed at safeguarding and
supporting the independence and objectivity of the external auditors.

The policy sets out the approach to be taken by the group when using the services of the external auditors,
including requiring that certain services provided by the external auditors are pre-approved by the committee or its
Chairman.

it defines the non-audit services that may be provided by the external auditors and separately sets out those non-
audit services which are prohibited, since the independence of the external auditors could be threatened.

Non-audit services where the external auditors may be used include: audit-related services required by statute or
reguiation, tax compliance, due diligence on acquisitions and disposals, services related to fraud, Corporate
Responsibility report reviews and regulatory support.

The approval of the committee or its Chairman is always required if a non-audit service provided by the auditors is
expected to cost more than £100,000 or if non-audit fees for the year would exceed the amount of the audit fee.
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External auditors

Deloitte audits all significant subsidiaries of the group. Annually, the committee reviews the external auditors' audit
plan and reviews and assesses information provided by them confirming their independence and objectivity within
the context of applicable regulatory requirements and professional standards. The committee also reviews their
effectiveness, which involves: assessment of the auditors by the committee and key executives; and confirmation
that the auditors meet minimum standards of qualification, independence, expertise, effectiveness and
communication. These assessments are carried out prior to the committee recommending to the board that the
external auditors be proposed for reappointment at the AGM.

Deloitte were appointed auditors of the company in 2005, pursuant to a competitive tender process and since
2005 the company has annually considered the need to re-tender the external audit service.

The company is committed to complying with the provisions in the Governance Code in respect to audit tendering
along with the UK Competition and Markets Authority Order and the European Union rules on audit tenders. As a
result, the committee will formally tender the external audit service during the 2015/16 financial year. There are no
contractual obligations to restrict the committee's choice of extemal auditors.

The Audit Partner, currently Carl Hughes, is required to rotate after a maximum of five years, 2014/15 being his
last financia! year. The Audit Partner rotating in for the 2015/16 financial year is Kari Hale.

Details of the amounts paid to Deloitte for audit and nan-audit services are provided in note 7 to the accounts on
page 111.

Severn Trent Water Limited

The regufated activities carried out by Severn Trent Water Limited also require two annual reporting submissions
to Ofwat which are reviewed by the committee: an annual submission on Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory
performance and obligations known as the Annual Regulatory Performance Report, together with the Annual
Regulatory Compliance Statement; and a statement that underpins the customer charges made by Severn Trent
Water Limited, known as the Principal Statement.

In March 2015 the committee reviewed the process, timeline and assurance framework in place for the production
and submission of the Annual Regulatory Complizance Statement and the 2015/16 Principal Statement to Ofwat.

Deloitte makes reports to Ofwat in respect of Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory accounts. The Annual
Regulatory Parformance Report, which provides an overall picture of company performance, covers many aspects
which are not financial and Severn Trent Water Limited appoints engineering consultants, Atkins, to report and
provide assurance on thase aspects. The committee receives reports from Atkins on their work as part of its
review of the Annual Regulatory Returns. ’

Attendance at scheduled Committee meetings:
During the year, there were 4 scheduled meetings of the Audit Committee,

The attendance figures are detailed below for these meetings.

Director Meetings attendad
Philip Remnant 44
jgroness Nozkes™® al
John Coghlan ** KIE]
Martin Lamb *** m
Richard Davey **** 33

Baroness Noakes retired as a member of the Audit Committee in July 2014.
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* John Coghlan was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee in May 2014.
*** Martin Lamb was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 28 January 201 5.
sk Richard Davey retired as a member of the Audit Committee on 23 January 2015.
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Corporate Responsibility Committee
Gordon Fryett

Chalrman of the Corporate Responsibility Committee

The committee provides guidance and direction to the company’s Corporate Responsibility programme, reviews
the group's key non financial risks and opportunities and monitors progress.

The committee reviews annually the adequacy of the company's formal whistleblowing policy and procedures
which deal with allegations from employees relating to breaches of the Code of Conduct and reviews at each of its
meetings the whistleblowing incident log.

The terms of reference for the commitiee can be found on our website (www.severntrent.com) and are also
available from the Company Secretary.

This report provides details of the role of the Corporate Responsibifity (CR) Committee and the work it has
undertaken during the year.

The members of the commiitee are Gordon Fryett (Chairman), Andrew Duff, Liv Garfield and Dr Angela Strank.

Our CR framework

Our Code of Conduct, ‘Doing the right thing — The Severn Trent way’, provides the structure and a common CR
framework for both our businesses — regulated and non-regulated. The nine principles of our Code of Conduct
are:

Keeping everyone healthy and safe

Supporting employees’ rights and diversity
Maintaining ethical and honest behaviour

Staying free from bribery and corruption

Keeping our communications open and responsible
Delivering excellent customer service

Working within the community

Protecting our environment

Standing up for what's right

To monitor performance, both Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Business Services have an effective
performance management system in place through core business Key Performance Indicators (KPls) (see page
10 of the Strategic report for further detalls). These are overseen by the relevant management teams and the
board. Many of the business KPis relate directly to our CR focus areas and therefore contribute significantly to our
CR performance and are linked to our reward arrangements. We report internally on our CR performance through
sanior management and the committee. Externally, we report through a number of channels, including our website
and our Annual Report and Accounts.

©® NSO RN
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Key areas of focus 2014/15

The committee provides board oversight of our CR framework, including the strategy and performance related to

heatth, safety, environment and the community as well as employee and supply chain matters. CR KPIs and

whistleblowing allegations are reviewed at every meeting. Key areas of discussion and review during 2014/15 are
set out below:

o the committee reviewed two papers outlining future societal, economic and environmental issues, and agreed
to review the forward agendas for the committee to ensure that emerging risks were considered in more
detail;

» anew approach 1o CR for Severn Trent was approved, comprising compliance in relation to the performance
of core essential activity, and excellence in two identified areas of ambition for the company — making our
region's rivers healthier and improving water efficiency, each having measurable targets. The new frarnework
for our CR was launched in April 2015;

e the commilttee received an update on initiatives to promote diversity at Severn Trent. it was noted that Severn
Trent compared relatively well against industry benchmarks and that further initiatives were under way to
ensure the progression of females through management positions;

o the committee received two reports from Internal Audit with respect to their findings on Health, Safety and
Environment. The committee noted that a good framework was in place for occupational health and managing
contractors; and

» the committee discussed updates on working in the community protecting our environment, water quality,
employee satisfaction in Severn Trent Business Services and managing our supply chain respansibly.

Attendance at scheduled committee meetings:
During the year there were 4 scheduled meetings of the Corporate Responsibility Committee. The attendance
figures are detailed below for these meetings.

‘| Director Meetings attended
Gordon Fryett 4/4
Andrew Duff 4/4
Liv Garfield 4/4
Dr Angela Strank 4/4
CR activities

We are committed to CR and see it as an integral part of our business.

Human rights

We have a responsibility to understand our potential impacts on human rights and to mitigate or eliminate these
impacts. We are committed to operating in accordance with the United Nations Global Compact Principles and our
Code of Conduct supports this commitment. Whilst not having a specific human rights policy, we have group
policies on Human Resources, Anti Bribery and Anti Fraud, Whistleblowing and Procurement. These policies are
in turn supported by a broader range of policies within Severn Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Business

Services to support key human rights.
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Freedom of association and collective bargaining

We recognise the right of all employees to freedom of association and collective bargaining. We seek to promote
cooperation between employees, our management team and recognised trade unions, We believe this fosters a
joint understanding of business needs and helps to deliver common solutions aimed at making our business
successful.

Internationally, Severn Trent Business Services operates a small number of sales and marketing offices where
union membership is not available due to national law. it is imporiant that these employees and those who do not
wish to join a union are not at a disadvantage.

All Severn Trent employees are encouraged to raise concerns at work through their line manager, however, we
recognise that employees may feel inhibited in certain circumstances. In this case, employees are encouraged to
use our confidential and independent whistieblowing helpline, operated by Safecall, an independent company
which specialises in handling concerns at work. The service is available internationally and Safecall provides a
translation service, allowing any employee, wherever they ara in the world, to access it.

Equality

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture is a key factor in being a successful business. We do
not tolerate discrimination under any circumstances and believe in treating everyone equaily with fairness,
encouragement and respect. Our Code of Conduct and our group Human Resources Policy govern all aspects of
employee rights and diversity. Underpinning these are individual business level policies which define our
approach to a diverse and inclusive environment.

Diversity

To ensure our workforce reflects the diversity of the customers and communities we serve, wa have put
considerable focus on monitoring our performance against a range of diversity measures and benchmarks. We
drive actions out of the analysis of the data and have built a plan to enable us to become a more diverse and
inclusive workplace. Our diversity and inclusion plan is supported by our flexible working policies which promote
part time working, job shares, flexible hours and core working hours, with our technology enabling working from
home when necessary.

We have also undertaken training with employees involved in recruitment to ensure that we do not have an
unconscious bias within the attraction and selection programme. Throughout 2014/15, we have also fecused on
increasing diversity in our applicants with a primary focus on our entry level schemes for apprenticeships and
graduates. We have looked at the communications we use to attract new applicants and how we can reach a
broader and more diverse range in our community.

We continue to take part in diversity initiatives such as the 30% Club and Project 28-40, so we can confribute to
the debate and benefit from others’ experience, and received a rating of Silver this year in the Business in the
Community gender and race benchmark survey {improving from Bronze last year).

Our gender diversity metrics as at 31 March 2015 are set out in the Nominations Committes report on page 62.

Prevention of child labour and forced {abour
We will not condone the use of child labour and forced labour under any circumstances. The highest risk for
Severn Trent is through our supply chain, therefore we work with our suppliers to ensure they operate to the same

standards we set curseives.

Our Code of Conduct has been built into the procurement tender process as part of the pre-qualification
questionnaire template in Severn Trent Water. During 2014/15, 168 new suppliers have been required to confirm
adherence to our Code of Conduct. In addition, 20 retrospective assurance checks on existing suppliers have
been carried out.
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Prevention of bribery and corruption
Our group-wide Anti Bribery and Anti Fraud Policy prohibits bribery and corruption in all our business dealings,
regardless of the country or culture within which we work. Employees identified as high risk through a risk review
for Severn Trent Water Limited and all employees of Severn Trent Business Services are required to undertake
an online training module and examination to ensure awareness of and compliance with this policy. The Audit
Committee carties out an annual review of our systems and controls to detect and prevent bribery and corruption.
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Remuneration Committee
Philip Remnant

Chatrman of the Remuneration Committee

The committee determines, on behalf of the board, the company's policy on the remuneration of executive
directors, other members of the Executive Committee and the Chairman of the board. The Committee determines
the total remuneration packages and contractual terms and conditions for these individuals. The policy framework
for remunerating all senior executive managers is consistent with the approach taken for executive directors.

Dear shareholder

Welcome to my first Remuneration Committee report. | am delighted to report that in 2014/15 we again delivered on our
commitments with significant value for our shareholders and our customers; improved operational performance, the lowest
combined water and sewerage bills in the land and higher retumns through the growing dividend. This performance has been
reflected in the payments under our incentive plans.

Remuneration for the year under review
The annual bonus payments to executive directors for the financial year to 31 March 2015 were between 46.4% and 75.3% of
base salary, reflecting a good year of operational perfarmance with particularly strong improved performance on our quality of
interaction with our customers and our impact on the environment.

Buring the year, awards under the Share Matching Plan (SMP) vested at 66.2% of the maximum based on total shareholdar
return performance over the threa years to 19 May 2014, The Long Term Incentive Plan {LT!P) awards based on RoRCV
performance over the three years to 31 March 2015 will vest in full. There is a detailed breakdown of the targets set and the
payments under the annual bonus, SMP and LTIP on pages 79 and 80.

Key policy developments for 2015/16

No changes are proposed to the averall structure or quanium of the remuneration arrangements. However, the Remuneration
Committee has had o review the performance measures used in the annua! bonus and LTIP to reflect the new regulatory
framework under AMPS (which spans the five year period from 4 April 2015 1o 31 March 2020). The cormmittee has consulied
with the company's major shareholders and institutional investor badies prior to making these changes.

Annual bonuses for 2014/15 were based on performance against the Sevemn Trent Water balanced scorecard, business unit
objectives and personal performance. The scorecard Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) no tonger refiect the main indicators
of parformance as we movs into AMPS, especially with the introduction of Quicome Delivery Incentives (ODls). QDls are
quantifiable, transparent operational targets set for us by and monitored by Ofwat covering aspects such as water quality,
leakage, asset stewardship, supply, flooding, custorner experience and environmental performance. Severn Trent Water is
rewarded by Ofwat If it exceeds the OD| targets and suffers financial penalties for missing them. Bonuses for the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer for 2015/16 onwards will be basad 50% on profit before interest and tax (PBIT) of Severn
Trent Water, 40% on business unit performance (including performance against ODIs, performance of Severn Trent Services
and health and safety performance) and 10% on personal performance. PBIT has been chosen as a measure as it is an
indicator of overali financial parformance and reflects efficiencies, revenue and other kay levars in the business plan. We
beiteve that the new structure for the bonus provides a stronger link between our financial and operational parformance and
the rewards eamed by executlves.
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Since 2011, awards under the LTIP have been subject to a performance condition which measured Sevemn Trent Water
Limited’s Retumn on Regulatory Capital Value (RoRCV} relative to the Final Determination set by Ofwat. RoORCV was
considered a key financial measure of performance under the AMP5 framework. Under AMP6 and the new regulatory
incentive structures for water companies, Return on Regulatory Equity (RORE) has replaced RoRCV as Ofwat's key financial
metric and is a key measure for investors in the new regulatory environment. RORE is calculated as profit after tax {plus net
incentives eamed in the year) divided by the average equity element aof our regutatory capital value and measures how
efficiently we can deliver returns to shareholders. Unlika RoRCV, RORE is aligned with the key drivers of performance in
AMPS and reflects how well we perform against our operational and capital expenditure targats, our financing performance
and achievement against the ODI framework. To afign the incentive structure with the new reporting framework, LTIP awards
from 2015 onwards will be based on RORE outperformance relative to Ofwat's Fina! Determination. The performance targets
for the awards to be granted in 2015 require average RORE over the three year performance period to equal the Final
Determination (5.65%) for 25% of the award to vest, increasing on a straight line basis to 100% vesting for outperforming the
Final Determination by 1.28 imes (7.29%). The committee considers the targets 0 be demanding and the stretch target
requires the company significantly to outperform the Final Determination, delivering substantial retumns to shareholders.

Finance Director changes

During the course of the year, the commitiee considered the retirement of the current Chief Financial Cfficer, Michael McKeon,
and the recruitment amrangements for his successor, James Bowling as Chief Financial Officer. Full details of their respective
teaving and joining arrangements are set out in the Annual Report on remuneration on page 85.

Structure of the report

The changes to the performance measures used in the annual bonus and LTIP require us to resubmit our Policy Report for
shareholder approval. The Policy Report reflects the remuneration policy approved by shaneholders last year, updated to
reflect the new board structurs and the propesed changes to the performance measures noted above. The Policy Report will
be subject to a binding vote at the forthcoming AGM and, once approved, it is intended that the policy will apply until the 2018
AGM {when it will be subject to reapproval by shareholders as required under the regulations). This letter and the Annual
Report on remuneration will be subject to an advisory vote at the AGM.

| hope that you are supportive of our proposals and will approve both resolutions at the AGM.

Philip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Policy report

This section of the Remuneration Committee Report, setting out the new remuneration policy for the directors of
Severn Trent Plc, is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM on 15 July 2015 and will take effect, subject
to approval, from this date. Once approved by shareholders, this policy will replace the current policy which was
approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM. In most respects the new policy is similar to the existing policy, albeit
updated to reflect the new board structure and the change in performance metrics for the annual bonus and long
term incentive awards (which require shareholder approval). There are no other substantial changes to our policy.

Setting the remuneration policy
The committee sets the remuneration policy for executive directors and other senior executive managers, taking
into account the company's strategic objectives over the short and long term and the external market.
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The committee addresses the need to balance risk and reward. The commitiee monitors the variable pay
arrangements to take account of risk levels, ensuring an emphasis on long term and sustainable performance.
The committee balieves that the incentive schemes are appropriately managed and that the choice of
performance measures and targets does not encourage undue risk taking by the executives so that the Jong term
performance of the business is not compromised by the pursuit of short term value. The schemes incorporate a
range of internal and external performance metrics, measuring both operational and financial performance over
differing and overlapping performance periods, providing a rounded assessment of overall company performance.

Linkage to all employee pay

The committee reviews changes in remuneration arrangements in the workforce generally. it ensures that
executive director salary increases are normaliy aligned to the increases for the rest of the workforce.
Furthermore, the annual bonus operates on a broadly similar basis with the bonus schemes operated throughout
Severn Trent Water Limited and all UK employees may participate in the HMRC tax-advantaged Save As You
Earn {SAYE) scheme. The company has not directly consulted with employees on the topic of executive
remuneration; however, the committee does consider the general base salary increase, remuneration
arrangements and employment conditions for the broader employee group when determining the remuneration

policy for executive directors.

Shareholder views

The committee engages proactively with the company’s major shareholders and takes thelr views into aceount. The committee
reviews any feedback received from shareholders as a result of the AGM process and throughout the rest of the year, and
takes into consideration the tatest views of investor bodies and their representatives, including the Investment Association, the
National Association of Pension Funds and proxy advice agencles such as Institutional Shareholdar Services. When any
significant changes are made to the remuneration policy, the Remuneration Committee Chalrman discusses these with major
shareholders in advance and may offer meetings for more detailed discussion.

Remuneration policy for the executive directors
The following table sets out 2 summary of each element of the executive directors’ remuneration packages.

Operation (including
performance metrics)

Maximum opportunity

Base salaries for individual directors
are reviewed annually by the
commitiee and normally take effect
from 1 July.

Details of the current salary
levels for the directors are set
oul in the Annual Report on
remuneration on page 76.

Salaries are set with reference to
individual perfformance, experience
and contribution, togethar with
developments in the relevant
employment market (having regard
to similar roles in pubiicly quoted
companies of a comparable size
(currently FTSE 51-150) and
practice in other water companies),
company performance, affordability
and intermal relativities.

Any increase to directors’
salarias will generally be no
higher than the average
increase for the UK workforce.
However, a higher increase
may be proposed in the event
of a role change or promotion,
or in other exceptional
circumstances.

The company, where appropriate,
may set base salary lavels befow
the market reference salary at the

Element Purpose and link to
strategy
Salary To recruit and reward
execautives of a suitable
calibre for the role and
duties required.
Governance
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Element

Purpose and fink to
strategy

Operation (including
performance metrics)

Maximum opportunity

time of appolintment, with the
intention of bringing the base salary
levels in line with the market as the
individual gains the relevant
experience.

Benefits

To provide competitive
benefits in the market to
enable the recruitment and
retention of directors.

A car allowance, family level private
medical insurance, life assurancse,
personaf accident insurance, haalth
screening, an incapacity benefits
scheme and other incidental
benefits and expenses. Relocation,
disturbance and expatriate
allowances and tax equalisation
may be paid as appropriate.
Directors will ba reimbursed for any
reasonable business expenses
incurred in the course of thelr
duties, including the tax payable
thereon,

The value of benefits is based
on the cost to the company and
there Is ng pre-determined
maximum limit. The range and
value of the benefits offered is
raviewed periodically.

Pension

To provide a pension
comparable with similar
companies in the market o

enable the recruitment and

retention of direclors.

A defined contribution scheme
andfor cash supplement in lieu of
pension.

Company contribution to a
pension scheme andfor cash
allowance up to a maximum of
25% of salary.

Annual bonus

To encourage improved
financial and operational
performance and align the
interests of directors with
shareholders through the
partial deferral of payment in
shares.

Bonuses are based on financial,
operational and personal
performance. No more than 20% of
the bonus will relate to personal
contribution for any executive.

Maximum annual bonus of
120% of base salary (target
annual bonus of 60% of base
salary).

50% of the bonus is paid in cash
and 50% in shares which vest after
three years {with the value of any
dividends to be roiled up and paid
on vasting).

A clawback mechanism applies 1o
allow the recoupmant within three
years of the payment of the cash
bonus or the grant of deferred
shares in the event of financial
misstatement, error in the
calculation or gross misconduct.

LTIP

To encourage strong and
sustained improvements in

Awards are granted annually and
are subject to a three year

Maximum limit is 150% of base

salary (with 200% being used in
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Element

Purpose and link to
strategy

Operation (including
performance metrics}

Maximum oppertunity

financial performance, in fine
with the company’s strategy
and long term shareholder
retums.

performance condition which
requires the company's retum on
regulatory equity (RORE) to
outperform tha target set out in
Ofwat’s Final Determination. A
sliding scale of targets is set.
Different targets andfor performance
measures may be set for future
LTIP awards to reflect the business
strategy and regulatory framework
operating at that time,

axceptional circumstances).
The grant lave! for 2015/16 is
125% for the Chief Executive
and 80% of base salary for
other executive directors.

The value of dividends paid on the
shares comprising the award will ba
rolled up and paid on vesting.

Up to 25% of an award may
ves! for threshold performance.

The award may be structured as a
conditional share award (awards
may also be settled in cash in
certain circumstances),

A clawback mechanism applies to
allow the recoupment of vested
incentive awards within three years
of vasting in the event of financial
misstatement, an error in calculating
the level of vesting, gross
negligence, fraud or

gross misconduct.

All Employee Share
Plans

To encourage widespread
employee share ownership
to enable employees to
share in the success of the
business, and to glign their
interests with those of
sharehglders.

The executive directors are able to
participate in HVRC tax advantagad
all employee share plans on the
same terms as other eligible
employees

The maximum limits under the
plans are as set by HMRC

Further details on the variabie pay policy

Annual bonus

The parformance measures and targets for the annual bonus are selected annually to align with the business strategy and the
key drivers of performance set for us under the regulatory framework. The annual weighting of the bonus between the various
metrics and personal contribution may vary depending on the key priorities of the business for the year ahead. Robust and

demanding targets are set taking into account the operating environment and priorities, market expectations and the business
plan for the year ahead. Further details on the performance measures and welghtings lo be used for the forthcoming year are
set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration on page 85.
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Long-term incentlves (LTIP)

For LTIP awards granted in 2015, RORE will be used to assess performance. Using RORE to assess long term performance
reflects the focus of Ofwat in AMPS and is consistent with our aim to deliver efficient retums to shareholders. RORE is
calculated as profit after tax {plus incentivas samed in the year) divided by the average equity proporticn of our regulatory
capital value and it Is verified and published as part of the Annual Regulatory Performance Report. The committee believes
that the use of RORE provides a strong alignment betwesn the long term financial and operational performance of the group
and the reward delivered to management.

LTIP awards grantpd in 2013 and 2014 are subject to a performance condition relating to retum on regulatory capital value
(RoRCV). RoRCV is calculated as cument cost operating profit less tax paid divided by our average regulatory capital vaiue.
Details of the performance targets applying to the 2013 and 2014 awards are set out in the Annual Report en Remuneration on
page 82,

The committee reserves the discretionary power 1o adjust the foomulaic outtum of the LTIP performance conditions to ensure
that the vesting result is reflective of the underlying financiat and operational performance of the company over the
performance period. The use of this discretion is expected to be exceptional and the committee would cansuit with its major
sharehclders before making any upwards adjusiment. In relation to the awards granted in 2013, there is a cap and collar
limiting the extent to which this discretion can be applied (if the vesting result indicated by the performance condition is greater
than 50% the committee may reduce the vesting to a number not less than 50%; and if it is 0% it may increase it to any figure
not greater than 50%). This cap and colar approach does not apply 1o awards granied from 2014 onwards.

In addition, for any awards to vest, the committee must be satisfied that there has been no compromise to the commerclal
practices or operaticnal standards of the group. It tha committee is not so satisfied, then the vesting parcantage may be scaled
back as appropriate (including to 0%).

Legacy Share Matching Plan

Until 2013, awards were also made under a Share Matching Plan {SMP}. Under the SMP, the executive directors could receive
up to 0.5 matching shares for each share deferred under the annual bonus plan {the maximum award level was therefore 30%
of salary). The matching awards were subject to achievement of a relative total sharehclder retum performance condition and
a financial undarpin. At the time of release, participants also receive the value of the dividends which would have been paid on
vested shares over the perfarmance period. The outstanding awards will be allowed to pay out under the approved policy,
subject to achievement of the performance condttions an which they were granted. Liv Garfield and James Bowling do not hald
any outstanding awards under this fegacy plan.

Remuneration Committee discretion

The committee will operate all incentive plans according to the rules of each respective plan and the discretions contained
therein. The discretions cover aspects such as the fiming of grant and vesting of awards, determining the size of the award
{subject to the policy limits), the treatment of leavers (see policy on terminations), retrospective adjustment of awards (e.g. for
a rights issue, a corporate restructuring or for special dividends) and, in exceptional circumstances, the discretion to adjust
previcusly sst targets for an incentive award if avents happen which causa the commities to determine that it would be
appropriate to do s0. In exercising such discretions, the committee will take into account generally accepted market practice,
best practice guidelines, the provisions of the Listing Rules and the company's approved remuneration policy.

External directorships

Executive directors ars permitied to take on axtemal non-executive direstorships, though nermally only ona other FTSE 100
appsintment, to bring a further external perspective to the group and help in the development of key individuals’ experience. In
order to avoid any conflicts of interest, all appointments are subject to the approval of the Nominations Committee. Executive
directors are permitted to retain the fees arising from one appointment.
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Shareholding guidelines

‘The company operates sharehelding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to build and mairtain a
shareholding in the company. The Chief Executive is expected to build and maintain a holding of shares to the value of 200%
of salary, and other execulive directors 125% of salary, Executive directors are expected to retain all of the net of tax number
of shares they receive through the LTIP and deferred share bonus until the shansholding guidelines have been met.

Reward scenarios
The bar charts show how the compaosition of each of the executive directors’ remuneration packages varies at different levels
of performance achievement.

Minimum pay is fixed pay only (i.e. salary + benefits + pension). On target pay includes fixed pay, a 60% of salary
bonus and 50% vesting of the LTIP awards (with grant levels of 125% of salary for the Chief Executive and 80%
of salary for the Chief Financial Officer). Maximum pay includes fixed pay and assumes 100% vesting of both the
annual bonus and the LTIP awards. No share price growth has been factored into the above chart and all
amounts have been rounded to the nearest £1,000. Salary levels (which are the base on which other elements of
the package are calculated) are based on those applying at 1 July 2015. The value of taxable benefits is the cost
of providing thoss benefits in the year ended 31 March 2015 (estimated value used in the case of James
Bowling). The executive directors are also permitted to participate in HMRC tax advantaged all employee share
plans, on the same terms as other eligible employees, but they have been excluded from the above graph for

simplicity.

Service contracts and policy on payments for loss of office
The remuneration related elements of the current contracts for executive directors are shown in the table below.

Provision Policy

Notice period 12 months from either party

Termination payment Payments for loss of offica comprise a maximum of 12 months salary and benefits only.
Mitigation Any termination payment will not be made automatically but will be subject to both phasing and

mitigation (including offset against any eamings from new employment).

Change of control There are no specific contractual payments or benefits which would be triggered in the event of
a change in control of the company. Qutstanding incentive awards would vest in line with the
treatment set out below for a good leaver axcept that the performance and vesting period will
end on the date of control.

Annual bonus The committee may exercise its discretion to pay a bonus {o a departing executive, subject to
performance and pro rated to reflact the proportion of the year worked. The bonus would be
paid at the same time as far the other directors and, if the executive has left employment by
that date, it may be paid solety in cash.

Any outstanding deferred bonus shares will vest an cessation of employment unlass the
departure is a result of summary dismissal.

Long Term Incentive Awards | The defauit treatment is that all awards will lapse on cessation of employment. However,
executives will be considered a good leaver in certain prescribed circumstances or by the
discretion of the Committee, If an executive is a good leaver, the award will ordinarily vest on
the nommal vesting date, subject to performance and time pro rating {as set out below). The
commities also has the discretion to determine that the awards for a good leaver should vest
early (e_g. on cessation of employment) subject to performance with time pro rating (as set out
below).
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Provision Policy

For the outstanding awards under tha legacy 2005 LTIP (awards granted in 2013 and prior),
the time pro rating Is calculated by rounding up to the nearest full year unless otharwise
specified. Time pro rating under the 2014 LTIP (awards granted since 2014) and under the
legacy Share Matching Plan is rounded up to the nearest month. In exceptional circumstances
the committee may time pro rate the 2005 LTiP, 2014 LTIP and SMP awards to a lesser extent
or not at all. For the Recruitment Awards granted on appeintment to Liv Garfieid and to be
granted to Jamas Bowling, no time pro rata reduction will be applied in a good leaver situation.
This is in recognition of the fact that the expected value of the forfeited awards was
significantly higher in both cases (with much of it being non performance related) and which
would not have been scaled back for a similar event.

Outplacement services and reimbursement of legal costs may be provided where appropriate. Any statutory entitements or
sums to settle or compromise claims in connection with a termination would be paid as necessary, Qutstanding awards under
the SAYE and the legacy Share incentive Plan (SIP) would vest in accordance with the terms of the plans as approved by
HMRC.

Approach to recruitment and promotion

The remuneration packages for all new executive directors will be set in line with the company's approved policy. The
commitiee will take into account, in amiving at a total package, the skills and experienca of the candidate, the market rate for a
candidate of that level of experience, as well as the imporiance of securing the best candidate.

Annual bonuses and long term incentives will be awarded in line with the maximum limits outlined in the policy on page 72.
Participation in the bonus plan will normally be prorated for the year of joining.

The committee may make additional cash andfor share based awards if deferred pay is forfeited by an executive on leaving a
previous smployer. Such awards would take into account the nature of awards forfeited (i.¢. cash or shares), time herizons,
attributed expected value and any performance conditions. Awards would typically be made under the terms of the LTIF or
under the exemptions permitted under the Listing Rules. Non performance related payments unrelated to the forfeiture of
awards, I.e. ‘golden hellos’, will not be made.

Other payments may be made in relation to relocation expenses and cther incidental expenses as appropriate.

In the case of an internal appointment, any variable pay efement awarded in respact of the prior role would be allowed to pay
out according to the terms on which it was originally granted.
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Chairman and non-executive directors
The remuneration policy for non-executive directors, other than the Chalman, is determined by the board. The fee for the
Chairman is determined by the Remuneration Committes (without the Chairman present).

Element Purpose and link to Operation Maximum opportunity
strategy
Fee To recruit and retain non- | Base board fes with additional Detailz of the current fee levels for
executives of a suitable fees paid for the Senior the directors are set out in the
calibre for the role and Indapandent Director and Remuneration Committea Repart.
duties required. chairmanship of the Board

Committees. The Chairman
receives a total fee in respect of
his board duties. Fees are paid
monthly. Directors will be
reimbursed for any reasonable
business expenses incumed in
the course of their duties,
including the tax payable
theraon.

Tha fees for the non-axecutive The fee levels are set subject to
directors and Chairman are sat the maximum limits set out in the
taking into account the time Articles of Association.
commitment of the role and
market rates in comparable
companies, The fees are
nomnally reviewad annually (but
not necessarily increased).

Non-executive directors normally serve terms of three years. They do not have service contracis. Instead, they are engaged by
letters of appointment which are terminable by either party with ne notice period and no compensation in the event of such
termination, other than accrued fees and expenses. All of the directors are subject to appointment or reappointment at the
2015 AGM.

Annual Report on remuneration _
This part of the report will be subject to an advisory vote at the AGM. The information on pages 75 to 84 is audited.

Membership of the Remuneration Committee and its advisors

The members of the committee are fisted in the 1abie below. All are Independent non-executive directors, as defined under the
Governance Code, with the exception of the company Chafrman who was independent on his appointment. During the year
ended 31 March 2015, the committee met six times to discuss key remuneration issues arising, the review and operation of the
company's remuneratlon policy and market updates by its advisors.
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Remuneration Committee attendance in 2014/15

Dr Angela Strank

Richard Davey 5/5
Andrew Duff 6/8
Martin Lamb 6/6
Philip Remnant 6/6

6/6

receives is objective and independent.

Governance

On 20 October 2014 it was announced that Richard Davey, non-executive director, Senior Independent Director and chairman
of the Remuneration Committee would be retiring on 23 January 2015, having served nine years on the board. Philip Remnant
succeeded him in the role of chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 23 January 2015.

The commitiee members have no personal financial interest, other than as shareholders, In the matters to be decided. The
Chief Exacutive, Director of Human Resources and by invitation the Head of Reward and Pensions also attended the
committee meetings to provide advice and respond to specific questions. Such attendances specifically excluded any matter
concerning their own remuneration. The Company Secretary acis as secretary to the committee.

To ensure that the company’s remuneration practices are In line with best practice, the commitles has access to advice from
New Bridge Street (NBS) (a trading name of Aon Hewitt Limited). NBS Is the independent advisor to the committee and was
appointed in 2011. The total fees paid to NBS during the year for services to the committee were £190,525 excluding VAT
(2014: £209,089). NBS also provided advice during the year to the company on the implementation of its share pfans and
other technical matters. NBS is a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct and reports directly to
the Chair of the committee. The committee reviews the appointment of its advisors annually and Is satisfied that the advice it
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(i)

(iii)

{v)

\%]

{vi)
(vi)

allowance and utility costs. He also recaivad compensation for UK tax suffered on US benefits of £36,931 (2014: £48,434). These arrangements ceasad on
30 Saptember 2014.

Liv Garfleld Is @ member of the defined contribution schems. The figure shown includes £40,000 paid into the scheme by the company via salary sacrifice; the remainder has
been paid as an annual cash supplement in lieu of a pension. Tony Ballance Is also a member of the defined contribution scheme and the figure shown Is the contribution paid
into the scheme by the company in the year. For the other executive directors the figure shown is the annual cash supplement paid in lieu of & pension,

The annual bonus Is paid 50% in cash and 50% in shares with the portion deferred into shares subject to an additional holding period of three years with no further
performence conditions attached.

The 2015 figure Is comprised of:

The vesting of the 2012 LTIP award, or In the case of Liv Garfield the second tranche of her recruitment award. The performance perlod for these awards ended on 31
March 2015 and the awards vest on 1 April and are due to be released following the end of the close period. The value of the shares has been estimated by using the
average share prica for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 of £20.62.

- The vesting of the 2011 SMP award. The performance period for this award ended on 19 May 2014. Tha awards vested on 20 May 2014 and shares were released on 2
June 2014 at a share price of £19.73.

The 2014 figure is comprised of:

- The vasting of the 2011 LTIP award. The performance pericd for this award ended on 31 March 2014. The awards vested on 1 April 2014 and shares wera released on 5
June 2014 at a share price of £18.6433, This value has been updated to reflect the actual share prica on vesting (a share price of £17.71 was used in detemining the
figure In the prior year acgounts),

—  The vesting of the 2010 SMP plus the value of dividends eamed on these haras including those due in the previous year paid during 2014/15.

For non-executlve diractors, this figute relates to taxabte expenses relating to travel. For executive directors, this figure consists of the value obtained from inclusion in the
Severn Trent all employee Save As You Earn Scheme and Share Incentive Plan.

Retired from the board on 24 January 2014,
Appainted to the board on 23 May 2014.

(vili} Retired from the board on 23 January 2015.

()
(0

()

(xii}

Retirad from the board en 16 July 2014.

Tany Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith stood down from the board with effect from 23 January 2015 but remain on the Sevem Trent Executive Cormmittee. The figures
shown in the table above relate to amounts received for the full financial year for ease of comparison. The equivalent figures relating purely to qualifying services (i.e. whilst

serving as a board director) would be 81,6% of the figure for salary, bensefits, pension and bonus being 298 days out of 365 and 85.5% of the value shown for long term
incentives being 100% of the SMP figure and 84.4% of the LTIP figure.

Retired from the board on 11 April 2014. Tony Wray was treated as a good leavar under the company’s longterm Incentive plans and the figures ralate to the vesting of his
2012 LYIP and 2011 SMP awards.

Liv Garfield joined Severn Trent Pic on 31 March 2014 and subsequently joined the board on 11 Aprl 2014, The first tranche of Llv Garfleld’s recruitment award (41,222
shares) vested on 5§ June 2014, The value of the shares on vesting was £8009,736, The value of this award has not been Included in the table above since it was based on
performance to 31 March 2014 (i.e. prior to jolning the board).
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Annual bonus outturn for 2014/15
The weighting of the performance measures for the annual bonus awarded during the year was as follows:

During the year, Andy Smith moved from being respansible for Water Services to take on a new rals as Managing Director,
Business Services (which encompasses the Sevemn Trent Services business, a new role for Retail for non-household Water
Services organisation and renewable energy). Martin Kane moved from CEO of Sevemn Trent Services to take on a new role of
Chisf Engineer covering engineering design standards, quality assurance, R&D and innovation for the group, and all health
and safety aspects of our operations. Their business unit objectives were therefore split between objectives relating to Severn
Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Services, reflecting their changes in role during the year.

a) Severn Trent Water — Balanced Scorecard

The bonus outturn in respect of Severn Trent Water performance was determined by reference to a balanced scorecard of
measures, based on 10 of the company's 16 Key Performance Indicators (KPls}. The KPis used to determine the annual

bonus were;

Key Performance Indicators Target | Stretch | Outturn Points
Employee
+  Providing a safe KPl1  Losttime incidents per 100,000 hrs worked 0.19 0.15 0.21 85
working
environment
KPI 1
e  Developing a KP1 2 Employee motivation 82% 84% 79% 0
confident and
productive
workforce
Customer
Quality interactfion with KP4  Service Incentive Mechanism— Qualitative 3d 1st 2nd 115
the customer
KPI5  Service Incentive Mechanlsm — Quantitative C 127 104 105.00 129
KPI7  Serviceability -~ Waste 58 52 §3.52 122
KPi 8 Serviceabllity — Watar 167 152 270 0
Financial
s Assetbase KP!9  Capital Expenditure (net) versus final determination - % 0% 2% 0.0% 100
enhancement outperformance
. Managament of Kt Operating Expenditure versus final determination - % 0.5% 0.8% 0.5% 100
cost base 11 outperforrnance
Environmen
*  Minimising KPI Follution incidents (cat 1, 2 and 3) 405 anr 368 140
environmental 12
tmpact
KPI Leakage Mi/d — Post MLE 448 442 441 135
16
Total 926
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. For KPI4 the Ofwal introduced new methodology (an Ofwat pilot) to determine the outturn for Wiave 4. The Wave 4 result placed STW in
2nd place against the other WASCs. The bonus payout is based on us coming 2nd and is equivalent to achieving 115 points which the
mid point between target and stretch.

Each KP| has 100 target points, 130 stretch points and extra points can be earned for above stretch performance. No points
can be eamed for below a threshold level of performance. For executive directors to be awarded the maximum bonus
available, they are required to achieve 1,300 aggregate points. During the year, two of the 10 KPls exceeded the siretch level
of parformance, with KPI 12 generating a score of 140 points and KP! 16 ganerating a score of 135. The aggregate score was
926 points. The resulting bonus awarded for the Severn Trent Water Limited portion of the annual bonus was 46.3% of the
maximum, representing an improvement to operational performance but set against challenging targets.

b) Severn Trent Water — business unit objectives
The business unit objectives used to determine the annual bonus were:
Applicable to:
%%

Meoasure/Objective Ballance | Gerfield | Kane McKeon | Smith Target Stretch | Outtum | Payable
1 Percentage of customers registered for

paperlass bills L4 L 33% 40% 12.9% 8.8%
2 Speed of response in repairing leaks (%

fixed with 24 hours) v v v 50% §55% 8% D%
3 Amount of renewable energy produced from

waste water renewable actvities v v v 309 34% 28.4% 34.0%
4 Customer water quality complaints v 12,837 11,920 15,881 8.5%
5 Reduction of customer complaints waste

water L4 2,22 1,670 1,961 T3.6%
6 Reduction witten customer complaints v 14,877 13.910 9,878 100.0%
7 Sewer flooding incidents - v v s 8§15 478 813.0 0.0%
8 Reduction in controliable operating

expenditure (£m) L4 v v v v 250 40.0 25.5 51.7%
9 Number of properties Interrupted for greater

than 12 hours < B56 770 3,365 0.0%
10 Capital blocks net spend £m water (Em) 14 v 60.0 58.4 59.4 68.8%
11 Capltal blocks net spend £m waste (Em) v 97.0 95.0 84.2 100.0%
12 Creating an investment fund to enable the

ST green business plan {(£m) L4 20,0 22.5 134 B.8%

0% s payable for achigving the threshold level under each metric, increasing on a straight line basis to 50% for target
performance and 100% for stratch performance. Each metricis evenly weighted. Achievement against the business unit
targets is set out in the table above. The resulting bonus awarded for the Severn Trent Water business unit portion of the
annual bonus were 17.5% of the maximum for Tony Ballance, 41.7% of the maximum for Liv Garfield, 48.8% of the maximum
for Martin Kane, 26.1% of the maximum for Michae! McKeon and 30.5% of the maximum for Andy Smith.

c) Severn Trent Services — business unit objectives
Part of Martin Kane's and Andy Smith's bonuses related to the financial and non financial key performance indicators and
business unit objectives of Sevem Trent Services as follows:
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Weighting % achieved — % achleved — Andy
Martin Kane Smith
Financial performance {PBIT and Tumover) 44.4% 29.5% 29.5%
Non financial objectives 11.2% 5.6% 5.4%
STS business unit objectives 44.4% 37.0% 29.8%
Total 100% T21% 64.7%

The financial targets related to achievement of PBIT of £14.8 million and tumover of £337.7 million as set out in the business
plan for Severn Trent Services. The total bonus payable for Severn Trent Services performance was 72.1% of the maximum
for Martin Kane and 64.7% for Andy Smith. in respect of Michael McKeon and Liv Garfield, whose performance was measured
against the achievement of specific business restructuring targets for Severn Trent Services, it was determined that these were
met and they were awarded 95% of the maximum bonus.

d) Personal contribution

All directors had 10% of their bonus opportunity measured against personal objectives. The personal objectives varied by
individual but covered PR14 and the AMP6 business plan, development of the retail business, talent and succession planning,
and transition management. The objectives for the Chief Exacutive related to developing the company strategy, PR14,
cusiomer service, raising operational performance and talent management.

e) Overall achievement for 2014/15
Severn Trent Severn Trent Severn Trent
Water Water Services Total
Balanced Businass Unit | Business Unit Personal Bonus{as % | Total Bonus
Name Scorecard OhbJjectives Objectives Performance maximum]} (E)
Tony Ballance 23.2% {max. 7.0% (max. - 8.5% (max.10%} 38.7% £100,891
50%) 40%)
Liv Garfield 23.2% (max. 14.6% (max. 4.7% (max. 9.5% {max. 10%) 52.0% £405,483
50%) 35%) 5%}
Martin Kane 11.6% {max. 9.8% (max. 32.4% (max. 9.0% (max. 10%) 62.8% £188,804
25%) 20%} 45%)
Michael 23.2% {max. 8.3% (max. 7.6% (max. 8.9% (max. 10%) 48.0% £276,157
McKeon 50%) 32%) 8%}
Andy Smith 11.6% (max. 6.1% (max. 29.1% (max. 5.7% (max. 10%}) 52.5% £177,872
25%) " 20%) 45%)

The maximum bonus opporiunity for all Directors is 120% of salary. Bonuses are paid 50% in cash and 50% in shares
{deferred for three years). The defemed shares will be granted in June 2015. The deferred shares are not subject to any further
performance conditions. Michael Mcieon will be retifing on 31 May 2015 and, as parmitted under the rules of the annual
bonus plan, his bonus will be paid solely in cash.

Long term incentive awards vesting in relation to performance in 2014/15
The 2011 SMP awards and the 2012 LTIP awards have vested or will vest based on performance during the year as follows:
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a) 2011 SMP awards
The 2011 SMP awards were subject to a Total Shareholder Retum (TSR) performance condition, measured relative to

companies ranked 51-150 in the FTSE by market capitalisation (excluding investment trusts). The overall parformance period
was three years commencing on the date of grant (20 May 2011). However, the award was splitinto three tranches, each with
a different measurement period for TSR as foliows:

Performance Sevarn Trent Median Upper Quartile
Tranche period Waighting TSR TSR TSR Vesting
1 18 months 20% 26.5% 3.6% 22.6% 100%
2 27 months 30% 42 8% 26.9% 55.6% 70.3%
3 36 months 50% 49.1% 40.9% 77.4% 50.3%
Overall leval of vesting 66.2%

The commitiee was satisfied that the company’s TSR appropriately reftected the company's underlying performance and the
award vested at 66.2%.

b) 2012 LTIP awards

The 2012 LTIP awards were subject to an RoRCV performance condition, measured over three financial years to 31 March
2015. Average RoRCV is compared to the baseline figure set out in the Ofwat Final Determination. 0% of the award vests if
average RoRCV equats that set in the Final Determination, increasing on a straight fine basis to 50% vesting for 1.02 x the
Final Determination and 100% vesting for 1.07 x Final Determination.

The committee has various discretions in relation to determining the final vesting cutcome as set out in the policy report. The

committee considered the level of RoORCV outperformance of the Ofwat Final Determination for the 2012 LTIP. This showed
the average RoRCV over the three years ending in 2014715 had outperformed the RoRCV Ofwat Final Detarmination by 1.14

times therefore resulling in 100% vesting,

c) Liv Garfield recruitment award
The second tranche of Liv Garfield's recruitment award will vest in May 2015. it is subject to the same performance conditions
as the 2012 LTIP awards and therefore will vest at 100%. ’
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d) Summary of long term Incentive awards vesting based on performance in 2014/15
B I Numnber of End of Number of Valus of
shares performance % shares resultant Ralsgoolven
Executive Award type Grant dats granted periog vesting | vesting awarg™ ting date
Tony Ballance SMP 20/05/11 1.868 19/05/14 | 66.2% | 1.238 £24,388 | D206/14
LTIP 19/06/12 5,741 3170315 | 100% 5,741 £118,379 | 0104/15
Totai £142,765
Liv Garfieid l Recrultment j 0A0B/14 41,222 ‘ 31703115 | 100% | 41222 | £849,098 | 01/04/15
Total £840,008 '
Martin Kane SMP 20/05/11 2131 19/0514 | 66.2% | 1410 £27.819 | 02/08/14
LTIP 19/06/12 7.419 31/03115 | 100% 7,119 £146,784 | 01/04/15
Total £174,613
Michael McKeon™® SMP 20/05/11 3,838 18/05/114 | 66.2% | 2,606 £51,416 | 02/06114
LTIP 19/06112 12,684 | 3103115 | 100% | 12,684 | £261,544 [ DV04M5
Tatal £312,060
Andy Smith SMP 20/05/11 2,300 16/05/14 | 66.2% | 1,588 £31,331 | 02/06/14
LTIP 19/06/12 7,460 310315 | 100% 7,460 £153,825 | 01/04/15
Total £185,156
Tany Wray™ SMP 20/05/11 4,542 1905114 | 64.3% | 2922 £57.651 | 020614
LTIP 19/0612 21,875 | 310315 | 100% | 21875 | E451,062 | D145
Total £508,713

{) Forthe SMP aeward this is based on the share price at release of £19.73. For the LTIP award this is based on the average share price
over the final three months of the performance period (£20.62) as the awards will not be released untii after the end of the close period.

(i} Michael McKeon stepped down from the board on 1 April 2015 and will subsaquently be retiring on 31 May 2015. As noted or page 85,
he Is being treated as a good leaver under the nules of the LTIP. His award will vest as nomal. In accordance with the rules, there is no
pro rata reduction since he served for the whole of the perfermance period.

(i) Tony Wray retired from the board on 11 April 2014, As noted in last year's Annua| Report, he is treated 23 a good Isaver under the rules
of the SMP and LTIP. The awards vested on the nomal vesting date subject to performance and a ime pro rata reduction. For the 2011
SMP award, time prorating was calculated to the nearest month. For the 2042 LTIP award, time prorating was calculated to the nearest
year in accerdance with the rules of tha plan.
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Outstanding scheme interests, including share awards granted during the year
The table below sets out detaiis of the executives' outstanding share awards as at 31 March 201 5.

Percentage
Maximum™ | vesting at End of Vasting”
number of minlmum Exercise performance axercise Awards granted
Executive Award type sharos performance price (p) period date during the year
Basis of Faceo
award value
Tony
Ballance 2012 LTIP 5,741 0% - 3110315 01/04/15 - -
2013LTIP 5,855 0% - 31103116 01/04/16 - -
80% of
2014 LTIP 8.817 _ 0% ~ 3103117 1607117 salary £169,040
2012 SMP 1721 5% - 24/05/15 25/05M15 - -
2013 SMP 2,963 5% - 12/06/186 1340616 - -
2012 ABS 3,442 ~ - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 5,926 ~ - - 26/06/16 - -
Deferred
2014 ABS 4,179 - - - 30/06/17 bonus £80,987
2013 SAYE 725 - 1,241 - May~-16 - -
2014 SiP 24 - - - - - -
Total 39,393
125% of
Liv Garfield 2014 LTIP 42,383 0% - 3t 1670717 salary £812,500
Recruitment 125% of
Award 41,222 0% - 3103/15 May-15 salary £812,500
Recruitment 125% of
Award 41,223 0% - 3110316 May-186 salary £812,500
2015 SAYE 1,136 - 1.584 - May-18 - -
Total 125,964
Martin Kane 2012LTIP 7,119 0% - 3110315 01/04/15
2013LTIP 7,119 0% - 31/03/16 01/04/16 - -
80% of
2014 LTIP 10,720 0% - 310317 160717 salary £205,520
2012 SMP 2,162 5% - 24105115 2510515 - -
2013 SMP 4,360 5% - 1206116 13/06/16 - -
2012 ABS 4,324 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 8,721 - - - 26/06/16 - -
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Percentage
Maximum™ | vesting at End of Vesting/”
number of minimum Exercise | performance exarcise Awards granted
Exacutive Award type shares performance price (p} period date during the year
Deforred
2014 ABS 3,265 - - - 30/08M17 bonus £63,267
2012 SAYE 152 - 1,177 - May-15 - -
2013 SAYE 290 - 1,241 - May—16 - -
2014 SAYE 270 - 1,331 - May-17 - -
2015 SAYE 681 - 1,584 - May-18 - -
2014 SIP 24 - - - - - -
Total 49,207
Michael
McKeon 2012LTIP 12,684 0% - 31/03i15 01/04/15 - -
2013 LTIP 12,937 0% - 31/03/16 01/04/16 - -
80% of
2014 LTIP 18,480 0% - 3U03INT 180717 salary £373,440
2012 SMP 3,685 5% - 24/05/15 25/05/18 - -
2013 SMP 6,757 5% - 12/06/16 13/06/16 - -
2DI12 ABS 7.370 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 13,514 - - - 26/06/16 - -
Deferred
2014 ABS 8,898 - - - 30/06/17 bonus £172.417
2014 SIP 24 - - - - - -
Total 85,349
Andy Smith 2012 LTIP 7,480 0% - 31/03/15 01/04/15 - -
2013LTIP 7.510 % - 31/03M16 01/04/16 - -
80% of
2014LTIP 11,459 0% - 31/03117 16/07/17 salary £219,680
2012 SMP 2,234 5% - 24/05/15 25/05/15 - -
2013 SMP 3,842 5% - 12106116 13/06/16 - -
2012 ABS 4,468 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 7,684 - - - 26/06/16 - -
Deferred
2014 ABS 5431 - - - 16/07/17 bonus £105,249
2013 SAYE 725 - 1.241 - May-16 - -
2015 SAYE 568 - 1,584 - May-18 - -
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Percantage
Maximum™ | vesting at End of Vesting/®
number of minimum Exarcise performance exercise Awards granted
Executive Award type shares performance prica (p} period date during the year
2014 SIP 24 - - - - - -
Total 51,505
Tony
Wray™ 2012 LTIP 21,875 0% 31/0315 010415
2013LTIP 8,057 0% - 31/03/16 01/04116
2012 SMP 3,023 5% 24/05/15 25/05/15
2013 SMP 2,288 5% 12/06/16 13/06/16
Total 35,253

() Awards that are due fo vest I 2 close period will be released as soon as practicable after the end of the clase period.
(i) Additional dividend equivalent shares may be released where provided in the rules.

{iiy Tony Wray's outstanding scheme interests have been adjusted to reflect a time pro rata raduction following his retirement on
11 Aprit 2014,

a) Long Term Incentive Plan awards

The LTIP awards are granted as conditional shares. The awards are subject to an RoRCV performance condition measured
over three financial years. Average RoRCV is compared with the baseline figure set out in the Ofwat Final Determination. 0%
of each award vests if average RoRCV equals that set in the Final Determination, increasing on a straight line basis to 50%
vesting for 1.02 x Final Determination and 100% vesting for 1.07 x Final Determination.

Ofwat are no longer publishing a baseline RoRCY figure in AMPS6. This impacts on the final year of the 2013 LTIP award and
the final two years of the 2014 LTIP award. However, an equivalent baseline figure can be constructed using the component
numbers set out in the Ofwat model. To ensure a like for like comparison between the baseline figure and how actual RoRCV
will be calculated in those years, an adjustment has been made to Increase the baseline figure ta take into account the impact
of expecied income to be received under Pay As You Go {(which dictates what portion of total expenditure is treated like
operating expenditure, and directly passed through into customers' bills, and what is treated as capital expenditure and added
to Severn Trent Water's asset base). This gives a baseline figure of 3.49% for 2015/16 and 3.6% for 20168/17.

As nated on page 79, the 2012 LTIP vested at 100% on 1 April 2015. However, as the company was in a close period, the
release of awards wili be made after this perod ends.

The 2014 LTIP awards were granted on 16 July 2014. The share price used to calculata the number of shares granted was
£19.17 {being the average price over the preceding three days).

b) Share Matching Plan awards

For the outstanding legacy Share Maiching Plan awards, TSR performance is measurad over thres different measurement
periods, each commencing on the date of grant - 20% of each award is measured over 18 months, 30% over 27 months and
50% over 38 months. 25% of each part of the award will become eligible for vesting for median petformance, incraasing (on a
straight line basis) to full vesting for upper quartile performance or above. However, for any of the awards to vest, the
commitlee must be safisfied that the company's TSR is refleclive of the company's undertying performance over the full three
year performance period. The 2012 SMP awards will vest, subject to performance, on 25 May 2015, However, tha current
indication is that the 2012 SMP will not meet the TSR performance measure and as such no sharas will vest.
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¢}

Deferred shares under the Annual Bonus Scheme

Each year, 50% of an executive director's annual bonus is deferred In shares for three years. The awards are granted in the
form of deferred shares. The 2014 award relates to the deferral of the annual bonus for 2013/14, The award was granted on
30 June 2014. Tha share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £19.38. The deferred shares relating to the
annual bonus for 2014/15 will be granted In June 2015,

d)

Save As You Earn

The executive directors, in common with all eligible UK employees of the group, are entitled to participate in the company's

HMRC tax advantaged SAYE Scheme.

e)

Share Incentive Plan

With the exception of Liv Garfield and Martin Kane, the executive directors received an award of free shares linked to the
performance of Severn Trent Water Limited under the Share Incentive Plan (worth £474) during the year, on the same terms
as cther Severn Trent Water Limited employees.

)

Liv Garfield's Recruitment Award

A one-off LTIP award was granted to Liv Garfield on 4 June 2014 as partial consideration for her significant unvested
entitements at her former employer. The award was split into three equal tranches, the face value of each being £812,500
{125% of base pay of £650,000) vesting in 2014, 2015 and 2016. The tranches are subject to the same performance condition
as the equivalent Sevem Trent LTIP awards vesting in each of those years (i.e. the 2011, 2012 and 2013 awards}. The first
tranche of the Recruitment Award vested at 100% on 5 June 2014 with a value upon release of £809,736. The second tranche
of the Recruitment Award vests at 100% in May 2015.

Directors' pension provisions

Service Increase in
compisted in accruoti
yaar Increase in pension Transfer Transfer
(including accrued during the value of value of Increase in Increase in
transferred in | Agcrued pension yaar {nat accrusd accruad transfer value value nat of
service penslon at | during the of pension at | pension at | net of directors’ directors’
Name credits) 31.03.15 year inflation) 31.03.14 31.0315 contributions contributions
Martin
Kane 35 £154,511 2,587 -1,515 2,828.7 2,711.5 -117.2 08
Andy
Smith 9 £41,226 -2,233 -3,406 804.7 802.4 -23 0.0
Tony
VWray 6 £31,573 830 0 547.6 599.7 52.1 0.0
Notes:

The accrued pension figures and transfer value calculations have been provided by Towers Watson. The inflation figure used In respect of the

year to March 2015 was as at September 2013 (2.7%) in line with statutory guidance for calculating the increase in value.

Andy Smith and Martin Kane have both elected to use the 'Scheme Pays’ approach to meeting tax charges on pension savings above the
annual allowance. The impact of this reduces the accrued pension and transfer value at 31 March 2015 by the following amounts;

Andy Smith - Pansion: £2,233 p.a. (of which £1,581 p.a. is in respect of the year to 31 March 2014) Transfer value: £43,500; and
Martin Kane — Pension: £1,474 p.a. (all of which Is In respect of the year to 31 March 2014) Transfer value: £26,000.
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Tony Wray and Andy Smith are deferred members of the Savemn Trent Pension Scheme (SSPS Section). Tony Wray ceased
to contribute to the Scheme from 31 December 2041 and Andy Smith ceased to contribute to the Schemse from 31 March
2014, when they became deferred pensioners of the Scheme and stopped accruing pensionable service.

Martin Kane is @ member of the Sevem Trent Pension Scheme (WPS Section) but opted out of the scheme on 30 June 2007.
While he no longer accrues additional years of service for pension purposes, consistent with the legislation, his accrued
benafits generally continue fo be linked to his final salary {or £161,000 plus RPI from 30 June 2007 to the date of his
retirement, if higher) and scheme benefits are preserved in refation to fll health retirement and death in service.

External directorships
Michasl McKeon was appointed as a non-executive director of The Merchants Trust Plc on 1 May 2008 and, in respect of his
appointment for the year ended 31 March 2015, he was paid fees of £27,750 (2014: £26,042).

Tony Wray was appointed &s a non-executive director of Grainger plc on 24 October 2011 and in respect of the appointment
(for the periad 1 to 11 April 2014) he was paid fees of £1,492 (2014: £48,500).

Liv Garfield was appointed as a non-executive director of Tesco plc on 1 April 2013 and served until her resignation on 28
February 2015. She recelved fees in respect of her appointment (for the peried 11 April 2014 to 28 February 2015} of £72,968.

No other executive directors currently hold any extemal fee eaming non-executive directorships.

Directors’ shareholdings and summary of outstanding share interests

As disclosed in the Policy Report, the company operates shareholding guidefines under which executive directors are
expected to bulld and maintain a shareholding in the company of 200% salary for the Chief Executive and 125% of salary for
other executive directors. Detalls of the current shareholdings of the directors and whether they have met the new
shareholding guideiines are set out balow.

Interests in shares as at 31 March 2015
Outstanding schems interests

Daferred shares % shareholding

Beneficlally under the Annual guidelina
Director owned LTIP and SMP Bonus SAYE options Total achiaved*
Jahn Coghlan 400 - - - 400 -
Richard Davey' 588 - - - 588 -
Andrew Duff 8,184 - - - 8.184 -
Gordon Fryett 2,312 - 2,312
Martin Lemb 3012 - - - 3,012 -
Baroness Noakes® 4018 - 4,018
Philip Remnant 1,400 - - 1,400 -
Dr Angela Strank 235 - - 235 -
Tony Ballance” 22,568 25,097 13,547 725 39,369 278%
Liv Garfield 21,748 124,828 ) - 1,136 125,964 4%
Martin Kane® 32,051 31,480 16,310 1.393 49,183 314%
Michael McKeon 55,455 55,543 29,782 - 86,325 242%
Andy Smith® 31,815 35,004 17,563 1,203 53,880 296%

a8
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Deforred shares % shareholding
Beneficially under the Annual guideline
Diractor owned LTIP and SMP Bonus SAYE options Total achieved*
Tony Wray* 45,837 356,253 0 - 35,253 -

*  The share price used to calculate the percentags of the shareholding guldeline achleved was £20.59 {as at 31 March 2015),

W N

Richard Davey retired from the board on 23 January 2015.
Baroness Noakes retired from the board on 16 July 2014,
Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith stepped down from the board on 23 January 2015.

Tony Wray retired from the board on 11 April 2014, the outstanding scheme interests have been adjusted to reflect a time pro rata
reduction,

Shares counting towards achievement of the guideline include beneficially owned shares and the net of tax value of deferred
shares under the annual bonus since they are not subject to performance conditions, The executive directors are expected to
retain all shares received through the vesting of any incentive schemes (after the settlement of any tax liability) until the

shareholding guidelines am met.

There has been no change in the directors’ interests in the ordinary share capital of the company between 31 March and

21 May 2015.
Percentage increase in the remuneration of the Chief Executive

2015 2014 % Change
Chief Executive {£'000)
~ Salary' 650.0 561.2 15.8%
— Benefits 16.6 165 0.6%
— Bonus 405.5 452.4 (10.4%)
Average per employee (£'000)
— Salary 28.8 285 1.1%
- Benefits” 0.5 0.4 25%
~ Bonus® 1.2 1.3 (7.7%)

1 The salary figure for 2015 has been adjusted to include salary pald into the pension scheme as an employer pension contribution via

salary sacrifice.

2 includes car allowance and famity level private medical Insuranca for senior and middle managers.
3  The figures are based on an estimata as the 2015 bonuses are not finalised before the date of publication.

The table above shows the movement in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the director occupying the role of Chigf
Executive betwean the current and previous finaricial year compared with that of the average employee. The Chief Exacutive
figures for 2014 relate to the former Chief Executive, Tony Wray. The figures for 2015 relate to the current Chief Executive, Liv

Garfield.

The committee has elected to use the average eamings per employee as this avoids the distortions that can occur to the
company’s total wage bill as a result of movements in the number of employees. The comparator group used were Severn

Trent Water Limited employees based in the UK as this is where the vast majority of our emplayees are based.
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Total shareholder return chart (not subject to audit}

This graph shows the value, at 31 March 2015, of £100 invested in Sevemn Trent Plc on 1 April 2009 compared with the value
of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 index. The FTSE 100 was chosen as the comparator index because the company Is a
constituent of that index. The intermediate points show the value at the intarvening financial year ends.

Total remuneration of the Chief Executive
Year ending 31 March

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Chief Executive Tony Wray | Tony Wray Tony Tony Wray Tony Liv
Wray Wray Garfield
Total remuneration (£'000) 1,027.0 9468 1,244.1 1,635.3 1,818.4 2,097.7
Annual bonus (% of maximum) 51.5% 43.2% 48.1% 82.4% 78.7% 52.0%
LTIP vesting {% of maximum) 63.0% 0.0% 26.4% 57.5% 100% 100%
SMP vesting {% of maximum} - - - - 78% -

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the expenditure of the company on staff costs against dividends paid to shareholders for both the
current and prior financial periods, and the percentage change between the two periods.

2015 2014 % Change
Staff costs (£'m) 369.5 351.9 5.0%
Dividends (£'m) 196.9 185.3 6.3%

How the policy will be applied In 2015 onwards
Salary, benefits and pension

The base satary for the Chief Executive will increasa by 2.1% on 1 July 2015 {from £650,000 to £663,650). This is lower than
the average increase that will apply to the general UK workforce. As a new joiner to the company, James Bowling's salary will
next be reviewed on 1 July 2016. The base salarigs for the executive directors from 1 July 2015 are therefore as follows:

Liv Garfield £663,650

James Bowling £400,000

Benefits and pension provision wili be applied in line with the policy set out in the table on pages 71 and 72.

Annual bonus

The structure and operation of the annual bonus for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer will be as outlined in the
policy table, The performance measures will be Sevem Trent Water profit before interest and tax (50%), business unit
performance (40%) and personal performance (10%). The business unit performance relates to performance against Severn
Trent Water Outcome Delivery Incentives (25%), Severn Trent Business Services profit before interast and tax (10%) and
heatth and safety performance (5%). The Remuneration Committes considers the forward-looking performance targets to be
commercially sensitive and has, therefore, determined not to disclose them in advance. Details of the targets used will be
disclosed In next year's Remuneration report.
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Long Term incentive Plan

LTIP awards for 2015 will be 125% of salary for the Chief Executive and 80% for the Chief Financial Officer, and will be made
as soon as possible after the AGM (subject to approval of the Policy report). The awards will be based en return on reguiatory
equity (RORE) over the three year pericd to 31 March 2018. Our three year average RORE parformancs will be compared with
the baseline RORE figure set by Ofwat in our Final Determination. 25% of the award will vest if average RORE matches the
baseline figure of 5.65%, increasing on a straight line basis to full vesting for outperforming the baseline by 1.29 times
{equivalent to 7.29%). The Remuneration Committee considers that the threshold target is demanding and more challenging
than the RORCV target set for the previous AMP. It also considers that the upper targst is very challenging and would require
very significant QD1 and financing outperformance, together with a very high level of efficiencies, and was set significantly
ahead of analyst consensus.

Retirement from the board of Michael McKeon

Michael Mckeon will be retiring from the company on 31 May 2015, He will not receive any compensation for loss of office, As
a retires, Michael McKeon will be treated as a good leaver in relation to his cutstanding incentive awards. Consistent with the
policy on terminations, his bonus for 2014/15 will be paid in cash and his outstanding deferred share bonus awards will vest, in
full, on cessation of employment. His outstanding awards under the SMP and LTIP will continue 10 vest on the normal vesting
dates, subject to performance and a time pro rata reduction (where relevant). Any outstanding awards under the company's
HMRC tax advantaged all employee share plans vest in accordance with their tarms.

Recruitment of James Bowling as Chief Financial Officer

The remuneration package granted to .James Bowling on appointment is as follows:
e Salary of £400,000

s Pension contribution of 25% of salary

« Annual bonus potential of 120% of salary

« LTIP grant level of 80% of salary

The annual bonus and LTIP levels are in line with our policy. A one off LTIP award was necessary to secure his appoiniment,
as partial consideration for his significant unvested entitlements at his previous employer. The award will be split into three
equal tranches, the face value of each being £308,000 vesting in 2015, 2016 and 2017. It will be subject to the same
performance conditions as the equivalent Sevem Trent LT|P awards vesting in each of those years.

Non-executive directors” fees
There have been no changes to the fee levels for the Chairman and non-executive directors during the year. The current fee
levels are set out in the table below:

Fees

Chairman's fee £257,000

Base fee paid to all non-executive directors " £51,350
Supplementary fees:

— Senior Independent Director £10,000

- Audit Committee Chaimman £15,000

- Remuneration Committee Chairman £15,000

- Corporate Responsibility Committee Chaimman £13,000
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The Chairman and non-executive directors nomally serve for terms of three years. The current expiry dates of their lettsrs of
appointment are John Coghlan (22 May 2017), Andrew Duff (9 May 2016), Gordon Fryett {20 June 2015}, Martin Lamb (1
March 2017), Philip Remnant {31 March 2017) and Dr Angela Strank (24 January 2017). Howevar, all of the directors are

subject to reappointment at the 2015 AGM.

Statement of shareholding voting at AGM

At last year's AGM, the Directors’ Remuneration report and policy received the following votes from shareholders:

Resolution Votas for Votes against Votes withheld

Approve Directors’ Remuneration Report 138,974,228 908,111 (0.65%) 719,294
(99.35%) -

Approve Directors’ Remuneration Policy 136,960,503 3,276,685 (2.34%) 362,862
(97.66%)

Philip Remnant

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

21 May 2015
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited group financial statements, for the year ended 31
March 2015. The Governance section set out on pages 52 to 60 forms part of this report.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the group is to treat and provide water and remove waste water in the UK and
internationally.

Details of the principal joint ventures, associated and subsidiary undertakings of the group at 31 March 2015 are
shown in notes 19 and 45 to the financial statements on pages 119 and 145 to 148,

Business review

The Strategic report on the inside front cover through to page 46 provides detailed information relating to the
group, its business models and strategy, the operation of its businesses, future developments and the results and
financial position for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Details of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the group are set out in the risk management section
on pages 38 o 42.

Directors and their interests

Biographies of the directers currently serving on the board are set out on pages 48 and 49. In addition, Michael
M_cKeon and Richard Davey served as directors during the year ended 31 March 2015.

All of the directors will be offering thamselves for election or re-election at the Annual General Meeting {AGM), as
set out in the Govemance report on page 52.

Details of directors’ service contracts are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on page 76. The interests of
the directors in the shares of the company are shown on page 87 of that report. The board has a full documented
process in place in respect of conflicts which is documented on page 57 and 58.

Insurance and indemnities

The company maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought
against its directors and officers. In accordance with the company's Articles of Association, and to the extent
permitted by law, the company indemnifled each of its directors and other officers of the group against certain
liabilities that may be incurred as a result of their positions with the group.

Severn Trent does not have in place any indemnities for the benefit of the auditors.

Employees
The average number cf employees within the group is shown in note 9 to the financial statements on page 112.

Severn Trent believes a diverse and inclusive workforce is a key factor in being a successful business. This
means more than ensuring we don’t discriminate in any way — we want to create and maintain a cuiture open to a
diverse population. We endeavour to keep employees in the workforce if they become disabled, and make
reasonable adjustments to their role as well as looking for redepioyment opportunities elsewhere in the company
if necessary. All our training, promotion and career development processes are in place for all our employees to
access, regardless of their gender, race, age or disability.

The provision of accupational health programmes is of crucial importance to Severn Trent with the aim of keeping
our employees fit and healthy, including an employee assistance programme which is available to Severn Trent
Water Limited employess.
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The group actively encourages employee involvement and consultation and places emphasis on keeping its
employees informed of its activity and financial performance by way of company wide communication forums,
briefings and publication to staff of all relevant information and corporate announcements. To help align
employees’ interests with the success of the Company’s performance, Severn Trent offers employees, the Severn
Trent Sharesave Scheme, an HM Revenue and Customs approved SAYE plan, which is offered to UK employees

on an annual basis.

Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is set out in note 7 to the financial statements on page 111.

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the EU Fair Value Directive in relation to the use of financial instruments by the
company are set out in note 35 to the financial statements on pages 131 to 137. Further details on our treasury
policy and management are set out in the Financial review on page 43.

Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet events are set oul in note 43 to the group financial statements on page 145.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 33.98 pence per ordinary share was paid on 9 January 2015. The directors recommend a
final dividend of 50.94 pence per ordinary share to be paid on 24 July 2015 to shareholders on the register on
18 June 2015. This would bring the total dividend for 2014/15 to 84.90 pence per ordinary share (2014;

80.40 pence). The payment of the final dividend is subject to shareholder approval at the AGM.

Capital structure

Details of the Company's issued share capital and of the movements during the year are shown in note 8 to the
Company financial statements on page 152. The Company has cne class of ordinary shares which carries no right
to fixed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company. The issued nominal
value of the ordinary shares is 100% of the total issued nominal value of all share capital.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are hoth governed
by the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation. The directors are not aware of
any agreements between holders of the Company's shares that may resuit in restrictions on the transfer of
securities or on voting rights.

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 37 to the financlal statements on pages 139 and 140. For
shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, the trustee abstains from voting.

No person has any special rights of control over the Company's share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.

With regard to the appointment and replacement of directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of
Association, the Governance Code, the Companies Act 2006 and refated legislation. The Articles may be
amended by speclal resolution of the shareholders. The powers of directors are described in the Severn Trent Plc
Board Governance document, the Articles and the Governance Report on pages 53 and 54.

Under its Articles of Association, the directors have authority to allot ordinary shares, subject to the aggregate
nominal amount limit set at the 2014 AGM.

There are a number of agreements that take effect after, or terminate upon, a change of contrel of the Company,
such as commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease arrangements and employee share plans.
None of these is considered to be significant in terms of their likely impact on the business of the group as a
whole. There are no agreements between the Company and its directors or employees that provide for
compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid.
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 March 2015 the Company had been notified in accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the following major shareholdings:

Percentage

No, of of vating

ordinary rights and

shares of iasued

Name of Holder 87"/ ,p sach | share capital
Btackrock Inc 23,457,458 9.87%
Legal & General Group Plc 9,523,698 3.99%

As at 21 May 2015, the Company had been notified of the following holdings of voting rights in the ordinary share
capital of the Company: Blackrock Inc 23,457,458 (9.87%); Legal & General Group Plc 9,523,698 (3.99%).

Authority to purchase shares

The Company was given authority at its AGM in 2014 to make market purchases of ordinary shares up to a
maximum number of 23,949,741 ordinary shares. Similar authority will again be sought from sharehelders at this
year's AGM. On 13 February 2015, the Company announced that it would commence a share repurchase
programme. Following that announcement, during the year ended 31 March 2015 market! purchases of 966,578
ordinary shares were made with alf of these shares being cancelled following their purchase at an average price
of 2,031 pence. Following the year end, a further 882,678 ordinary shares have been repurchased to 21 May
2015 at an average price of 2,139 pence. In total 1,018,092 ordinary shares have been cancelled with 733,946
ordinary shares being held in treasury at 21 May 2015 to satisfy future share based awards under long term
incentives plan and no ordinary shares having been transferred from treasury to satisfy the exercise of share
options.

The share repurchase was considered a low risk method of returning capital to shareholders, satisfying future
share awards and moving gearing in Severn Trent Water Limited towards the 62.5% net debt/RCV notional level
used by Ofwat in the price review PR14, The share repurchase has had minimal impact on EPS, with less than
0.5% of issued share capital cancelled during the year, increasing EPS by 0.1%.

Contributions for political and charitable purposes

Donatlons to charitable organisations during the year amounted to £157,648 (2014: £108,000). Donations are
given fo charities whose projects align closely with our aim to promote the responsible use of water resources and
waste water sefvices which provide the opportunity for longer term partnerships. In addition, we provide donations
to employee nominated charities through a matched funding scheme and health and safety reward schemes. We
are also committed to supporting WaterAid, the UK's enly major charity dedicated to improving access to safe
water, hygiene and sanitation in the worid's poorest countries.

Severn Trent's policy is not o make any donations for political pumposes in the UK, or to donate to EU poiitical
parties or incur EU political expenditure. Accordingly neither Severn Trent Pi¢ nor its subsidiaries made any
political donations or incurred political expenditure in the financial year under review.
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Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elections and Referendums Act 2000 (the relevant provisions of which
are now contained in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006), shareholder authority is required for palitical donations
to be made or political expenditure to be incurred by the company or any of its subsidiaries in the EU and
disclosure of any such payment must be made in the Annual Report. The legislation gives a wide definition of
what constitutes political donations and political expenditure including sponsorship, subscriptions, payment of
expenses, paid leave for employees fulfilling public duties and support for bodies representing the business
community in policy review or reform. The Company has therefore obtained limited authority from shareholders as
a precautionary measure to aliow the Company te continue supporting the community and such organisations
without inadvertently breaching the legislation.

At the 20714 AGM, shareholders gave the Company authority to make political donations or to incur political
expenditure in the EU (which would not ordinarily be regarded as political donations) up to an aggregate annual
limit of £150,000 for the Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to those authorities, during the year ended

34 March 2015 the group incurred costs of £nil (2014: £nil). Those authorities will expire at the 2015 AGM and, in
line with market practice to renew the authorities on an annual basis, the board has decided to put forward a
resolution to this year'’s AGM to renew the authorities to make donations to political organisations and to incur
political expenditure up to a maximum aggregate of £150,000 per annum. As permitted under the Companies Act
20086, this resolution also covers any political donations made or political expenditure incurred, by any subsidiaries
of the Company.

Supplier payment policy

Individual operating companies within the group are responsible for establishing appropriate policies with regard
to the payment of their suppliers, in accordance with the Prompt Payment Code (PPC). The companies agree
terms and conditions under which business transactions with suppliers are conducted. It is group policy that
provided a supplier is complying with the relevant terms and conditions, including the prompt and complete
submission of all specified documentation, payment will be made in accordance with agreed terms. It is also group
policy to ensure that suppliers know the terms on which payment will take place when business is agreed.

Report on greenhouse gas emissions
This is the second year Severn Trent has been required to report greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in the
Directors’ report.

Severn Trent is committed to reducing its GHG emissions. For Severn Trent Water Limited, which accounts for 98
% of our total group emissions, we have been publicly reporting on our emissions since 2002. In that time we
have reduced our emissions primarily by being more energy efficient and generating more renewable energy.

Our continued investmenht in renewable energy over the past decade and beyond now allows us to generate
250 GWh per annum, the equivalent of 28% of Severn Trent Water Limited's electricity needs over the year.

During the last year, we began generating renewable electricity from food waste, increased generation from
energy crops and wind power and began injecting renewable biogas from sewage directly into the national gas
grid.

In 2009 we set ourselves a target to generate the equivalent of 30% of Sevem Trent Water's electricity needs by
2015. In February 2015 we met that target, generating the equivalent of 31% in the month, which rose to 33% in
March. We cantinue to lead the UK water industry in renewable energy production. Our aim is fo retain this
leading position by generating the equivalent of 50% of our electricity needs by 2020.

Severn Trent Water has held the Carbon Trust Standard since 2009 in recagnition of consistent emissions
reductions and effective carbon management processes. Our Gross Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions have
continued to reduce since we first achieved the standard because of our reduction in energy consumption and our
increase in self supplied renewable energy. This year, Severn Trent Water used 885 GWh of electricity, which is

17 GWh (2%) less than in 2009-10.
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Our approach of generating more of our own energy and reducing the amount we use reduces our costs and our
reliance on the electricity grid.

Further details about our approach to climate change and the risks and opportunities it presents to our business
are set out in our Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) submission (www.cdp.net). The CDP request infermation
about climate change from companies each year on behalf of investors and score each company on the quality
and completeness of their respanses. We have seen a year on year improvement in our CDP score and in 2014
we achieved 85%, compared to the average score of 77% across FTSE 350 companies.

Our GHG emissions are reported in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent {CQO4e), for the period 1 April 2014 to
31 March 2015,
Our total net emissions have risen this year, due entirely to an 11% increase in the emissions intensity of grid

electricity; a factor over which we have no control. On a like for like basis our emissions from the use of fuel and
operation of our facilities and our total energy consumption decreased by 1% compared to last year.

The GHG data we report is reported internally during the year to the Corporate Responsibility Committee and to
the board. We have subjected our GHG data and processes to external assurance by Atkins.

Severn Trent Plc Direct Operational Greenhouse Gas Emisslons (tonnes CO26) 2014-15 2013-14
Emissions from combustion of fuel and operation of fac'lli'des (Scope 1) 154,644 169,344
Emisslons from electricity purchased

for own use (Scope 2) 357,756 330,697
Tota! Annual Gross Operational Emissions 512,400 500,623
Emissions benefit of the renewable energy we export (indluding biomethane axportad for which we hold

green gas certificates) {38,878) (21,672)
Total Annuai Mot Qperational Emissions A73,5%2 478 851
Annual GHG intansity ratio (t COfunit) 2014-15 2013-14
Operational GHG emisslons of Severn Trent per £m turnover 269.7 269.6

Cur approach to reporting is based on the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard and we
have included only emissions from the assets which we own and operate and which we can directly influence and
reduce, known as the financial control boundary. In accordance with the reporting regulations, we have not
reporied on emissions we can influence, but which we are not responsible for, referred to as indirect emissions.

For Severn Trent Water, we have calculated our emissions using the ‘Carbon accounting in the UK Water
Industry: methodology for estimaling operational emissions, Version 9.11’ (released April 2015). This is a peer
reviewed calculation tool developed and used by all the major water companies in the UK. it is updated each year
to include the latest available emissions factors. For Severn Trent Services, we have used the latest Defra
Emissions factors which include the relevant conversion factors for overseas electricity.

Our long term aim is to be carbon neutral and energy self sufficient, provided that this is the best value option for
our customers and investors, We plan to continue to reduce our emissions within Severn Trent Water by a further
7% between 2015 and 2020, primarily by redhicing ocur energy use. We plan to continue to increase our renewable
generation mainly within our non-regulated business. Pursuing these measures will continue to reduce our key
sources of emissions, reduce our reliance on the electricity grid and bring financial benefits for our customers and
investors.

Internal controls
The board is respansible far the group's system of intemal controt and for reviewing its effectiveness. The board
regulariy reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including risk management, financial,

Governance 107




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

operational and compliance aspects, in accordance with the requirements of the Governance Code. The internal
control system can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as
it is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Audit Commitiee reviews the group’s risk management process and the effectiveness of the system of
internal controls on behalf of the board and keeps under review ways in which to enhance the control and
assurance arrangements. The Audit Committee receives reports every six months from the Chief Executive
detailing the significant risks and uncertainties faced by the group, an assessment of the effectiveness of controls
over each of those fisks and an action plan fo improve controls where this has been assessed as necessary.
During its review of risk management during 2014/15, the board explicitly considered the target position for
significant risks. The board considered whether target risk positions are appropriate and confirmed that suitable
timescales are agreed for reaching these target positions. '

During the course of its review of the system of internal control in 2014/15, the Audit Committee has not identified
nor been advised of any significant failings or weaknesses which it has determined to be significant to the group.

The internal Audit department provides objective assurance on risk management, governance and control
matters. The external auditors (Deloitte) report significant financial control issues to the Audit Commitige.

An independent reporter (Atking) provides objective assurance in relation to the Severn Trent Water Limited
Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement and Annual Regulatory Performance Report. Deloitte performed
calculations of the financial KPls included in the Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement and the Annual

Regulatory Performance Report.

The board confirms that procedures providing an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the

principal risks and uncertainties faced by the group has been in place for the year to 31 March 2015 and up to the

date of approval of the Annual Report, which Is in accordance with the revised guidance on internal control

published in Octaber 2005 (the Turnbull Guidance).

The group's procedures for exercising control and managing risk in relation to financial reporting and preparation

of consolidated accounts include:

» the formulation and communication of group accounting policies which are regularly updated for
developments in IFRS and other reporting requirements,

 specification of a set of financial controls that all of the group's operating businesses are required to
implement as a minimum;

+ deployment of a group-wide consclidation system with contrels to restrict access and maintain integrity of
data;

o recruitment, fraining and development of appropriately quaiified and experienced financial reporting
personnel;

« oversight by the Disclosure Committee of the group’s compliance with its disclosure obligations; and

« monthly reviews by the board of financial reports from the group’s operating businesses.
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Relevant audit information

The directors confirm that:

e sofar as each of them is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are
unaware; and

« each of them has taken all the steps that he/she ought o have taken as a director to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that
information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

External auditors

Having carried out a review of their effectiveness during the year, the Audit Committee has recommended to the
board the reappointment of Deloitte LLP. The reappointment and a resolution to that effect will be on the agenda
at the AGM. Deloitte LLP indicated their willingness to continue as auditors. The Audit Committee will also be
responsible for determining the audii fee on behalf of the board.

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The information required to be disclosed by Listing Rule 9.8.4R can be located in the following pages of this
Annual Report and Accounts:

Section Infarmation to ba included Lacation

{1) A statement of the amount of interest capitalised 112

(4) Details of long term incentive schemes 79

(8) Section 7 in relation to any major subsidlary undertakings 145

(2). (5), (6). (7). (B)}{14) Not epplicable

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

Regulatory accounts for Severn Trent Water Limited are prepared and sent to Cfwat. A copy of these accounts
will be available on the website of Severn Trent Water Limited (www.stwater.co.uk) or on request to the Company
Secretary. There is no charge for this publication. '

Going concern

The group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position and the business reviews of Severn Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Services are set out in the
Strategic report, from the inside front cover to page 35. The financial position of the group, its cash flows, liquidity
position and borrowing facilities are described in the Financial review on pages 43 to 46. The group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing its capital and its financial risk management objectives are described in the
Financial review on pages 43 to 46 and in the Governance report. Details of the group’s financial instruments,
hedging activities and exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk are described in note 35 to the group financial
statements,
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The group’s principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water Limited, is a regulated long term business
characterised by multi year investment programmes. The group’s strategic funding objectives reflect this. The
group therefore seeks to attain a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding
at the best possible economic cost. Average debt maturity is 15 years and the effective average interest cost
during the year was 5.6%. The group is in a strong liquidity position and had £176.7 million in cash and liquid
raserves and £745 million of undrawn committed bank facilities at 31 March 2015, which are expected to be
sufficient to fund its investment and cash flow needs at least until July 2016 in the normal course of business.

Severn Trent Water Limited operates in an industry that is currently subject to economic regulation rather than
market competition, although Cfwat have signalled an intention to intreduce more competition in their 2020 water
purification sector. Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set price limits that it believes will
enable the water companies to finance their activities. As a consequence the directors believe that the group is
well placed to manage its business risks successfully.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be held at the International Convention Centre, Broagd Street, Birmingham B1 2EA
at 11am on Wednesday 15 July 2015. The notice convening the meeting, together with details of the business to
be considered and explanatory notes for each resolution, is distributed separately to shareholders. It is also
available on our website (www.severntrent.com).

By order of the board

Bronagh Kennedy

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
21 May 2015
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial Stalements for gach financial year. Under that law the
directors are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have
elected lo prepare the group financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework. Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for

that period.

in preparing the parent company Financial Statements, the directors are required to:
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e« slate whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

In preparing the group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

o properly sefect and apply accounting policies;

« present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information;

» provide additional disclosures when compiiance with the specific requirements in [FRSs are insufficient to
enabie users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's
financial position and financiaf perfformance; and

« make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the Financial Staterments comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
rasponsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of cur knowledge:

* the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financia! reporting framework, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the underiakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whale;

e the Strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face; and
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» the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
pravide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s performance, business model

and strategy.
This responsibility statement was approved by the board of directors on 21 May 2015 and is signed on its behalf

by: -—1 |

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
21 May 2015
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Income statement

Eamings per share, group revenue, costs and other important financial information.

Further details are provided on page 96

Balance sheet
The group's balance sheet at 31 March 2015,

Further details are provided on page 99

Notes
Accounting policies, segmental information and other helpful guidance.

Further details are provided on page 101

Group financial statements
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

Opinion on financial
statements of
Severn Trent Plc

In cur opinion:

the financlal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs

as at 31 March 2015 and of the group’s profit for the year then anded;

s  the group financlal statements have been propery prepared in eccordance with Intemational Financiat
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as sdopted by the European Union;

s the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

e the financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 af the |IAS Regulation.

The financial statements comprise the Consclidated income statement, the Consolidated and Parent Company
statements of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Parent Company balance sheets, the
Consolidated cash flow statement, the Cansofidated and Parent company statements of changes in equity and
the related Consolidated notes 1 to 45 and Parent Company notes 1 to 16. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the group finandial statements is applicabie law and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framswork that has been appliad in the preparation of
the parent company financlal statements is appficatle law and Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disdlosure Framewark,

Going concem

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement contained within the Directors’

Repart on page 89 that the group Is 2 going concesn. W confirm that:

»  we have concluded that the directors' use of the going cancern basis of accounting in the preparaticn of
the financial statements is appropriate; and

«  we have not Identified any material uncertaintles that may cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to
continue as a going concarn.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to

the group’s ability to continue as a going concem,

Our assessment of risks The assessed risks of material misstatement describad below are those that had the grealest effact pn our
of material audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team,
misstatement

Risk How the scopa of our audit responded to the riek

Determination of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables in Sovern Trent Water Limited (£122.5 miltion)

{note 4)

A proportion of Severn Trent Water Limited's customers do notor We reviewed and chaflenged the information used to determine the
cannot pay their bills which results in the need for provisions to be bad debt provision by considering cash collection performance
made for non payment of the customer balance. There is agalnst historical trends and the level of bad debt charges over
significant Judgement invalved in calculating the bad debt time, Specifically, we reviewed the actual history of slow paying
provision, particularly regarding the estimation of future cash customers in Savemn Trent Water Limited in the period using data
collection. analytics to understand the collsction of previously aged debtors

Provisions are made against Severn Trent Water Limited’s trade
recelvables based on historical experience of lavels of recovery
from acgounts in paricular ageing categories.

and to recompute the ageing analysis. We alsc tested the key
controls relating to the production of the data used in the bad debt
model and agreed a sample of this data back to its source, baing
the billing system,

Group financial statements
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rRtamanue recognition risk in relation to the estimation of
unbilled revenue in $evern Trent Water Limited (£192.5
mitlion) (note &)

For water and waste water customers with water meters, the
amount recognised depends upon the voluma supplied, including
an estimate of the sales value of units supplied between the date
of the last meter reading and the year end. This is a key judgement
because the estimated usage is based upon historical data and
assumptions around consumption pattemns.

We challenged the validity of management’s estimate of current
year accrued revenue by comparing actual amounts billed to the
estimate made in the prior year to determine the accuracy of the
estimation techniques. In addition, we used data analytics to
racompute the total level of unbifled revenue for the current year In
Severn Trent Water Limited as well es testing the operating
sffactiveness of controls relating to the key data inputs to the model
and agreed a sample of thig data back ta lts source.

Determining the classification of costs between operating
expenditure and capital expenditure in Severn Trent Water
Limited (note 7}

Sevemn Trent Water Limited has a substantial capital programme
{fixed asset additions in the year £423.8 million) which has been
agreed with Ofwat and thersfore incurs significant expenditure in
relation to the development and malntenance of both infrastructure
and non infrastructure assets. Expenditure in relation to increasing
the capacity or enhancing the network is treated as capital
expenditurs. Expenditure incurred In maintalning the oparating
capability of the network is expensed in the yaar (£134.8 million) in
which it is incurred. Capital projects often contain a combination of
enhancement and maintanance activity which are not distinct and
therefore the allocation of costs between capital and operating
expenditure is inherently judgemental.

We assessed the group’s capitalisation policy lo determine
compliance with relevant accounting standards and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over the application of the policy
to expenditure incurred on projects within the group's capitat
programme during the year. This includes consideration of the
allocation of costs between capital and operating expenclture.

In addition, for a semple of capitad projects, we assessed the
application of the capitalisation policy to the costs incurred by
agreement to third party invoices and obtalned explanations and
further support for any significant changes in capital axpenditure
from budget.

Determining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit
obligations (£468.9 million deficit) (note 28)

This is a key area of judgement because the process Is complex
and requires management {after taking advice from their actuarial
advisers) to make a number of assumptions conceming long term
interest rates, inflation, salary and pension increases, investment
returns and longevity of curment and future pensionars.

With support from the pension spedialists within our sudit team, we
challanged the assumptions used in the calculation of the penslon
scheme deficit as detailed In note 28, specifically regarding the
discount rate, inflation rate and mortality assumptions with
reference to comparable market and other third party data.

Determination of current and deferred tax balances
{£32.7 miltion) (note 13)

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires
judgements to be made regarding the resuft of nagotiations with,
and enquiries from, tax authorities in a number of jurisdictions.

With support from tha tax specialists within our audit taam, we
considered the likely outcomes of unceriain {ax positions and
raviewed correspondence with the relevant tax suthorities to assess
the appropriateness of the tax balances that have baen recorded in
the balance sheet.

The description of risks above should be read in conjunction with the significant issues considered by the Audit

Committee discussed on page 63.
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Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and not to express an apinion on individual accounts or disclosures. Qur opinion on the
financial statements is not modified with respect to any of the risks described above, and we do not express an
opinion on these individual matters.

Our application of
materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of missiatement In the financial stataments that makes it
probabie that the sconomic decisions of a reasanably knowledgeable person would be changed or
influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resulis
of our work.

We determined materiality for the group to ba £18 milken {2014: £18 million), which is approximately
8.0% (2014: approximately 7.0%} of pre-tax profit before exceptional items and other adjustments
induding the fair value movements in financial instruments. As in 2014, these itams are excluded to
focus on the group's undedying trading performance, consistent with the group's intemal and extemal
reporting.

We agreed with the Audit Committes that wa would report to the committee ail audit diferences in
excess of £750,000, as well as differences balow that threshold that, In our view, wamranted reporting on
qualitative grounds. We algo report o the Audit Committee on disclosure judasments that we identified
when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statéments.

An overview of the scope
of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the group and its environment, including
group-wide confrols, and assessing the risks of mataerial misstatement at the group level. Based on that
asgessment, we focused our group audit scope on fhe consolidation at the parent company level and
the group’s two business segments being Sevem Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Services.
Severn Trent Water Limited was subject to a full statutory audit using component materiality of £15
million and it accounts for over 90% {2014: over 80%) of the group's net operating assets and operating
profit. The extant of our testing on Sevem Tren( Services was based on our assessment of the risks of
materisl misstatement and the materiatity of the segment’s global business operations, principally in the
UK and the US, The materiality of each component belng lower than that of the group, with the highest
matertality {£12 milfion) applied to the US component,

At the parent company level, we also tested the consolidation process and camied out anatytical
procedures to confiem our conclusion that there wers no significant risks of material misstatement of the
aggregated financial information of the remalning components riot subject to audit or audit of specified
account balances.

The group audit team follows a programme of planned visits ta the auditors of each of the significant
components of the group not audited by the group team. This primarily relates to the Sevem Trent
Services audlt team in the US. The Senior Statutory Auditor or another senior member of the group
team visits the Sevemn Trent Services audit team in the US at least once every two years. in years when
we do not visit a significant component we will include the component audit team in our team briefing,
discuss their risk assessment, and review documentation of the findings from their work.

Oplnion on other matters
prescribed by the
Companles Act 2008

In our opinion:

« the part of the Diractors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

» theinformation given In the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which
we are required to
report by exception

Adequacy of explanations
raceived and accounting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion:
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records * we have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

Wae have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Directors’ remunerztion Under the Companles Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disciosures of
directors' remunaration have not bean made or the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be
gudited is not in agreement with the accounting records and retums. We have nothing to report arising
from these matters,

Corporate Governance .Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of the Corporate Govemance Statement
Statement relating to the company's compliance with ten provisions of the UK Carporate Governance Code. We
have nathing to report arising from our raview.

Qur duty to read other Under Intemational Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you if, in our

Information [n the opinion, information in the annual! report is:

Annual Repart *  materially Inconsistent with the information in the sudited financial statements; or

s  apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the
group acquired In the course of performing our audit; or

+ otherwise misieading.

In parficular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencles betwaen cur

knowledge acquired during the audi and the directors' statement that they consider tha annual report is

fair. balanced and understandable and whether the annual report appropriately discloses those matters

that we communicated to the audit committes which we consider should have been disclosed. We

confinm that we have not ldentified any such inconsistencies or misleading statements.

Respective responsibilities As explained more fully in tha Directors' Responsibiiities Statement, the directars are responsible for the
of diractors and auditor preparation of the finandal statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and falr view. Our
responsibillty is to audit and exprass an opinlon on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. We alsa comply with
Intamational Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and ireland). Our audit methodology and tools aim to
ensure that our quality control procedures are effective, understood and applied. Our quality controls
and systems include our dedicated professicnal standards review team and Independent partner
reviews.

This report is made selely to the company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has bean undertaken so that we might state to the
company's membars those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullast extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibliity to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
repori, or for the opinions we have formed,

Scope of the audit of the An audit Involves obtzining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
financial staternents sufficient to glve reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or emor. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disciosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financiaf statements. In addltion, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual repont to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any inforration that is apparently
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matenially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of perfarming the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report.

Carl D Hughes MA FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

21 May 2015
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015

I 2015 2014
Restated
Notes £m £m
Turnover 5.6 1,801.3 1.756.7
Operating costs before exceptional items 7 (1,261.0) (1,232.9)
Exceptional operating costs 8 (18.7) {15.2)
Total operating costs 7 {1.279.7) (1.248.1)
Profit before Interast, tax and exceptional items 5 540.3 523.8
Exceptional items before interest and tax 8 (18.7) (15.2)
Profit before interest and tax 5218 508.6
Finance income 18 81.7 80.8
Financa costs 11 {321.7) (328.7}
Net finance costs (240.0) (247.9)
{LossesYgains on finandal instrumenis 12 {133.5) 58.0
Share of results of assodates and joint ventures 01 0.2
Profit before tax, (losses)/gains on financia! instruments and exceptional items 300.4 276.1
Exceptional items before tax 8 {18.7) (15.2)
(Losses)gains on finandial instruments 12 (133.5) 58.0
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 148.2 3189
Current tax excluding exceptional credit 13 (37.8) {55.8)
Deferred tax excluding axceptional credit 13 5.1 (21.5)
Exceptional tax credit 13 - 230.2
Total taxation on prafit on ordinary activities 13 (32.7} 1529
Profit for the year from continuing operations 115.5 471.8
Profitiloss) for the year from discontinued operations 38 4.7 {36.9)
Profit for the year 120.2 434.9
Attributabie to:
Owners of the company 118.1 433.8
Non-controlling interests 11 1.1
120.2 434.9
Earnings per sharo (pence)
From continuing operations
Basic 15 48.3 198.5
Diluted 15 431 197.6
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic 15 499 1821
Diluted 15 48.6 181.3
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
£m Em
Profit for the year 120.2 434.9
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassifiad to the income statement:
Net actuarial {lossy¥gain on defined benefit pension schemes {143.4} a7
Tax on net actuarial loss/galn 28.8 {0.8)
Defarred iax arising on change of rate - {12.3)
(114.6) (9.4)
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement.
{Loss¥gain on cash flow hedges (13.8) 151
Daferred tax on loss/galn on cash flow hedges 28 (3.0}
Amounts on cash fiow hedges transferred to the income statement in the year 236 8.1
Deferred tax on transfers to income statement {4.7) (1.8)
Exchange movement on transiation of averseas results and net assets 8.9 9.7)
168 8.9
Other comprehensive loss for the year (07.8) (0.5)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 224 A34.4
Attributable to:
Ownaers of the company 19.6 4343
Nen-controliing interests 28 0.1
24 434.4
120
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Non-
controliin
Share Share Other | Retained g Total
capital premium reservas eamings Total interests equity
° £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apri 2013 2333 Ba.7 72.3 437.9 833.2 10.8 844.0
Profit for the period - - - 433.8 4338 1.1 434.9
Galns on cash fiow hedpes - - 151 - 151 - 15.1
Deferred tax on gains on cash flow hedges - - (3.0) - (3.0) - (3.0)
Amounts on cash fiow hedges transferred to
the income statement - - 8.1 - 8.1 - 8.1
Deferred tax on transters to the income
statement - - (1.6) - (1.6} - {1.6)
Exchange movement on tranglation of overseas
results and nat assets - - (8.7) - (8.7) {1.0) (9.7)
Actuarial gains - - - 37 37 - 3.7
Tax on actuarial gains - - - {0.8) (0.8} - (0.8}
Deferred tax arising from rate changs - - - (12.3) {12.3) - (12.3)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 9.9 424 4 4343 0.1 4344
Share options and LTIPs
—  procesds from shares lssued 0.6 4.5 - - 51 - 5.1
- value of amployaes’ services - - - 5.4 58 - 58
=  own shares purchased - - - {2.8) (2.8) - (2.8)
Curvent tax on share based payments - - - el 10 - 10
Adjustment arising from change in non-
controlling interest - - - (13.7) {(13.7) 2.2 (11.5)
Dividends paid - - - {185.3) {185.3) (0.6 (185.9)
&31 March 2014 2339 24.2 B2.2 667.3 1,077.6 12.5 1,080.1
Profit for tha pariod - - - 119.1 119.1 1.1 120.2
Lasses on cash flow hedges - - (13.8) - (13.8) - {13.8)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - - 28 - 2.8 - 2.8
Amounts on cash flow hedges ransfemed to
the income stalement - - 236 - 23.6 - 23.6
Deferred tax on ransfers to the income
statement - - 4.7) - (4.7) - (4.7)
Exchange movement on translation of overseas ~ - 7.2 - 72 17 89
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Equity attributable to owners of the company

Non-
controllin
Share Share Other | Retained g Total
capital | premium | regserves | eamnings Total interests aquity
£m Em £m £m £m £m £m
results and net assets

Actuarial fosses - - - (143.4) (143.4) - (143.4)
Tax on actuarial losses - - - 28.8 28.8 - 288
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 15.1 4.5 19.6 2.8 224

Share options and LTIPs
—  proceeds from shares Issued 07 6.0 - - 6.7 - 67
-  value of employees' services - - - 7.7 7.7 - 7.7
-  own shares purchased - - - (5.9) (5.9) - {5.9)
Current tax on share based payments - - - 0.7 0.7 - 0.7
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - (0.1) (0.1} - 0.1)
Share buy back - - - {100.0) {100.0) - (100.0)
Share cancellation {0.9) - 09 - - - -
Transfer - - - 0.5 0.5 (0.5) -
Dividends paid - - - (196.9) {196.9) 1.4 (188.3)
At 31 March 2015 233.7 1002 98.2 arr.s 809.9 134 83
122

Group financlal statements




SEVERN TRENT_AR1S

Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 March 2015

Group financlal statements

2015 2014
Note £m £m
Tilon-cumant assels
Goodwill 16 14.3 14.8
Other intangible assets 17 66.7 80.2
Property, plant and equipment 18 7,239.8 7,023.5
Interests in joint ventures and associates 19 4.6 52
Derivative financial assets 20 13.5 724
Available for sale financial assets 20 8.1 0.4
7,339.0 7.186.2
Current assets
Inventory 16.7 27.2
Trade and other receivables 21 492.0 §13.2
Current tax receivable 11.2 16.5
Derivative financial assets 20 13.5 12.9
Cash and cash equivalents 22 176.7 1232
Assets held for sale 38 107.9 -
818.0 693.0
Total assets 8,157.0 7.888.2
Current labllities
Borrowings 23 (463.0) (206.1)
_Bfrlvative financial Eabilites 25 {32.2} (24.8)
__T_rade and other payables 26 {494.0) (412.7)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 29 (15.9) {12.1)
Liabiities associated with assets held for sale 38 {35.3) -
(1,040.4) (655.7)
Fi:n—cumnt liabilities
Bormowings 23 {4,463.7) (4.416.0)
_EErivativa financial liabilitles 25 {175.1) (206.2)
Trade and other payables 2 {542.0) {492.4)
Deferred tax 27 (625.1) (654.0)
| Retirement benefit obligations 28 {468.9) (348.3}
Provisions for liabilities and charges 23 {(18.5) {(26.5)
{6,283.3) {6,143.4}
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2015 2014
Note £m £m
Total liabilities {7,333.7) {6.799.1)
Nst assets 823.3 1,080.1
Equity
Called up share capital 30 2337 2339
Share premium account 31 100.2 94.2
Other reserves 32 8.2 82.2
Retained earnings arrs 667.3
Equity attributable to owners of the company 809.9 1,0776
Non-conirolling Interests 134 125
Total equity 823.3 1,090.1
Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 21 May 2015.
Andrew Duff Jam:ZBowling l )
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Company Number: 2366618
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015

201§ 2014
Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations 39 760.1 730.2
Tax (paidyreceived {28.6) 27.2
Net cash generated from operating activities 7315 757.4
Investing activities
interest received 1.8 €.5
Acquisition of non-controlling interests - {11.4)
Proceeds on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets 116 10.3
Purchases of intangible assets {(17.7) (13.9)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (448.2) {490.6)
Contributions and grants received 36.2 303
Net cash used in Investing activitios (414.3} (468.8}
Financing activities
Interest pald (213.1) {206.9)
Payments fo close out interest rate swaps {139.2) -
Interest element of finance lease payments {6.9) (4.2)
Dividends paid to owners of the company (196.9) {185.3}
Dividends paid to non-controfling interests {1.4) (0.6)
Repayments of borrowings (334.2) (172.4)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases {21.2) (0.4)
New loans ralsed 685.0 0.7
Issue of shares 6.7 5.1
Share buy back {17.5) -
Purchase of own shares (5.9) {2.8)
Net cash used in financing activities {244.5) (566.8)
Increasa/{dacraase) in cash and cash equivalents 72.6 (278.2)
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 123.2 403.2
Effect of foreign exchange rates 0.2 {1.8)
Transferred tc assets held for sale 38 {18.3) -
Not cash and cash equivalents at end of period 176.7 123.2
__Ngt cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash at bank and in hand 24.9 46.4
Short term deposits 151.8 76.8
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of paricd 176.7 123.2
The increase in cash and cash equivalents is reconciled to the movement in net debt in note 39.
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Notes to the group financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1 General information
The Severn Trent group has a number of operations. These are described in the segmental analysis in note 5.

Severn Trent Pic is a company incorporated and domicited in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered
office s shown on the back of the cover of the annual report and accounts. '

Severn Trent Plc is listed on the London Stock Exchange.

2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements for the group and the parent company have been prepared on the going concern basis
(see Directors’ report on page 89) under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

(i} Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (1AS) and IFRIC interpretations issued and effective and
ratified by the European Union as at 31 March 2015.

{ii) Parent company financial statements

The parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2006. The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity as
defined in FRS 100 ‘Financial Reporting Standard 100", accordingly the company has elected to apply FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Therefore the recognition and measurement raquirements of EU adopted IFRS have been applied, with
amendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reporis) Regulations 2008 (81 2008/410) as the parent company financial
statements are Companies Act 2006 accounts.

As permitted by FRS 101, the parent company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under
that standard in relation fo share based payments, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of
comparative information in respect of certain assets, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and related
party transactions. Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no profit or loss account or cash flow statement is
presented for the parent company. The profit for the year is disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income.

Severn Trent Plc is a partner in Severn Trent Limited Parinership (“the partnership™), which is registered in
Scotland. As the partnership is included In the caonsolidated accounts, the parent company has taken advantage
of the exemption conferred by Regulation 7 of The Partnership (Accounts) Regulations 2008 from the
requirements of Regulations 4 to 6.

The key accounting policies for the group and the parent company are set out below and have been apptied
consistently. Differences in the accounting policies applied in the consolidated and the parent company financial
statements are described below.
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{iil) Prior year restatement
Prior year figures in the consolidated income statement and related notes have been restated to present
separately amounts relating to operations classified as discontinued in the current year. For detzils see note 38.

b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of Severn Trent Plc and its subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associated undertakings. Results are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation and excluded from

the date of disposal.
Subsidiaries are consolidated where the group has the power to control a subsidiary.

Joint venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis where the group exercised joint contro! under a
contractual arrangement. .

Associates are accounted for on an equity basis where the group holding is 20% or more or the group has the
power to exercise significant influence.

Non-controlfing interests in the net assets of subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s equity. Non-
controlling interests consist of the amount of thase interests at the date of the original business combination and
the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity since that date.

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
included within the group financial statements.

c) Revenue recognition

Revenue includes turnover and interest income.

Turnover represents the fair value of consideration receivable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and
inter-company sales, in the ordinary course of business for goods and services provided.

Turnover is not recognised unti! the service has been provided to the customer or the goods to which the sale
relates have gither been despatched to the customer or, where they are held on the customer's behalf, title has
passed to the customer,

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water and waste water charges unbilied at the year end.
The accrual is estimated using a defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by
tariff, which is caleulated from historical billing information.

In respect of long term contracts, turnover is recognised based on the value of work carried out during the year
with reference to the total sales value and the stage of completion of these contracts.

interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference {o the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

d) Exceptlonal items

Exceptional items are Income or expenditure, which individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate shaould, in the
opinion of the directors, be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature if the financial statements are to give a true
and falr view. In this context, materiality is assessed at the segment level.

e) Taxation
Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is provided in full on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
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Deferred taxation is measured on an undiscounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settied.

A deferred tax asset Is only recognised to the extent it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in
the future to utilise it.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities.

f Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assets
acquired,

Goodwill arising on acguisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets, whilst goodwill arising on acquisition
of associates is included in investments in associates. if an acquisition gives rise to negative goodwill this is
credited directly to the income statement. Fair value adjustments based on provisional estimates are amended
within one year of the acquisition, if required, with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill.

Goodwill arising on all acquisitions prior to 1 April 1998 was written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains
eliminated against reserves. Purchased goodwill arising on acquisitions after 31 March 1998 is treated as an
intangible fixed asset.

Goodwill is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set out in note 2i) below and carried at cost fess
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit that derives benefit from the
goodwill for impairment testing purposes.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and ali or part of that unit is disposed of, the associated
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of that operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation.

g) Other intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost. Following initia! recognition, the historical cost model
is applied.

Finite life intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives as
follows:

Years
Software 310
Other assets 2-20

Amortisation charged on intangible assets is taken to the income statement through operating costs.
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of impairment exist, {see 21).

Development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset and written off over its expected useful economic
life where the following criteria are met:

o it is technically feasible to create and make the asset available for use or sale;

e there are adequate resources available to complete the development and 1o use or sell the asset;
e there is the intentiont and ability to use or seli the asset;

« itis probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and

» the development costs can be measured reliably.
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Research expenditure is expensed when it is incurred.

h) Pre-contract costs

Costs incurred in bidding and preparing for contracts are expensed as incurred except where it is probable that
the contract will be awarded, in which case they are recognised as a prepayment which is written off to the income
statement over the life of the contract.

The group assesses that it is probable that a contract will be awarded when preferred bidder or equivalent status
has been achieved and there are no significant impediments to the award of the contract.

i) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is held at cost (or at deemed cost for infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS)

less accumulated depreciation. Expenditure on property, plant and equipment relating to research and
development projects is capitalised and depreciated over the expected useful life of those assels.

The costs of like for like replacement of infrastructure components are recognised in the income statement as they
arise. Expenditure which results in enhancements to the operating capability of the infrastructure networks is
capitalised.

Where items of property, plant and equipment are transferred to the group from customers or developers, the fair
value of the asset transferred is recognised in the balance sheet. Fair value is determined based on estimated
depreciated replacement cost. Where the transfer is in exchange for connection to the network and there is no
further obligation, the comesponding credit is recognised immediately in turnover. Where the transfer is
considered to he linked to the provision of ongoing sarvices the comespanding credit is recorded in deferred
income and released to operating costs over the expected useful lives of the related assets.

Where assets take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, the borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition,_ construction or production of these assets are added 1o their cost.

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated to its estimated residual value over its astimated useful iife, with the
exception of freehold land which is nol depreciated. Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until
commissioned.

The estimated useful lives are:

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservoirs 250
Raw water agueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles end maobile plant 215
)] Leased assets

Leases where the group obtains assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
group are treated as finance leases. The lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the
minimum lease payments is capitalised as an asset with a corresponding liability representing the obligation to the
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lessor. Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge; the capital element
reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written off to the income statement at a
constant rate over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding. Depreciation is charged
over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease period.

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Rental costs arising under operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the term
of the lease. Leases of land are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownership is transferred to the group

at the end of the (ease.

k) Grants and contributions

Grants and coniributions received in respect of non-current assets, including certain charges made as a result of
new connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated as deferred income and released to operating
costs over the useful economic life of those non-current assets.

Grants and contribuions which are given in compensation for expenses incurred with no future related costs are
recognised in operating costs in the period that they become receivable.

1) Impairment of non-current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, an item of property, plant and equipment, or any other non-current asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sel! or estimated value in use at the date the
impairment review is undertaken. Fair value less costs to sell represents the amount obtainable from the sale of
the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third parties, less costs of disposal.
Value in use represents the present value of future cash flows expected fo be derived from a cash-generating unit,
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments aof the cost of capital of the
cash-generating unit or asset.

The discount rate used is based on the group's cost of capital adjusted for the risk profiles of individual
businesses.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Impairment reviews are also carried out if there is an indication that an
impairment may have occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that non-current assets are niot carried
above their estimated recoverable amounts.

impairments are recognised in the income statement.

m) Parent company investments
The parent company recognises investments in subsidiary undertakings at historical cost.

After initial recognition at cost (being the fair value of the consideration paid), investments which are classified as
held for trading or available for sale are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss
or equity respectively. When an available for sale investment is disposed of or impaired, the gain or loss
previously recognised in reserves is taken to the profit and loss account.

n) inventory .
inventory and work in progress is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes labour,
materials, transport and attributable overheads.
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o) Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are measured at fair value on initial recognition. If there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, itis written down to its recoverable amount and the irrecoverable amount is recognised as an expense
in operating costs.

Trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired individually are assessed collectively for impairment by
reference to the group's historical collection experience for receivables of similar age.

P) Service concesslon agreements

Where the group has an unconditional right to receive cash from a government body in exchange for constructing
or upgrading a public sector asset, the amounts receivable are recognised as a financial asset in prepayments
and accrued income.

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are recognised on a straight line basis, before adjusting
for expected inflation, over the life of the contract.

q) Retirement benefits

(l) Defined benefit schemes
The difference between the value of defined benefit pension scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme
liabilities is recorded on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset or obligation.

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at fair value using bid price for assets with guoted prices.
Defined benefit pension scheme liabilities are measured at the balance sheet date by an independent actuary
using the projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate bonds of
equivalent term and currency to the liability.

Service cost, representing the cost of employee service in the period, is included in operating costs. Net finance
cost is calculated by applying the discount rate used for the scheme liabilities to the net deficit.

Changes in the retirement benefit obligation arise from:

s differences between the return on scheme assets and interest included in the income statement:
s actuarizl gains and losses from experience adjustments; and

= changes in demographic or financial assumptions.

Such changes are classified as remeasurements and are charged or credited 1o equity and recorded in the
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

There is no contractual agreement, or stated policy, for charging the net defined benefit cost to participating group
companies. Therefore, the parent recognises a charge in the profit and loss account which is equal to the
contributions payable in the year. The net defined benefit cost is recognised by the sponsoring employer, Severn
Trent Water Limited.

{ii) Defined contribution scheme
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the income statement in the period in which
they fall due.

r) Provisions

Provisions are recognised where:

¢ there is a present obligation as a result of a past event;

* it is probable that there will be an outfiow of economic benefits to setile this obligation; and

s areliable estimate of this amount can be made.

Group financial statements 131




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

Insurance provisions in the group's captive insurance subsidiary are recognised for claims notfified and for claims
incurred but which have not yet been notified, based on advice from the group's independent insurance advisers.
Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the
liability where the effect is material.

s) Purchase of own shares
Shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust which have not vested unconditionally by the
balance sheet date are deducted from shareholders’ funds until such time as they vest.

t) Borrowings

The accounting policy for borrowings that are the hedged item in a fair value hedge is set out in note 2u).

All other borrowings are initlatly recognised at fair value less issue costs. After initial recognition, borrowings are
subsaquently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method whereby interest and issue
costs are charged to the income statement and added to the carrying value of borrowings at a constant rate in
proportion to the capital amount outstanding. :

Index-linked debt is adjusted for changes in the relevant inflation index and changes in value are charged lo
finance costs.

Borrowings denominated in foreign currency are translated to sterling at the spot rate on the balance sheet date.

Exchange gains or losses resulting from this are credited or charged to gainsflosses on financial instruments,

u) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value, including accrued interest. Fair value is determined using
the methodology described in note 34a. The accounting policy for changes in fair vaiue depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument. The various accounting policies are described below.

Interest receivable or payable in respect of derivative financial instruments is included in finance income or costs.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Gains or lasses arising on remeasurement of derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging
instruments are recognised in gainsfosses on financial instruments in the income statement.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
The group uses derivative financial instruments such as cross cumrency swaps, forward currency contracts and
interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations.

At the inception of each hedge relationship, the group documents:

= the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item;

o its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction; and

e the results of tests to determine whether the hedging instrument is expected to be highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows (as appropriate} of the hedged item.

The group continues to test and document the effectiveness of the hedge on an ongoing basis.

Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated or exercised, or o
longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

Fair value hedges
Where a loan or borrowing is in a fair value hedging relationship it is remeasured for changes in fair vafue of the
hedged risk at the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in gains/losses on financial
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instruments in the income statement. The gain or loss on the coresponding hedging instrument is also taken to
gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement so that the effective portion of the hedge will offset
the gain or loss on the hedged item.

if hedge accounting is discontinued, the fair value adjustment arising from the hedged risk on the hedged item is
amortised to the income statement over the anticipated remaining life of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised
in equity and the ineffective portion is charged to gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement.
VWhan the gain or loss from the hedged underlying transaction is recognised in the income statement, the gains or
losses on the hedging instrument that have previously been recognised in equity are recycled through
gainsflosses on financial instruments in the income statement.

If hedge accounting is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously recognised
in equity is held in equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or trangferred to gainsflosses on financial
instruments in the income statement if the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur. If the hedging
instrument is terminated, the gains and losses previously recognised in equity are transferred to the income
statement. From this point the derivative is accounted for in the same way as derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments,

Embedded derivatives
Where a contract includes terms that cause some of its cash flows to vary in a similar way 1o a derivative financial
instrument, that part of the contract is considered to be an esmbedded derivative.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the coniract and measured at fair value with gains and losses taken to
the income statement if;

« the risks and characteristics of the embedded derivative are not closely refated to those of the coniract; and
» the contract is not carried at fair value with gains and losses reported in the income statement.

in all other cases embedded derivatives are accounted for in line with the accounting policy for the contract as a
whole.

v) Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled share based compensation plans for employees. The fair value of

the empioyee services received in exchange for the grant is recognised as an expense over the vesting period of

the grant.

The fair value of employee services is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted, calculated

~ using an appropriate pricing model, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. The number of
awards that are expected to vest 1akes into account non-market vesting conditions including, where appropriate,

continuing employment by the group. The charge is adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as a result of failing

to meet a non-market condition.

Share based compensation plans are satisfied in shares of the parent company. Where the fair value of the
awards is not recharged to participating group companies, the parent company records the fair value of the
awards as an increase in its investment in the subsidiary. The investment is adjusted to reflect shares that do not
vest as a result of failing to meet a non-market based condition.

w) Cash flow statement
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments that are
readily convertibfe to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
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Such investments are normally those with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition and include
cash and bank balances and investments in liquid funds.

Net cash and cash equivalents include overdrafts repayabie on demand.

Interest paid in the cash flow statement includes amounts_charged to the income statement and amounts included
in the cost of property, plant and equipment.

x)  Net debt
Net debt comprises borrowings, cross currency swaps that are used to fix the sterling liability of foreign currency
borrowings (whether hedge accounted or not} and net cash and cash equivalents.

y) Foreign currency

The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are translated into sterling, the presentational
currency of the group, using average rates of exchange ruling during the year.

The net investrents in overseas subsidiary and assaciated undertakings are translated into sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the year end. Exchange differences arising are treated as movements in equity. On disposal of
a foreign currency denominated subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity since 1 April
2004 relating to that entity is recognised in the income statement under the transitional rule of IFRS 1.

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities of the company and its subsidiary undertakings are transiated
into the relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the year end. Any exchange differences so
arising are deait with through the income statement.

Foreign currency transactions arising during the year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on
the date of the transaction. All profits and losses on exchange arising during the year are dealt with through the
income statement.

z) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets (a disposal group) is available for immediate sale and the sale is highly
probable and expected to occur within one year then the disposal group is classified as held for sale. The disposal
group is measured at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Depraciation is not
charged on such assets.

Where a group of assets which comprises operations that can be clearly distinguished operationaily and for
financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the group (a component), has been disposed of or classified as held

for sale, and it:

e represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; or

+ is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations; or

« s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view fo resale;

then the component is classified as a discontinued operation.

3 New accounting policies and future requirements

The group has adopted IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 with effect from 1 April 2014. These have not had a
material impact on the results or net assets of the group or company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but
not yet effective:

IFRS @ “Financial Instruments” is likely to affect the measurement and disclosure of financial instruments. This
Standard has not yet been adopted by the EU.
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IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” will affect the measurement and recognition of revenue with
effect from 1 April 2018. The impact on the results or net assets of the group or company of the changes to the
standard has not yet been quantified.

4 Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the process of applying the group's accounting policies, the group is required to make certain judgements,
estimates and assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the information available. Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates.

The more significant judgements were:

a) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tex positions requires judgements to be made regarding the resuit of
negotiations with and enquiries from tax authorities in a number of jurisdictions. The assessments made are
based on advice from independent tax advisers and the status of ongoing discussions with the relevant tax
authorilies.

b) Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Assessing the financial outcome of uncertain commercial and legal positions requires judgemeénts to be made
regarding the relative merits of each party's case and the extent to which any claim against the group Is likely to
be successful. The assessments made are based on advice from the group's internal counsel and, where
appropriate, independent legal advice.

The key accounting estimates were:

aj} Depreciation and carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for property, plant and equipment requires
estimates to be made of the useful lives of the assets. The estimates are based on engineering data and the
group’s experience of similar assets. Details are set out in note 2i).

b} Retirement henefit abligations

Determining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits
requires assumptions to be made concerning fong term interest rates, inflation, salary and pension increases,
investment relurns and longevity of current and future pensioners. Changes in these assumptions could
significantly impact the amount of the obligations or the cost of providing such benefits. The group makes
assumptions concerning these matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualified actuaries. Details
of the assumptions made are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

c) Unbiiled revenue

Severn Trent Water raises biils and recognises revenue in accordance with its right to receive revenue in line with
the limits established by the periodic regulatory price review processes. For water and waste water customers
with water meters, the amount recognised depends on the volume supplied including an estimate of the sales
value of units supplied between the date of the last meter read and the year end. Meters are read on a cyclical
basis and the group recognises revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the last billing to
the end of the financial year. The estimated usage is based on historical data, judgement and assumptions.

d} Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Provisions are made against Sevem Trent Water's trade receivables based on historical experience of levels of
recovery from accounts in a particular ageing category. The actual amounts collected could differ from the
estimated level of recovery which could impact operating results.
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e) Fair value of derivatives

Determining the fair value of derivatives where quoted prices are not available requires estimates to be made of
the future expected cash flows and an appropriate discount rate which reflects the credit risk of the counterparties.
The valuation techniques and key inputs used are described in note 34.

5 Segmental analysis

The group has two reportable segments: Sevemn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services. The key factor
determining the identification of reportable segments is the regulatory envirgnment in which the businesses
operate. Severn Trent Water is subject to economic regulation by Ofwat and operates under a licence to provide
water and sewerage services within a defined geographical region in England and Wales. Sevarn Trent Services
is not subject to economic regulation and operates in markets in the USA, Europe and Asia. Interests in joint
ventures and associates are not material and are not included in the segmental reports reviewed by STEC.

The Severn Trent Executive Committee (STEC) is considered to be the group's chief operating decision maker.
The reports provided to STEC include segmental information prepared on the basis described above. Details of
Severn Trent Water's operations are described on pages 18 to 29 of the Strategic Review and those of Sevemn

Trent Services on pages 32 to 35.

Transactions between reportable segments are included within segmental results, assets and liabilities in
accordance with group accounting pelicies. These are eliminated on consolidation.

The group has a large and diverse customer base and there is no significant refiance on any single customer.

The measure of profit or loss that is reported to STEC for the segments is underlying PBIT (profit before interest,
tax and exceptional items). A segmental analysis of sales and underlying PBIT is presented below.
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The results from the Water Purification business have been excluded from the Severn Trent Services segment, in
both the current and prior year, as it has been classified as a discontinued operation. See note 38.

a) Segmental results

Group turnover

B 2015 2014

Severn Severn Sevemn | Sevem Trent

Trent Trent Trent Services

Water Services Water Restated

£m £m £m £m

External sales 1,579.1 216.2 1,542.6 209.9

Inter-segment sales 21 0.1 2.2 a3

| Total sales 1.581.2 216.3 15448 210.2

Profit before interest, tax and exceplional tems 539.¢ 8.7 188 13.3

Exceptional tems {20.6} 1.9 8.2 (2.3)

Profit before Interest and tax 518.4 11.6 526.8 11.0

Proflt bofore interest, tax and excaptional items Is stated after:

Amortisation of Intanglble assets 22.2 1.0 28.0 0.9

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 276.7 38 267.5 32

Profit on disposal of fixed assets {6.4) (0.1) {0.3) (0.2}
The reportabie segments’ revenue is reconciled to group tumover as follows:

2015 2014

Restated

£m £m

Sevem Trent Water 1,581.2 1,544.8

Sevamn Trent Services 216.3 210.2

Other 15.8 13.1

Inter-segment sales {12.0) {11.4)

1,801.3 1,756.7

Segmental underlying PBIT is reconciled to the group's profit before tax and discontinued operations as follows:

 — -
2015 2014
Restated
£m £m

Undoerlying PBIT
- Sevem Trent Water 530.0 518.6
—  Severn Trent Services 9.7 13.3
—  Corporate and other costs {(12.1} {11.5)
Consolidation adjustments 3.7 34
Group underlying PEIT 540.3 523.8
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2015 2014
Restated
£m £m

Exceptional items allocated to segments
-~ Sevemn Trent Water {20.6) 8.2
- Sevemn Trent Services 1.9 (2.3)
- Corporate and other - @1.1)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 0.1 0.2
Net finance costs {240.0) (247.9)
(Losses)gains on financial instruments {133.5) 88.0
Profit before tax and discontinued operations 148.2 318.8

The group’s treasury and tax affairs are managed centrafly by the Group Treasury and Tax departments. Finance

costs are managed on a group basis and hence interest income and costs are not reported at the seg
Tax is not reported to STEC on a segmental basis.

b) Segmenta) capital employed

mental level.

Separate segmental analyses of assets and liabilities are not reviewed by STEC. The balance sheet measure
reviewed by STEC on a segmental basis is capital employed which includes the following components:

2015 2014

Severn Trent | Severn Trent | Sevem Trent | Severn Trent

Water Services Water Services

fm £m £m £m

Operating assets 7,679.8 100.9 74422 172.8
Goodwill 1.3 14.3 1.3 14.8
Interests in joint ventures and associates 0.1 4.5 c1 5.0
Segment assets 7,681.3 119.7 7.443.6 192.6
Segment operating llatilities {1,350.1) (58.8) (1,155.7) (92.2)
Capital employed 6,331.2 60.9 6,287.9 100.4

Operating assets comprise other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventory and trade and other

receivables.

Qperating liabilities comprise trade and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions.

Capital employed does not include assets held for sale or liabilities associated with assets held for sale.

Additions fo other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment were as follows:

2015 2014

Savern Trent | Severn Trent | Sevemn Trant Severn Trent

Water Services Water Services

£m £m £m £m

Other intangible assets 15.4 1.0 82 5.5
Property, plant and equipment 481.3 2.7 519.6 6.9
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The reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to the group’s total assets as follows:

2015 2014
Note £m £m

Segment assets
- Sevem Trent Water 7.681.3 7.443.8
—  Severn Trent Services 119.7 192.6
Comorate assets 78.6 68.2
Other financial assets 202.8 208.6
Curmrent tax receivable 1.2 16.5
Assets held for sale 38 107.9 -
Consolidation adjustments {45.5) (40.3)
Total assets 8,157.0 7,889.2

The consolidation adjustments comprise elimination of intra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fixed assets.

The reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to the group’s total liabilities as follows:

r 2015 2014
Note £m £m
Segment llabilities
- Sevem Trent Water {1,350.1) {1.155.7)
—  Sovem Trent Services (58.8) (92.2)
Corporate liabilities {148.1) (60.1)
Other financial iabllities (5.134.0) {4,853.1)
Deterred tax (825.1) {654.0)
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 38 {35.3) -
Consolidation adjustments i8.7 16.0
Total Habllities (7.333.7 {6.798.1)
The consolidation adjustments comprise elimination of intra-group creditors.
c} Geographical areas
The group's sales were derived from the following countries:
2014
215 Restated
£m £m
UK 1,649.4 1,610.9
USA 129.3 120.1
Other 22.6 25.7
1,801.3 1,756.7
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The group’s non-current assets (excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post employment benefit

assets) were located in the following countries:

Group finangial satements

2015 2014
£m £rn
UK 7,200.2 7.084.8
USA 252 36.1
Othsr 11 29
7,328.% 74238
6 Revenue
2015 2014
Restated
£m £m
Ragulated water and sewerage services 1,570.5 15345
Other services 167.3 180.0
Service concession armangemeants (note 41) 43.5 422
Total turnover 1,801.3 1,756.7
Interest receivable {note 10) 1.6 4.8
1,802.9 1,761.5
7 Operating costs
2015 2014 Restated
Before Before
exceptional Exceptional exceptional Exceptional
costs costs Total costs costs Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m
Wages and salaries 2787 135 200.2 2874 22 283.6
Social security costs 20.0 0.1 204 20.0 - 200
Pension costs 324 17.9 50.3 32.0 - 320
Share based payments 1.7 - .7 6.2 - 6.2
}_‘Eml empioyee Costs 336.8 315 368.3 325.6 22 327.8
Power 68.8 - 68.8 70.9 - 70.9
| Carbon Reduction Commitment 7.3 - 7.3 5.9 - 5.9
Raw materials and consumables 75.7 - 5.7 728 - 72.8
Rates 74.1 - 74.1 756 - 75.6
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 30.1 (8.3) 238 314 - 314
Egn}fce charges 326 - 32.8 31.6 - e
Depreciation of property, plantand
equipment 2804 - 2804 268.8 - 268.8
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2015 2014 Restated
Before Before
oxcoptional | Exceptional exceptional Exceptional
costs costs Total costs costs Total
£€m £m €m £m £m £m
Amortisation and impaiment of
intangible fixed assets 232 0.2 234 289 - 289
Hired ant contracted services 2228 0.7 223.5 208.7 18.7 227.4
Operating leases rontals
—~  land and buildings 14 0.1 15 20 - 20
~  other 1.2 - 1.2 15 - 1.5
Hire of plant and machinery 0.3 - 0.3 33 - i3
Research and development
expenditure 4.6 - 4.6 4.1 - 4.1
Profit on disposal of property, plant
and equipment {0.9) (.7 (8.6) (0.4) (8.2} (8.8)
Foreign exchange (gains)losses {0.1) - 0.1) 0.6 - 0.6
Infrastructure maintenance
expenditure 134.8 - 1348 140.3 - 140.3
Ofwat license foes 53 - 53 3.7 - a7
Other operating costs 65.1 0.2 65.3 59.7 25 622
1,363.5 1.7 1,382.2 1,335.0 15.2 1,350.2
Release from deferred income (10.1) - (10.1) (9.5) - {9.5)
Own work capltalised (92.4) - {92.4) (92.6) - (92.6)
1,261.0 18.7 1.219.7 1,232.9 15.2 1,248.1
Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 8.
During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors:
2015 2014
£m £m
Fees payable to the company's auditors for
—  the audit of the company's annual accounts 0.2 0.1
—  the audit of the company's subsidiary accounts 0.4 0.5
Total audit foas 0.6 06
Fees payable to the company's auditors and thelr associates for other services to the group
- gudit related assurance services 0.1 0.1
—  opther services relating o taxation 01 0.1
—  other assurance services 04 0.4
Total non-audit fees 08 0.6
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Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration repart on pages 69 to 85.
Other assurance services include certain agreed upon procedures performed by Deloitte in connection with

Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory reporting requirements to Ofwat. In the current year, the balance includes

feas in connaction with PR14.

Details of the group policy on the use of the auditor for nen-audit services and how auditor independence and

objectivity are safeguarded are set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 63 to 65. No services were

pravided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.

8 Exceptional items before tax
2015 2014
Restated
£m £m
Sovern Trant Water
Restructuring costs 28.3 -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets r.7) (8.2)
20.6 (8.2)
Savern Trent Services
Restructuring costs 4.4 2.3
Release of bad debt provision {6.3) -
(1.9) 23
Corporate and Other
Professional fees related to LongRiver proposal - 18.7
Provision for terminated operafions and disposals - 2.4
- 21.1
Total exceptional operating ltems before tax 18.7 15.2
Exceptional tax is disclosed in note 13.
9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (including executive directors) during the year:
2015 2014
Continuing | Discontinued Continuing | Discontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
| Number Number Number Number Number Number
By type of business
Sevem Trent Water 5,532 - 5,532 5,634 - 5,634
Sevem Trent Services 1,688 419 2,307 1,895 444 2,339
Corporate and Other 22 - 22 19 - 19
T.442 419 7,861 7.548 444 7,992
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10 Finance income

2015 2014
£m £m
Interest income eamed on:

Bank deposits 0.8 1.8
Other financial income 1.0 3.0
Total interest rocelvable 1.8 4.8
Interest income on defined benefit scheme assets 801 76.0
81.7 80.8

11 Finance costs
2015 2014
£m £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 17.4 22.0
Interest on other loans 201.8 205.0
Interest on finance leases 6.9 7.7
Total borrowing costs 2258 234.7
Other financlal expenses 1.4 23
Interest cost on defined benefit scheme obligations 94.5 01.7
3247 328.7

Borrowing costs of £19.8 million (2014: £13.8 million) incurred funding eligible capital projects have been
capitalised at an interest rate of 4.89% (2014: 5.11%). Tax relief of £4.2 million (2014: £3.2 million) was claimed
an these costs which was credited to the income statement, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £4.0 million

(2014: £2.8 million).

12  (Losses)/gains on financial instruments

2015 2014

£€m £m

LOSS ON Cross currency swaps used as hedging instruments in falr value hedges {2.6) (26.5)

Gain arising on adjustment for foreign currency debt in fair value hedges - 21.9
Exchange gain on other loans 73.3 ZJ

Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity (23.8) (8.1)

Hedgs Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges 2.8 20

{Loss)gain arising on swaps where hedge accounting is not applied (183.4) 44.5

(133.5) 58.0

The group’s hedge accounting arrangements are described in note 36.
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13 Taxation
a) Analysis of tax charge/(credit) in the year

2014
2015 Restated
Before
exceptional Exceptional
Total tax tax Total
£m £m £m Em
Current tax

Current yaar at 21% {2014: 23%) 46.4 445 - 485
Prior years at 23% (2014: 24%) (8.6) 9.3 (59.2) (49.9)
Total current tax 378 55.8 (59.2) (3.4)

Deferred tax
Origlnation and reversal of temporary differences — current year {11.3} 30.2 - 30.2
Origination and reversal of temporary differences — prior year 6.2 (8.7) {56.2) (64.9)
Exceplional credit arlsing from rate changa - - {114.8) {114.8)
Total deferred tax (5.1) 215 {(171.0) {149.5)
T 7.3 {230.2) (152.9)

The current tax charge was £37.8 miflion (2014: £55.8 million before exceptional tax). This includes a credit of
£8.6 million (2014: charge of £9.3 million) arising from adjustments to prior year tax computations.

In the prior year an exceptional current tax credit of £59.2 million was recognised, reflecting the anticipated refund

of averpayment of tax in prior periads. This was following an agreement with HMRC that certain capital

expenditure within our water and waste water treatment works is eligible for capital allowances as plant and
machinery. This also resulted in an exceptional deferred tax credit of £58.2 million.

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted in the prior year which implemented a2 reduction in the corporation tax rate
from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014 and then to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015, This resulted in an
additienal exceptional deferred tax credit of £114.8 million in the income statement and a deferred tax charge of

£12.3 million in reserves.

b) Factors affecting the tax chargel{credit) in the year

The tax expense for the year is lower (2014: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21%

(2014: 23%). The differences are explained below:

2015 2014

Restated

£m £m

Profit on ordinary activitios befors tax from continuing operations 148.2 318.9
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 21% (2014: 23%) 31.1 73.3
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible in determining taxable profits 4.0 6.8
Current year impact of rate change - 3.7
Effect of differant rates in overseas jurisdictions - 0.2
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2015 2014
Restated
£m £m
Adjustments in respect of prior years (2.4) {114.8)
Exceptional deferred tax credit arising from rate change - {114.8)
Total tax charge/(credit) 327 (152.9}
c) Tax (credited)icharged directly to aquity
In addition to the amount charged/(credited) to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been
(cradited)/charged directly to equity:
2015 2014
£m £m
Current tax
Tax an share based payments {0.7) (1.0)
Tax on pension contributions in excess of income statement charge {3.0) -
Total current tax credited to equity a7 (1.0) |
Deferred tax
Tax on actuarial gainloss (25.8) 08
Tax on cash flow hedges {2.8) 3.0
Tax on share based payments 041 -
Tax on transfers to the income statement account 4.7 1.6
Effect of change in tax rate - 12.3
Total deferred tax (credited)charged to equity (23.8) 12.7
14 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to owners of the company in the period:
2015 2014
Pence per Pence per
share £m share £m
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 {2013) 48.24 115.5 45.51 108.6
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014) 33.86 814 32.16 76.7
Total dividends 82.20 196.9 77.67 185.3
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 50.94

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and have not been included as a

liability in these financial statements.
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15 Earnings per share

a) Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding those held in the Severn Trent

Employee Share Ownership Trust which are treated as cancelled.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. These represent share options granted to employees where
the exercise price is less than the average market price of the company's shares during the year.

Baslc and diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations are calculated on the basis of

profit from continuing and discontinued operations atiributable to the owners of the company.
The calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share is based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted eamings per share from continuing operations

2015 2014
£m £m
Profit for the period attributable to cwners of the company 119.1 4338
Adjusted for (profitMioss from discontinued operations (see note 38) 3.1 39.1
Profit for the period from continuing operations attributable to owners of the company 115.4 472.9
Number of shares
2015 2014
m m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share 238.3 238.2
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
- share options and LTIPs 11 1.1
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted samings par share 239.9 238.3
D) Adjusted earnings per share
2015 2014
pence pence
Adjusted basic eamings per share 107.2 0225
106.7 92.1

Adjusted diluted eamings per share

Adjusted earnings per share figures are presented for continuing operations. These exclude the effects of

deferred tax, exceptional tax, losses/gains on financial instruments, current tax related to losses/gains on financial

instruments, exceptional items and current tax related to exceptional items. The directars consider that the

adjusted figures provide a useful additional indicator of performance. The denominators used in the calculations of

adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as those used in the unadjusted figures set out

above.

Adjustments to earnings

The adjustments to earnings that are made in czlculating adjusted earnings per share are as follows:
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2015 2014
Restated
£m £m
Eamnlings for the purpose of baslc and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 1154 472.9
Adjustments for
- exceptional items before tax 18.7 15.2
—  cument tax related to exceptional items 4.7 {0.9)
- loss/(gain) on financial instruments 1335 (58.0)
- current tax related to loss/gain on financlal instruments (1.8 (0.1}
- deferred tax excluding exceptional charge (5.1) 21.5
- exceptional tax - (230.2)
Earnings for the purpose of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share 2560 220.4
16 Goodwill
2015 2014
£m £m
Cost
At 1 April 429 45.2
Trangferred to assets held for sale (see note 38) (26.5) -
Exchange ad)ustments 1.3 (2.3)
At 31 March 177 429
Impairmant
At1 April {28.1) (3-5)
Impalment charge in the year - {24.7)
Transferred to assets heid for sale {see note 38) 247 -
Exchange adjustments - 0.1
At 31 March (3.49) (28.1)
Nat book valus
At 31 March 143 14.8

Goodwill impairment tests

Goodwill is allocated to the group's cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to country of operation and _
business segment. All of the group’s goodwill is in the Severn Trent Services segment.

A summary of the goodwill allocation by CGU is presented below. Goodwill in the group’s Water Purification
business is included in assets held for sale at 31 March 2015, see note 38.

2015 2014

£m £m

Water Purification US - 1.4
Operating Services US 125 1.2
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Services italy 18 2.2

14.3 14.8

The group has reviewed the carrying value of goodwill, including that within the Water Purification US CGU, for
impairment in accordance with the policy stated in note 21,

The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five year period. The key assumptions underlying these budgets are revenue growth and margin.
Management of each CGU delermines assumptions based on past experience, current market trends and
expectations of future developments.

Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using an estimated nominal growth rate. The growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the economy in which the CGU operates and are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.

The assumptions used in relation to growth rates beyond the five year period and discount rates wera:

Nominal growth rate Post tax discount rate Pre-tax discount rate

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

% % % % % %

Operating Services US 3.0 35 8.0 6.8 7.8 8.1
Senvices italy 1.8 2.5 48 6.5 5.5 88

Specific discount rates for the CGUs are not available and hence a post tax discount rate reflecting risks relating
to the CGU has been estimated and used to calculate the value in use of the CGU from its post tax cash flow
projections. The equivalent pre-tax discount rate is disclosed above.

Changes in the growth rate outside the five year period or in the discount rate applied to the cash flows may
cause a CGU's canmying value to exceed its recoverable amount. However, in the opinion of the directors, the
changes in growth rate or discount rate that would be required to reduce the recoverable amount of the CGUs
below their carrying value are not reasonably possible. Therefore no sensitivity analysis has beeén presented.

17  Other intangible assets

Capitalised
development
costs and
patenis Total
Computer software £m £m
Internally
generatad Purchased
£m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2013 : 127.8 188.7 28.2 344.7
Additions 4.6 8.4 c.8 13.8
Disposals - {74.7) (5.0} (70.7)
iedassiﬁeaﬁons 43.9 (43.9) - -
Exchange adjustments {0.2) {0.5) (1.4) {2.1)
At 1 April 2014 176.1 78.0 226 276.7
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Capftalised
developmeant
costs and
patents Total
Computer software £m £m
internally
generated Purchased
£m £m
Additions 8.7 115 0.5 177
Disposais €.2) (21.6) - {21.8)
Raclassifications - - (0.4) (0.4}
Transfers to assets held for sale (see note 38) - (4.9} (10.3) (15.2}
Exchange adjustments {0.2) 04 1.1 1.3
At 31 March 2015 181.4 634 13.5 258.3
Amortisation
At 1 April 2013 (118.9) (108.3) (18.2) {(245.4)
Amortisation for the year (12.9) (14.5) {0.9) (28.3)
impaimment arising from exceptional item (2.4) - - (2.4)
Disposals - 74.7 §.1 79.8
Reclassifications (5.1) 51 - -
Exchange adjustments 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.8
A1 April 2014 (140.2) @27 (13.6) (198.5)
Amortisation for the ysar (10.8) (1.6} (1.6) {24.0)
Impairment arising from exceptional item 0.2) - - {0.2)
Disposals 0.2- 215 - 21.7
Transfers to assets held for sale (see note 38) - 3.7 43 8.0
Exchange adjustments 0.1 (0.3) (0.4) (G.6}
At 31 March 2015 {150.9) (20.4) (11.3) {191.6)
Net book value ‘
At 31 March 2015 30.5 340 2.2 68.7
At 31 March 2014 358 35.3 X 80.2
18  Property, plant and equipment
Fixed
Land and | Infrastructure plant and Maovable
buildings assetls equipment plant Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2013 2,786.2 44136 3,601.3 62.0 10,863.1
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Fixed
Land and | infrastructure plant and Movable
bulldings assata aquipment plant Total
Em £m £m £m £€m
Additions 136.5 127.0 266.4 6.7 §36.6
Disposals (4.9) (0.3) (12.9) {4.2) {22.3)
Exchange adjustments {0.7) - (2.8) (1.4) (4.9)
At 1 April 2014 2,917.1 4,540.3 3,852.0 63.1 11,3725
Additions 130.3 152.9 214.0 7.3 504.5
Disposals (10.1) (0.1} (76.9) (6.5) (93.6)
Transfer to assets held for sale (see note 38) (6.1) - {15.1} (0.3} (21.5)
Exchange adjustments 0.2 - 1.9 1.8 4.0
At 31 March 2015 30314 4,693.1 3,975.2 €5.5 11,765.9
Depreciation
AL 1 April 2013 (918.7) (1,151.2) (1,895.2) (38.0) {4,103.1)
Charge for the year (64.1) (30.9) (168.4) (6.6) (270.0)
Digposals 3.7 - 128 38 20.3
Exchange adjustments 0.2 - 25 141 38
AL1 April 2014 (678.8) {1.182.4) (2,1483) (28.7) (4.349.0)
Charge for the year {68.5) (32.0) (174.3) {6.8) (281.6)
Disposals 82 - 769 55 30.6
Transfer to assets held for sale (see note 38} 42 - 12,0 0.3 165
Exchange adjusiments - - {1.4) 1.2) (2.6}
At 31 March 2015 {1,035.0) (1,214.1) {2,235.1) {41.9) {4,526.1)
HNet book value
At 31 March 2015 1,006.4 3,479.0 1,740.8 23.6 7,229.8
At 31 March 2014 1,938.2 3,358.2 1,703.7 23.4 7,023.5

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment inciudes the following amounts in respect of assets held

under finance leases:

Fixed
Infrastructure plant and
asgets equipment Total
£m £m £m
Net hook valus
At 31 March 2015 118.7 26.8 145.3
At 31 March 2014 1196 385 158.1

Property, plant and equipment includés £561.1 million (2014: £604.1 million) in respect of assets in the course of

construction for which no depreciation is charged,
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19  Interests in joint ventures and associates
Particulars of the group's principal joint venture undertakings at 31 March 2015 were:

Proportion

Country of | of ownership

Name Incorporation interest
Cognica Limited Joint venture Great Britaln 50%
Jackson Water Partnership Joint venture USA 0%
Servizio Idrico S.c.p.a (SI} Assodate ltaly 25%

The partnership agreement for the Jackson Water Partnership reguires that certain key decisions require the
unanimous consent of the partners and consequently the partnership has been accounted for as a joint venture.

The results and net assets of principal joint ventures and associates are shown below:

Interest In joint ventures Interest in associates Totat

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Group's share of cammying value 0.2 0.3 4.4 4.9 4.8 52
Group's share of profit and comprehensive

Income - - 0.1 02 0.1 0.2

All results are from continuing operations in both the current and preceding year.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014 the joint ventures and associates did not have any significant contingent liabifities
to which the group was exposed and the group did not have any significant contingent liabilities in relation to its
interests in joint ventures or associates. The group had no capital commitments in relation to its interests in the
joint ventures or associates at 31 March 2015 or 2014,

The group has given certain guarantees in respect of the associate's borrowings. The guarantees are limited to
€5.1 million (2014: €5.1 million). The group does not expect any liabilities that are not provided for in these
financial statements to arise from these arrangements.

20 Categories of financial assets

2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross cumency swaps — not hedge accounted - 395
interest rate swaps — not hedga accounted 42 12.1
Farelgn exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted 0.2 0.1
44 51.7
Darivatives dasignated as hedging instruments
Cross currency swaps - fair value hedges 228 336
28 3386
Total derivative financla! assets 270 85.3
Avaitable for sgle investments carried at fair value
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2015 2014
£€m £m
Unquoted shares 0.1 0.1
Loans and recelvables {including cash and cash equivalents)
Trade receivables 1725 195.6
Short term deposits 151.8 76.8
Cash at bank in hand 249 46.4
Total loans and recalvables 349.2 318.8
Total financlal assets 3r6.3 404.2
Disclesod In the balance shoet as:
Non-current assets
Derivative financial assets 13.5 724
Avallable for sale financial assets 0.1 0.1
136 725
Currant assats
Derivative financlal assets 135 12.9
Cash and cash equivalents 176.7 123.2
Trade recelvables (see note 21) 172.5 195.6
362.7 a7
376.3 404.2
21 Trade and other receivables
2015 2014
£m £m
Trade receivables 207.5 3164
Less doubtful debt gravision {125.0) (120 8}
Net trade receivables 172.5 195.6
Other amounts receivable 420 279
[ Prepayments and accrued income 2175 289.7
482.0 513.2

The carrying values of trade and other receivables are reasonable approximations of their fair values.
Prepayments and accrued income include £24.4 million (2014: £24.8 million) in respect of amounts due from

customaers for contract work and £33.2 million (2014; £34.4 million) which is recoverable after more than one year.
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Doubtful debts provision
Movements on the doubtful debts provision were as follows:

2015 2014

£m fm

At 1 April 120.8 138.0
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 28.1 321
Armounts written off during the year {22.4) (25.7)
Amounts recovered during the year - 0.2
Rediassification - (23.1)
Exchange adjustments - {0.7)
Transfer to discontinued operations {1.8) -
At 31 March 125.0 120.8
The reclassification in the prior year arose on the re-financing of the amounts receivable from the group’s
associate company, Sli, which were reclassified to other debtors.
The aged analysis of receivables that are specifically provided for is as follows:

2015 2014

£m fm

Up to 90 days 22 06
91-365 days 48 3.3
1-2 years 6.7 76
2-3 years 63 53
More than 3 years 8.0 7.3

280 241

A collective provision is recorded against assets which are past due but for which no specific provision has been

made. This is calculated based on historical experience of levels of recovery.

The aged analysis of receivables that were overdue at the reporting date but not individually provided for is as

follows:
2015 2014
£m £m
Up to 80 days 44.0 49.7
91-365 days 65.1 68.1
1-2 years 29.6 29.7
2-3 years 127 12.0
More than 3 years 84 7.8
161.8 168.3
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The amounts above are reconciled to gross and net debtors in the table below:

2015 2014

Gross Provision Net Gross Provision Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Not Due 107.7 - 107.7 124.0 - 124.0
Overdue not specifically provided 161.8 (97.0) 4.8 168.3 {97.9) 0.4
Overdue and specifically provided 28.0 (28.0) - 241 {22.9) 1.2
297.5 (125.0} 1725 3164 (120.8) 195.6

Credit risk

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the individual business unit level. By far the most

significant business unit of the group is Severn Trent Water, which represents 88% of group turnover and 76% of
net tfrade receivables. Severn Trent Water has a statutory obligation to provide water and sewerage services to
customers within its region. Therefore there is no concentration of credit risk with respect to its trade receivables
and the credit quality of ifs customer base refiects the wealth and prosperity of all of the commercial businesses

and domestic househalds within its region. None of the other business units are individually significant to the

group.
22 Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash at bank ard in hand 249 48.4

Short term deposits 151.8 76.8

176.7 123.2

Of the £151.8 million (2014: £76.8 million) of short term bank deposits, £36.7 million (2014: £43.8 million) is held
as secutity deposits for insurance obligations and is not available for use by the group. In addition, £6.0 million
(2014: £7.4 million) is restricted for use on the Ministry of Defence contract and is not available for use by the
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23 Borrowings
2015 2014
£m £m
Bank loans 1,279.2 594.9
Other loans 3,467.5 3.826.0
Finance leases 180.0 0.2
4,926.7 4,622.1
Disclosed in the balance sheet as:
_ Cument liabllites 463.0 206.1
Non-current liabilities 4,483.7 4,416.0
4,926.7 4,622.1
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24 Finance leases
Obligations under finance leases are as follows:

2015 2014
£m £m
Gross obligations under finance leases 2321 260.5
Less future finance charges (52.1} (59.3)
Present value of lease cobligations 180.0 0.2
A maturity analysis of gross obligations under finance leases is presented in note 35. Net obiigations under
finance teases fall due as follows:
2015 2014
£m £m
Within 1 year 38.6 213
1-2 years 259 386
3.5 years 79 305
After more than 5 years 107.6 110.8
Included In non-current liabilities 141.4 1789
180.0 2012

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 1 to 17 years at 31 March 2015. Interest terms are set at the
inception of the leases. The leases bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of 5.36% (2014: 5.36%}. The

lease obligations are secured against the related assets.

There were no contingent rents, escalation clauses or material renewal or purchase options. The terms of the
finance leases do not impose restriction on dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing.

25 Categorles of financial liabilities

2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps — not hedge accounted 252 21.7
Interest rate swaps — not hedge accounted 1708 158.9
Foreign exchange forward contracts — not hedge accounted 0.2 0.3
196.0 180.9
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps — cash fiow hedges 105 472
Energy swaps — cash flow hedges 0.8 29
1.3 SM
Total derivative financial liabilities 207.3 231.0
Other financial liabllities
Borrowings (see note 23) 4,928.7 46221
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2015 2014
£m Em
Trade payables (see note 26) 2.7 318
Total other financlal liabilities 4,959.4 4,853.9
Total financial liabilitles 5,164.7 48849
Disclosed in the balance sheet as:
Non-current liabilities
Derivatlve fingncial liabillties 17581 206.2
Borrowings 4,463.7 4416.0
4,838.8 4,622.2
Currant liabilities
Derlvative financial liabliities 32.2 248
Bomowings 463.0 206.1
Trade payables 32.7 31.8
527.9 262.7
5,1668.7 4.884.9
26 Trade and other payables
2015 2014
. £m £m
Current liabilities
Trade payables 32.7 38
Social security and other taxes 58 6.3
Other payables 22.0 229
Deterred income 10.0 8.2
Accruals 423.5 342.5
484.0 412.7
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income 538.0 482.7
Accruals 4.0 97
542.0 492 4
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27  Deferred tax
An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax liabilifies and assets recognised by the group is set out
below:

Accelerated Retirement Fair value

tax benefit of financial
depraciation obligations instrumants Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2013 891.5 (88.2) (62.7) 45.2 785.8
Reclassification 52.8 - - (52.6) -
Credit to income (60.7} 6.3 12.2 7.5 (34.7)
Credit to Income arising from rate change (123.1) 38 a8 0.7 {114.8)
Charge to equlty - 0.8 4.6 - 5.4
Charge to cquity arising from rate change - .7 43 0.3 12.3
At 1 April 2014 760.3 {68.6) (37.8) 1.1 654.0
Credit to incoma 13.3 1.7 {25.0} 49 (5.1
Credit to equity - (25.8) 19 0.1 {23.8)
At 31 March 2015 7736 {93.7) (60.9) 8.1 625.1

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settied after
more than 12 months, are as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m

Deferred tax asset {154.6} {121.7}
Deferred tax liability T10.7 775.7
625.1 - 654.0

28 Retirement benefit schemes
a) Defined benefit pension schemes

{i) Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK which closed to future accrual on 31
March 2015. The defined benefit pension schemes cover increases in accrued benefits arising from inflation and
future pension increases. Their assets are held in separate funds administered by trustees. The trustees are
required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficiaries. A formal actuarial valuation of each scheme is
carried out on behalf of the trustees at triennial intervals by an independent professionally qualified actuary. Under
the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitled to retirement benefits calculated as a proportion
(varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of their salary for the final year of employment with the
group or, if higher, the average of the highest three consecutive years' salary in the last ten years of employment.
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The UK defined benefit pension schemes and the date of their last forma! actuarial valuation are as follows:

Date of last formal
actuarial valuation

Sevamn Trent Penslon scheme (STPS)*

31 March 2013

Severn Trent Miror Image Pension Scheme

31 March 2013

* The STPS is by far the largest of the group's UK definad benefit schemes.

{ii) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations under defined benefit

pension schemes

2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets
Equities 993.5 B70.6
Giits 321.2 2705
Corporate bonds 450.8 388.8
Proparty 159.3 148.4
Hadge funds 60.9 $6.9
Cash 89.1 88.4
Total falr value of assats 2,086.2 18236
Present value of the defined benefit obligations — funded schemes {2,545.7) (2,162.5)
{458.9) (338.9)
Present value of the defined benefit obligations ~ unfunded schemes {10.0) (9.4)
Liabliity recognised In the balance shoot (4568.9) (348.3)
The equities, gilts, corporate bonds and hedge funds have quoted prices in active markets.
Movements in the fair valus of the scheme assets were as follows:
2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value at 1 April 1,823.6 1,724.3
Interast incoma on scheme assets 80.1 76.0
Contiibutions from the sponsoring companies 81.0 73.0
Contributions from scheme members 48 5.1
Retum on plan assets {excluding amounts included in finance income) 163.4 24.9
Scheme administration costs (2.9) (3.0)
Benefits paid {93.2) (76.7)
Fair value at 31 March 2,086.8 1.823.6
158
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Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2015 2m4

£m £m

Present value at 1 April 21719 2,108.0

Service cost 228 22.4

Past service cost 18.1 01

Interest cost 94.5 9.7

Contributions from scheme members 48 5.1

Actuarial gains arsing from changes in demographic assumptions - (15.7)

Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 368.2 37.0

Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments (29.4) -

Benefits paid (93.2} (76.7)

Present valuo at 31 March 2,585.7 2,171.8
Of which:

2015 2014

£m £m

Amounts relating to funded schemes 2,548.7 2,1€2.5

Amounts retating to unfunded schemes 10.0 8.4

2,555.7 2.171.;

Present vaiue at 31 March

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise
have been restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap. Provision for such benefits amounting to £10.0 miliion
{2014: £9.4 million) is included as an unfunded scheme within the ratirement benefit obligation.

{iit) Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these deflned benefit pension schemes

2015 2014
Em £m
Amotnts charged to operating costs
Current service cost {22.5) (22.4)
Past service cost {18.9} .1
Scheme administration costs {2.9) (3.0}
(43.8) (25.5)
Amounts charged to finance costs
Interest cost (94.5) (91.7)
Amounts credited to finance income
Interest income on scheme assets 80.1 76.0
Total amount charged to the incoms statement (58.2) {41.2)
The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £270.6 million (2014: gain of £97.2 million).
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Actuarial gains and losses have been reporied in the statement of comprehensive income. The cumulative
amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income since the adoption of
IFRS is a net loss of £459.1 million {2014 £315.7 million).

(iv) Actuarial risk factors
The schemes typically expose the company to actuarial risks such as investmant risk, inflation risk and longevity risk.

Invesiment risk

The group's contributions to the schemes are based on actuarial calculations which make assumptions about the
returns expected from the schemes’ investments. If the investments underperform these assumptions in the long
term then the group will need to make additional contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of
accrued benefits.

Inflation risk

The benefits payable to members of the schemes are linked to inflation measured by the RP1. The group's
contributions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the future level of inflation. If inflation is higher than
the levels assumed in the actuarial calculations then the group will need to make additional contributions to the
schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits.

Longevity risk

The group’s contributions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the life expectancy of scheme
members after retirement. if scheme members live longer than assumed in the actuarial calculations then the
group will need to make additional contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits.

{v) Actuarial assumptions
The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of
assumptions used for the valuations of all group schemes) were as follows:

2015 2014

% %

Price inflation 3.0 33
Discount rate 3.3 4.4
Salary increases nfa 3.0
Pension increases In payment 30 a3
Pension Increases In deferment 3.0 3.3

The assumption for price inflaticn is derived from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts
and on index-linked gilts. The discount rate is set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 year corporate bonds.

No salary assumption is required in the current year because the scheme closed to future accrual on 31 March
2015,

The mortality assumptions are based on those used in the triennial valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2013.
The mortality assumptions adopted at the year end and the life expectancies at age 65 implied by the
assumptions are as follows:

2015 2014
Man Women Men Women
‘SAPS’ ‘SAPS'
Mortality table used S1INMA L SINFA_L SINMA L ~SINFA_L
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2015 2014
Men Women Men Women
Mortality table compared with standard table 116% 92% 116% 92%
Future improvement per annum 1% 1% 1% 1%
Remaining life expectancy for members currently aged 65 (years) 21.4 245 213 24.4
Remaining Ilfe expectancy at age §5 for members currently aged 45
(years) 22.7 26.1 228 26.0

The calculation of the scheme liabilities is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions and in particular to the
assumptions relating to discount rate, price inflation and mortality. The following table summarises the estimated
impaci on scheme liabilities from changes ta key actuarial assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions

constant,

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme liabilities

Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0.1% Decreasefincrease by £50 million

Price inflation Increaseldecrease by 0.1% Increase/decrease by £45 million

Mortality increase In life expectancy by 1 year Increase by £75 million

In reality, interrefationships exist between the assumptions, particularly between the discount rate and price
inflation. The above analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships.

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that
applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

(vi) Effect on future cash flows
Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer.

The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the year is 18 years (2014: 18 years). The expected
cash flows payable from the scheme are presented in the graph below:

Following the completion of the triennial valuation of both schemes, future lump sum deficit contributions have
been agreed with the Trustee. In respect of the shortfall, a cash contribution of £35 million was made in the
current year, a further £45 million contribution will be made in the year to 31 March 2016, followed by £12 million
per annum to 31 March 2025. An annual contribution of £8.2 million will alse be made through an asset backing
funding arrangement for at least 12 years from 31 March 2015.

b) Defined contribution pension schemes
The group also operates defined contribution arrangements for certain of its UK employees.

The Severn Trent Pension Scheme, Choices section was replaced by the Severn Trent Group Personal Pension
from 1 April 2015 and all members of other pension schemes were transferred. This scheme has been open since
1 April 2012 and new employees were automatically enrolled from this date.

The total cost charged to operating costs of £9.4 million (2014: £9.5 million) represents contributions payable to

these schemes by the group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. As at 31 March 2015, contributions
amounting to £1.0 million (2014: £0.7 million) in respect of the current reporting period were owed to the schemes.
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29 Provisions

Tarminated
Onercus operations
Restructuring insurance contracts | and disposals Cther Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2014 3.7 23.1 21 6.4 33 386
Chargedf{releasad) to income
statement 1.6 6.4 0.3 0.4 1.3 20.0
Utilisation of provision (12.4) {7.6) i (1.1) {3.5) (1.4) (26.0)
Unwinding of discount - - 0.1 - 0.1 0.2
Reclassifications - - - - 3.4 3.4
Transfer to liabilites heid for
sale (see note 38) - - {0.4) - (t.1) {1.5)
Exchange differences {0.2) - — - (0.1} {0.3)
At 31 March 2015 2.7 21.9 1.0 33 §.5 34.4
2015 2014
£m £m
Disclosed in the balance sheet as:
Current liabilities 15.9 12.1
Non-current ligbilities 18.5 26.5
344 386

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of committed restructuring programmes. The
associated outflows are estimated to arise over the next twelve months from the balance sheet date.

Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company, is a wholly owned subsidiary of the group. Provisions
for claims are made as set out in note 2. The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a pericd of up to five
years from the balance sheet date.

The onerous contract provision relates to specific contractual liabllities either assumed with businesses acquired
or arising in existing group businesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered in
revenues or other economic benefits. The associated outflows are estimated to oceur over a period of ten years
from the balance sheet date.

Provisions relating to terminated operations and disposals include amounts that it is probable will be paid in
respect of claims arising from services performed by these businesses. The agsociated cutflows are estimated to
occur over a period of five years from the balance sheet date.

Other provisions include provisions for dilapidations and commercial disputes. The associated outflows are
estimated to arise over a period up to six years from the balance sheet date.
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30  Share capital

2015 2014
£m £m

Total issued and fully paid share capital
238,683,513 ordinary shares of 977/:p (2014: 238,842 847) 233.7 2339

On 13 February 2015 the group entered into an irrevocable, non-discretionary arrangement to enable market purchases of

ordinary shares of 9717/19 pence each up to an amount of £110 million during the period commencing on 16
February 2015 and ending no later than 23 November 2013.

By 31 March 2015 966,578 shares had been repurchased and cancelled under the programme.

Changes in share capital were as follows:

Number £m
Ordinary shares of 87"(xp
At 1 April 2013 238,365,734 2333
Shares issusd under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 576,913 0.6
At 1 April 2014 238,942,647 2339
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 707,444 0.7
Shares repurchased and cancelled (966,578) {0.9)
At 31 March 2015 238,683,513 2337
31 Share premium
2015 2014
£m £m
At 1 April ad.2 SB.L
Share premiurn arising on shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 8.0 4.5
At 31 March 100.2 842
32  Other reserves
Capital
redemption Translation Hedging
reserve roserve reserve Total
£m £€m £m £m
At 1 April 2013 156.1 28.9 (112.7) 72.3
Total comprehensive income for the year - {8.7) 18.6 Qil
At 1 April 2014 156.1 202 (84.1) 82.2
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 7.2 7.8 151
Purchase of own shares 0.9 - - 0.9
At 31 March 2015 157.0 4 (86.2) 8.2
164
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The capital redemption reserve as at 1 April 2014 arose on the redemption of B shares. The movement in the
current year arose from the repurchase and cancellation of own shares, as outlined in note 30.

The transiation reserve arises from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial position of
foreign subsidiaries.

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge
accounting provisions of IAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1.

33  Capital management
The group’s principal objectives in managing capital are;

» 10 access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued availability;

= lo manage exposure io movements in interest rates to provide an appropriate degree of certainty as to its cost
of funds;

» 1o minimise counterparty credit exposure risk;

= {0 provide the group with an appropriate degree of certainty as to its foreign exchange exposure;
» to maintain an investment grade credit rating; and

= to maintain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure.

The group seeks to achieve a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding
sources at the best possible economic cost. The group monitors future funding requirements and credit market
conditions to ensure continued availability of funds.

Whilst the group does not have a specific gearing target and seeks to maintain gearing at a level consistent with
its capital management objectives described above, the board has decided to move towards a net debt/RCV
gearing ratio of around 62.5%, which is in fine with Ofwat's notional assumption for AMP8. As part of this move,
on 13 February 2015 the group announced that it had entered into an irrevocable, non-discretionary arrangement
fo enable market purchases of ordinary shares up to an amount of £110 million.

The group took a number of financing steps in readiness for AMPS6, aimed at reducing short term refinancing risk
and Increasing exposure to currently low floating interest rates. These steps included:

= Entering into a new £530 million, floating rate, nine year facility with the European Investment Bank. At 31
March 2015, £200 million of the facility had been drawn, with the balance drawn down in April 2015.

s  On 31 March 2015 the group purchased €182.6 million of its €700 million Eurobond which is due for
repayment in March 2016. On the same date the equivalent amount of the corresponding swap, paying fixed
rate 6.325%, was cancelled.

= In March 2015 the group cancelled floating to fixed interest rate swaps with a notional principal amount of
£275 million, for a cash payment of £139.2 million. The average fixed rate interest on the swaps was 5.2%.
The cash payment was charged against the fair value liability on the balance sheet, and £11 million that had
been recognised in reserves was recycled through the income statement.

* (On 19 March 2015 the group amended and extended the revolving credit facility which was due to mature in
Qctober 2018. The new £900 million facility has a period of five years, with two one year extension options
exercisable with lender consent. At 31 March 2015 £485 million of the facility was drawn.

The group’s dividend paiicy is a key tool in achieving its capital management objectives. This policy is reviewed
and updated in line with Severn Trent Water's five year price control cycle and takes into account, inter alia, the
planned investment programme, the appropriate gearing level achieving a balance between an efficient cost of
capital and retaining an investment grade credit rating and delivering an attraclive and sustainable return to
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shareholders. The board has decided to set the 2015/16 dividend at 80.66p, a reduction of 5% compared to the
tota! dividend for 2014/15 of 84.90p. Our policy will then be to grow the dividend annually at no less than RPI until
March 2020. This replaces the previous dividend policy of RPH+3% which ran until March 2015,

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash and short term deposits 176.7 123.2
Bark loans {4,279.2) (594.8)
Other lcans {3,467.5) (3,826.0)
Obligations under finance leases {180.0) (201.2)
‘Cross currency swaps {2.6) 51.4
Net debt (4,752.8) {4.447.5)
Equily atiributable to the owners of the company (809.9) (1,077.6)
Total capital (5,562.5) (5.525.1)

34 Fair vailues of financial instruments

a) Fair value measurements

The valuation technigues that the group applies in determining the fair values of its financial instruments on a
recurring basis are described below. The techniques are classified under the hierarchy defined in IFRS 13 which
categorises valuation techniques into Levels 1 -3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. All of
the group’s valuation techniques are level 2.

2015 2014
£m fm | Valuation techniques and key inputs

Cross currency swaps Discounted cash flow

Assets 226 73.1 | Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates
from observable yield curves at the year end and contract
interest rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

Liabilities (25.2) (21.7} | The cumency cash flows are translated at the spot rate.

Interest rate swaps Discounted cash flow

Assels 42 12.1 | Future cash flows are estimaled based on forward interest rates

Liabilitias (181.1) (206.1) from observable yield curves at the year end and confract
Intarest rates discountsd at a rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

Energy swaps Discountsed cash flow

Assets - — | Future cash flows are estimated based on forward electricity

Liabilities (0.8) (2.8) | prices from observable indices at the year end and contract
prices discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

Forelgn currency forward contracts Discounted cash flow

Assets 02 01 Future cash flows are estimated based on observable forward

Liabilities {0-2) {0.3) | exchange rates at the year end and contract forward rates
discounted at a rate that refiects the credit risk of counterparties.
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b) Comparison of fair value of financial instruments with thelr carrying amounts

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of cash and short term deposits, bank overdrafts, trade receivables and trade
payables approximate their fair values. The camrying values and estimated fair values of other financial instruments are set out

below:
: 2015 2014
Carrying Fair Camying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
Floating rate debt
Bank loans 984.3 970.3 300.0 283.0
Currency bonds 84.3 84.3 215.6 217.4
1.068.6 1.054.6 515.6 510.4
Fixed rate debt
Bank loans 188.5 204.4 189.7 201.1
Steriing bonds 1,855.3 22684 1,902.9 2,108.1
Currency bonds 1.8 291.3 8715 627.3
QOther loans 2.0 2.0 1.7 1.7
Finance leases 180.0 196.7 201.2 187.7
2,596.8 3,056.8 2,867.0 3,136.9
Indax-linked deobt
Bank loans 106.4 123.0 105.2 114.7
Sterling bonds 1,1551 1,585.1 1,134.3 1,213.3
1,261.5 1,708.1 12385 1.328.0
4,926.7 5,819.5 4,622.1 4,974.3

Fixed rate sterling and currency bonds are valued using market prices.

Index-linked bonds are rarely traded and therefore quoted prices are not considered to be a reliable indicator of
fair value. Therefore, these bonds are valued using discounted cash flow models with discount rates derived from

observed market prices for a sample of bonds.

Fair values of the other debt instruments are also calculated using discounted cash flow models.

35 Risks arising from financial instruments
The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

* market risk (including interest rate risk, exchange rate risk and other price risk);

e credit risk;
s liguidity risk; and
* jnflation risk.

The group’s overall risk management programme addresses the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
reduce potentiat adverse effects on the group’s financial performance or position.

Group financial statements

167




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

Financial risks are managed by a central treasury department (Group Treasury} under policies approved by the
board of directors. The board has established a Treasury Commiitee to monitor treasury activities and to facilitate
timely responses to changes in market conditions when necessary. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the group’s operating units. The board defines written principles
for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as exchange rate risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and the use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments. The group’s policy
is that derivative financial instruments are not held for trading but may be used to mitigate the group’s exposure to
financial rigk. The fypes of derivative instruments held and the related risks are described below.

Interest rate swaps are held to mitigate the group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates. Further details
are set out in sections a) (i) and note 36 b) below.

Cross currency swaps are held to mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate movements on amounts
borrowed in foreign currencies. Further details are set out in section a) (i} below.

Energy swaps are held to mitigate the group’s exposure to changes in electricity prices. Further details are
provided in note 36 b) below.

Severn Trent Water, the group’s most significant business unit, operates ina regulatory environment where its
prices are linked to inflation measured by RP1L. In order to mitigate the risks to cash flow and earnings arising from
fluctuations in RPI, the group holds debt instruments where the principal repayabie and interest cost is linked to
RPL. ‘

a) Market risk
The group is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates and, 10 a lesser extent, exchange rates. The nature of these
risks and the steps that the group has taken o manage them are described beiow.

{i} Interest rate risk

The group's income and its operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The group’s interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings.

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the group {0 the risk of adverse cash flow impacts from increases in
interest rates.

Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to the risk of interest costs above the market rate when interest
rates decrease.

The group's policy is to maintain 45% to 80% of its interest bearing liabilities in fixed rate instruments. In

measuring this metric, management makes adjustments to the carrying value of debt o better refiect the amount
that interest is calculated on. Details of the adjustments made are set out below:

2015 2014

£m £m

Net debt (see note 39) 41528 4,447.5
Cash and cash equivalents 176.7 123.2
Cross currency swaps included in net debt at fair value {2.6) 51.4
Fair value hedgs accounting adjustments (19.1) {26.8)
Exchange on currency debt 26 (18.8)
Interest bearing Anancial labllitles 4,930.2 45767

The group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by borrowing at fixed or indexdinked rates or by using interest
rate swaps. Under these swaps the group receives variable rate interest and pays fixed rate interest calculated by

reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. [n practice the swaps are seitled by transferring the net
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amount. These swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from variable rates to fixed rates. The
group has entered into a series of these interest rate swaps to hedge future interest payments beyond 2030.

The following tables show analyses of the group's interest bearing financial liabilities by type of interest. Debt
raised in foreign currencies has been included at the sterling value of the payable leg of ihe corresponding cross
currency swap since this is the amount that is exposed to changes in interest rates. Valuation adjustments that do
not impact the amount on which inferest is calculated, such as fair value hedge accounting adjustments, are

excluded from this analysis.

The net principal amount of interest rate swaps is shown as an adjustment to fioating rate and fixed rate debt to
demonstrate the impact of the swaps on the amount of liabilities bearing fixed interest.

Weighted average peried for which Interest ts fixed (years)

Floating Fixed index-
rate rate linked Total
2015 £m £m £m £m
Bank loans (984.3) 188.5) (106.4) {1,279.2)
QOther loans {62.2) (2,253.7) {1,155.1% (3.471.0)
Finance leases - {180.0) - (180.0)
(1.046.5) (2,622.2) (1,261.5) {4.930.2)
impact of interest rate swaps not matched against specific debt
instruments 541.4 (541.4) - -
Interest bearing financial liabilitiss {505.1) (3.163.6} (1,261.5) (4,930.2)
Proportion of interest bearing financial liabilittes that are fixed 64%
Weighted average interest rate of fixed rate debt 5.66%
Woeighted average period for which interest s fixed {years) 8.7
Floating Fixad Index-
rate rate linkad Total
2014 £m £m £m £m
Bank loans {300.0} (189.7) {1056.2) (504 .9}
Other loans (205.7) (2.440.6) (1.134.3) {3,780.6}
Flnance leases - (201.2) - (201.2)
{505.7) {2,831.5) {1.229.5) {4,576.7)
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against specific debt
instruments 501.4 (5561.4) - -
Interest bearing financial liabilities 85.7 (3.422.9) {1,239.5) (4.576.7}
Proportion of interest bearing financial llabiilties that are fixed 75%
@gm&d average interest rate of fixed rate debt 5.68%
107

Interest rate swaps not hedge accounted

The group has a number of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow hedges. Economically
these swaps act to fix the interest cost of debt within the group which is denominated as fleating rate, but they do
not achieve hedge accounting under the strict criteria of IAS 39, This has led to a charge of £108.0 million (2014:

credit of £86.7 million} in the income slatement.
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Average contract fixed Notional
interest rate principal amount Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % £m £m £m £m
Pay fixed rate interest
Within 1 year 6.32 - {225.0) - {6.3) -
1-2 years - 6.32 - (225.0) - {18.2)
2-5years - - - - - -
5.10 years 5.08 498 {450.0} {225.0) {129.9) {42.4)
10-20 years 5.45 537 (66.4) (216.4) (34.9) (63.0)
20-30 years - 5.10 - (125.0) - (35.3)
547 5.44 (741.4) (791.4) (170.7) (158.9)
Receive fixed rate interest
Within 1 year 5.18 - 200.0 - 4.2 -
1-2 years - 5.18 - 200.0 - 121
518 5.18 200.0 200.0 4.2 124
(541.4) {581.4) {166.5) {146.8) |
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity after tax of the group’s profits, cash flow and equity, inciuding the impact on derivative financial
instruments, to changes in interest rates at 31 March is as follows:
2015 2014
+1.0% -1.0% +1.0% -1.0%
£m £m Em £m
Profit or loss 56.9 (63.4) 733 {83.7)
Cash flow 2.6 {2.6) {1.6) 1.6
Equity 56.8 (63.4) 67.8 {111.0)
(ii} Exchange rate risk

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which is hedged, the group's business does not involve significant
exposure to foreign exchange transactions. Although the group operates internationally and its net investments in
foreign operations are subject to exchange risk, substantially all of the group’s profits and net assets arise from
Severn Trent Water, which has very limited and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates, and therefore the

sensitivity of the group's results to changes in exchange rates is not material,

Certain of the group's subsidiaries enter into transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the
aperation. Exchange risks relating to such operations are not material but are managed centrally by Group
Treasury through forward exchange contracts to buy or sell currency.

In order to meet its objective of accessing a broad range of sources of finance, the group has raised debt
denominated in currencies other than sterling. In order to mitigate the group's exposure to exchange rate

fluctuations, cross currency swaps were entered into at the time that the debt was drawn down to swap the
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proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR. The terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely
match the terms of the underlying debt hence the swaps are expected to be effective hedges.

The group’s gross and net currency exposures arising from cumrency borrowings are summarised in the tables
below. These show, in the relevant currency, the amount borrowed and the notional principal of the related swap
or forward contract. The net position shows the group's exposure to exchange rate risk in relation to its currency
borrowings.

Japanese Czoch

Euro US Dollar Yen Krona

2015 €m $m ¥Bn CZKm
Bomowings by currency (540.0) (50,0} (5.0} -
Cross currency swaps — hedge accounted 19.9 50.0 5.0 -
Cross currency swaps — not hedge accounted 5174 - - -
Net currency exposure (2.7 - - -
Japaness Czech

Euro US Dollar Yen Krona

2014 €m $m ¥Bn CZKm
Borrowings by cumency (722.9) {52.7) (24.5) (620.0)
Cross cumency swaps — hedge accounted 198 50.0 145 620.0
Cross cummency swaps — not hedge accounted 700.0 - 10.0 -
Net currency exposure (3.0) @n - -

b) Credit risk

Operationally the group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. it has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history, other than in Severn Trent Water Limited,
whose operating licence obliges it to supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not paid. Amounts
provided against accounts receivable and movements on the provision during the year are disclosed in note 21.

Cash deposits and derivative contracts are only placed with high credit quality financial institutions, which have
been approved by the board. Group Treasury manitors the credit quality of the approved financial institutions and
the list of financial institutions that may be used is approved annually by the board. The group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposture to any one financial institution.

Credit risk analysis
At 31 March the aggregate credlt limits of authorised counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits
were as follows:

Credit limit Amount deposited

2015 2014 2015 2014

_ £m £m £m Em
AAA 20.0 20.0 1.2 1.2
Double A ranga 1000 100.0 221 24.2
|_Single A range 600.0 600.0 128.5 51.4
7200 720.0 151.8 76.8

7
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The fair values of derivative assets analysed by credit ratings of counterparties were as foliows:

Derivative assots

2015 2014

Rating £m £m
Double A range 115 16.7
Single A range 15.5 €8.6
. 27.0 85.3

c) Liquidity risk

(I} Committed facilities

Prudent liquidity management requires sufficient cash balances to be maintained; adequate committed facilities to
be available: and the ability to close out market positions. Group Treasury manages liquidity and flexibility in
funding by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities, and
by keeping committed credit lines available.

During the year the group agreed two new facilities; a £530 million committed facility, of which £200 million was
drawn at the 31 March 2015, which will mature in September 2023, and a £900 million revolving credit facility, of
which £485 million was drawn at the 31 March 2015, which will mature in March 2020.

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing facilities expiring as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m

2-5 years 415.0 800.0
After more than five years 330.0 -
745.0 500.0

(i) Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will arise from the group’s non-derivative net financial
liabilities. The information presented is based on the earliest date on which the group can be required to pay and
represents the undiscounted cash flows including principal and interest.

interest and inflation assumptions are based on prevailing market conditions at the year end date,

Payments on

Floating Fixed Index Trade financial

2015 rate rate linked payables liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable: £m £m Em £m £m
Within 1 year {60.6) (549.4) (25.2) (32.7) {657.8)
1 -2 years {161.2) {132.8) (25.5) - (319.5)
2-5years (657.8) (680.4} (78.7} - (1,426.9)
§ - 10 years (243.0) (842.7) {431.6) - (1,511.3)
10 - 15 years (50.7) {1,182.0) (344.4) - (1,587.1}
15 = 20 years ‘ - {91.5) |- (123.2} - {214.7}
20 - 25 years - {60.9) (149.4) - {210.3)
172

Group financlal statemants




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

[ Payments on
Floating Fixed Index Trade financial
2015 rate rate linked payabies liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable: £m £m £m £m £m
25 = 30 years - {274.4) {178.8) - (453.2)
30 - 35 years - - (213.2) - {213.2)
35 — 40 years - - {650.0) - {650.0)
40 - 45 years - - {3.252.7) - (3,252.7)
45 — 50 years - - (28.9) - (28.8)
50 - 55 years - - (445.1) - {445.1)
{1,183.3) {3,824.1) {5.946.7) {32.m {10,986.8}
Receipts
Cash and from
Trade shert term financial
receivables deposits assets
Undiscounted amounts recefvable: £m Em £m
Within 1 year 172.5 176.7 349.2
Payments on
Floating Fixed Index- Trade financial
2014 rate rate linked payables liabillies
Undiscounted amounts payable: £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1 year (142.6) (220.2) (23.8) (31.8) {418.4)
1 -2 years {54.8) (721.3) (24.4) - {800.5)
2-5years {316.5) {737.3) (71.4) - {1.131.2)
5 -10years {26.3) (877.1) {373.3) - (1.276.7)
10 - 15 years (43.5) (788.0} (424.8) - (1.256.1)
15 - 20 years (16.8) {558.3) {124.0) - (699.1)
20 - 25 years - {60.9) {(151.2) - {212.1)
25 - 30 years - {286.6) (183.6) - (470.2)
30 - 35 years - - (222.4) - (222.4)
)_35 - 40 years - - {740.6) - {740.6)
40 - 45 years - - {3.573.5) - (3.573.5)
45 - 50 years - - (33.7) - (3.9
50 - 55 years - - (545.5) - (546.5)
(600.5) (4,249.7) {6.498.0) (31.8) {11,380.0}

—
Trade Cash and | Receipts from
receivables short term financial
Undiscounted amounts recalvable: £m deposits assets
173
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£m £m
Within 1 year 195.6 123.2 3188

Index-linked debt includes loans with maturities up to 52 years. The principal is revalued at fixed intervals and is
linked to movements in the Retall Price Index. Interest payments are made biannually based on the revalued
principal. The principal repayment equals the revalued amount at maturity. The payments included in the table
above are estimates based on the forward inflation rates published by the Bank of England at the balance sheet
date.

(ili} Cash fiows from derlvative financial instruments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will arise from the group's derivative financial instruments.
The tables are based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/{outflows) on the derivative financial instruments that
seftle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows/(outflows) on those derivatives that require gross
settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by
reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates derived from the forward curves existing at the
balance sheet date. Actual amounts may be significantly different from those indicated below.

Derivative liabilities Darivative assots
Cross currancy swaps Cross currency swaps
Interest rate Ensergy Cash Cash | Interest rate Cash Cash
sSwaps swaps receipts payments swaps recaipts payments Total
2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1
year {29.9) (0.5) 396.6 {421.7) 42 52.5 {42.7) (41.5)
1=2years (60.6) {0.1) - - - 09 (0.3} {60.1}
2 -5 years {60.6) (0.2) - - - 2.8 {1.2) (59.2)
5-10
years {78.9) - - - - 5.0 (2.9 {76.3)
10— 15
years (17.0} - - - - 32.0 {21.2} (6.2)
1520
years {2.9) - - - - - - (2.9)
(249.9) {0.8) 296.6 421.M 4.2 93.2 {67.8) {246.2)
Derivative liablliies Derivative assets
Cross currency swaps Cross currency sweps
interest rate Energy Cash Cash | Intarest rate Cash Cash
swaps swaps reeipts payments SWBpS receipts payments Total
2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1
year {40.6) (3.0) 60.0 (82.0} 85 109.0 {97.4) {45.5)
1-2 years (38.4) - - - 35 £664.2 (613.4) 15.9
2 -5years (67.0) - - - - 31 (1.7 {65.6})
5-40 (63.3) - - - - 55 (4.0 (61.8)
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Derivative liabilities Derivative assets
Cross currency swaps Cross currency swaps
years
10-15
years (28.4) - - - - 215 {14.3) (21.2)
15-20
years (18.2) - - - - 16.8 (8.7) {10.1)
20-~25
years (0.7 - - - - - - (0.7)
{256.6) (3.0 60.0 (82.0) 12.0 820.1 (739.5) (189.0)
d) Inflation risk

The group’s principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, operates in a regulatory environment where its
prices are linked to inflation measured by RP!. Its operating profits and cash flows are therefore exposed to
changes in RP!. In order to mitigate and partially offset this risk, Severn Trent Water has raised debt which pays
interest at a fixed coupon based on a principal amount that is adjusted for the change in RPI during the life of the
debt instrument (index-linked debt). The amount of index-linked debt at the balance sheet date is shown in section
a) (i) interest rate risk, and the estimated future cash flows relating to this debt are shown in section ¢) (ii) cash
flows from non-derivative financial instrumends.

Inflation rate sensitivity analysis

The finance cost of the group's index-linked debt instruments varies with changes in RPI rather than interest rates.
The sensitivity at 31 March of the group's profit and equity to changes in RP! is set out in the following table. This
analysis relates to financial instruments only and excludes any RPI impact on Severn Trent Water's revenues and
Regulated Capital Value, or accounting for defined benefit pension schemes.

2015 2014

+1.0% «1.0% +1.0% -1.0%

£m £m £m £m

Profit of loss {10.0) 10.0 (9.5) 9.5
Equity {10.0) 10.0 (9.5) 0.5

36 Hedge accounting

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest
rates. Hedge accounting is adopted for such instruments where the ctiteria set out in JAS 39 are met.

a) Falr vaiue hedges

The group raises debt denominated in currencies other than sterling. Cross currency swaps are entered into at the
time that the debt is drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR in order
to mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuations. The terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely
match the terms of the underlying debt hence the swaps are expectad to be effective hedges.
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At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps designated as fair value hedges were as follows:

Notional princlpal amount Fair value

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m

US dollar 270 27.0 7.3 4.7
Euro 114 1.4 8.0 84
Yen 23.8 714 7.3 15.9
Czech krona - 14,7 - 4.6
62.2 1245 2286 36

b) Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between
fixed and floating interest rate amounts calculated on agreed national principal amounts. Such contracts enable
the group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on future cash flow exposures arising from issued variable
rate debt. Where the hedge is expected to be highly effective these interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash

fiow hedges.

At the beginning of AMPS5 the group entered into a number of intere

st rate contracts with future start dates during

the regulatory pericd to hedge the interest rate risk on the anticipated borrowings requirements of Severn Trent
Water. These swaps were accounted for as cash flow hedges. During the year interest rate swaps with notional

principal value £225 million reached their start dates. Hedge accounting has been discontinued for these

contracts as it has not been possible to match the swaps against specific debt instruments. These instruments are
now inciuded in note 35 a).

Details of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summarised below:

Average confract
fixed interast rate Notional principal amount Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Period to maturity % % £m £m £m £m
10-20 years 5.18% 5.14% 423 264.7 {10.5) (47.2)

The group has entered into a series of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference

between fixed and market prices of electricity at six-monthly intervals up to March 2018.

Details of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summarised below:

Notional
Average contract price contracted amount Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Period to maturity £/MWh £/MWh MWh Mwh £m £m
Less than 1 year 544 62.9 70,272 174,720 {0.5) (2.9)
1-2 years 498 - 21,960 - {0.1) -
2.5 years 4.7 - 162,000 - 0.2) -
254,232 174,720 {0.8) (2.9)
176
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37  Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees. During the period, the group
recognised total expenses of £7.7 million (2014: £6.2 million) related to equity settled share based payment
transactions.

The weighted average share price during the period was £19.74 (2014: £18.12).

At 31 March 2015, there were no opticns exarcisable (2014: none) under any of the share based remuneration
schemes.

a) Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs)

Under the terms of the LTIPs, conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff.
Awards are subject to performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting period. Awards
have been previously made on different bases fo Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water employees (the LTIP)
and to Severn Trent Services employees (the Services LTIP).

Awards outstanding
Awards made under the LTIP

These awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulated Capital Value in excess
of the level included in the Severn Trent Water AMP5 business plan over a three year vesting period. It has been
assumed that performance against the LTIP non-market conditions will be 100% (2014: 100%).

Awards made under the Services LTIP

Awards are subject to achievermnent of turnover and profit targets over the three year period from the financial year
that the awards were granted. It has been assumed that performance against the 2012 Services LTIP non-market
conditions will be 0% (2014: 25%) and 2013 Services LTIP will be 0% (2014: 75%).

Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below:

Number of awards

Services

LTIP LTIP

Qutstanding at 1 April 2013 321,024 88,872
Granted during the year 88,086 38,902
Vested during the year (67.302) -
Lapsad during the year (66,586) {37,512}
Outstanding at 1 April 2014 276,132 91,262
Granted during the year 308,770 -
Vested during the year (138,560) -
Lapsed during the year {14,224} {28,738}
Outstanding at 31 March 2015 433,118 64,524
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Details of LTIP and Services LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows:

Number of awards
_ Normal date
Date of grant of vesting 2015 2014
July 2011 2014 - 127,777
July 2012 2015 152,713 116,809
July 2013 2016 166,840 123,808
July 2014 2017 178,089 -
497,642 367,394

Details of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out in the remuneration report on page 73.

b} Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the right to purchase ordinary shares in the
company to those employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for a period
of three or five years. .

Options outstanding
Details of changes in the number of options outstanding during the year are set out below:

Weighted
Number of average

share exercise

options price

Outstanding at 1 April 2013 2,834,486 1.027p
Granted during the year 660,391 1,331p
Forfelted during the year {32,527) 1.151p
Cancelied during the year (58,850} 1,184p
Exercised during the year {576,913) 874p
Lapsed during the year {25,713) 1.077p
Outstanding at 1 April 2014 2,800,874 1,125p
Granted during the year 1,048,625 1.584p
Forfeited during the year (55,907) 1,072p
Cancelled during the ysar {62,552) 1,300p
Exercised during the year (707,444) 944p
Lapsad during the year {4,465) 1,072p
Outstanding at 31 March 2015 3,019,134 1,321p
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Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows:

Number of share optlons
. Normal date

Date of grant of exercise | Option price 2015 2014
January 2007 2014 1,172p - 11,273
January 2009 2014 862p - 496,233
January 2010 2015 808p 298,082 308,501
January 2011 2014 or 2016 1,137p 114,830 - 283,633
January 2012 2015 0r 2017 1,177Tp 454,530 481,830
January 2013 2016 0r 2018 1.241p 512,522 551,862
January 2014 2017 or 2019 1.331p 596,837 657,542
January 2015 2018 or 2020 1,584p 1,042,330 -
jo913 2,800,874

c) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group companies, During the year the board
has announced that it will make awards under the SIP based on performance against Severn Trent Water's

targats for its Key Performance Indicators. Eligible employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum value of
£750. K is expected that these awards will be made in August 2015. SIP shares vest with the employee on the

date of grant.
d) Share Matching Pian (SMP)

Under the Share Matching Plan members of STEC receive matching share awards cver those shares which have
been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme. Matching shares may be
awarded at a maximum ratio of cne matching share for every deferred share and are subject to a three year
vesting period. No matching shares have been awarded in the current year.

Matching shares are subject to tetal shareholder return over three years measured relative fo the companies

ranked 51-150 by market capitalisation in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts).

The number of shares subject to an award wili increase to reflect dividends paid through the performance pericd
on the basis of such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price. Awards will normally
vest as soon as the Remuneration Committee determines that the performance conditions have been met
provided that the participant remains in employment at the end of the performance period.

Awards outstanding
Number of
awards
Quistanding at 1 April 2013 57,383
Granted during the year 33,803
Cancelled during the year (4.569)
Vested during the year (186,179)
Outstanding at 1 April 2014 70,438
Cancelled during the year (8.309)
Vested during the year (11,463)
Outstanding at 31 March 2015 50,670
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Details of share matching awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows:

Number of awards

Normal date
Date of grant of vesting 2015 2014
May 2011 May 2014 - 18,611
May 2012 May 2015 18,024 18,024
May 2013 May 2016 32,646 33,803
50,670 70.438

e) Fair value calculations
The fair values of the share awards made and share options granted during the year were calculated using the
Black Scholes method. The principal assumptions and data are set out below:

T 2015 j 2014
LTIP SAYE LTIP SAYE

3 year S yoar
schema scheme 3 year scheme | § year scheme
Share price at grant date 1,918p 2,000p 2,000p 1,696p 1,694p 1,694p
Option life (years) 3 35 5.5 3 35 55
Vesting period (years) 3 3 5 3 3 5
Expected volatility 18.2% 18.2% 18.2% 18.2% 18.2% 18.2%
Expected dividend yield 4.4% 4.2% 4.2% 4.7% 4.7% 4.7%
Risk free rate nla 0.7% 1.1% n/a 0.9% 1.8%
Fair value per share 1,678p 326p Nip 1,47p 280p 278p

Expected volatility is measured over the three years prior to {he date of grant of the awards or share options.
Volatility has been calculated based on historical share price movements.

The risk free rate is derived from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the awards or share options.

The dividend yield is calculated using the expected dividend for the year divided by the share price at the date of
grant.

38 Discontinued operations

On 23 January 2015 the board approved a process to dispose of the group's Water Purification business which
formed part of the Severn Trent Services segment. These operations were classified as discontinued and as a
disposal group held for sale as at 31 March 2015. The results of discontinued operations are disclosed separately
in the income statement and the assets and liabilities of the disposal group are presented separately in the
balance sheet.

On 12 May 2015 the group entered into a binding agreement to sell the business to industrie De Nora. The

proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the canying value of the group’s share of the disposal group’s net
assets and hence no impairment loss has been recognised on the classification of these operations as held for

sale.
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The results of the discontinued operations were as follows:

Group finerncial statements

F 2015 2014
£m £m
Tumover 108.2 100.0
Operating costs before exceptional items (103.3) {107.0)
Exceptional operating items - (28.2)
Total operating costs (103.3) {1386.2)
Profiti(loss) before interest and tax 49 {36.2)
Finance costs - -
Profit/{loss) before tax 4.9 {36.2)
Atiributable {ax expense 0.2y {0.7)
Profit/{loss) for the year 4.7 (36.9)
Adiributable to:

Owners of the company 3.7 {39.1)
Non-controlling interests 1.0 2.2
4.7 (36.9)

The major classes of assets and lizbilities comprising the operations classified as held for sale are as follows:
2015
£m
Gaoodwill 1.8
Other intangible assets 1.2
Property, plant and etuipment 5.0
Inventories 173
Trade and other raceivables 57.3
Cash and bank balances 19.3
Total assets classifled as hald for sals 107.9
Trade and other payables {33.6}
Tax liabilltes {0.2}
Provisions for liabilities and charges (4-5)
Tatal Habllides assoclated with assets hald for sale (35.3)
’_;et assets of disposal group 72.6
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Cash flows arising from the disposal group were as follows:

2015 2014
£m £m
Net cash flows attributable to:
- operating activities 1.8 (8.3)
- Invasting activitlies {2.1) (4.3)
- financing activities 3.6 129
3.3 03
Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations are as follows:
2015 2014
Waighted Welghted
average average
number of Per share number of Per share
Earnings shares amount Earnings shares amount
£m m pence £m m pence
Basic earnings per share a7 2338 1.5 {38.1) 238.2 {16.4)
Diluted earnings per share N 239.9 1.5 {38.1) 239.3 (16.3)
39 Cash flow statement
a) Reconclliation of operating profit to operating cash flows
2015 2014
£m £m
Profit before interest and tax from continuing operations 521.8 508.6
Profititioss) before interest and tax from discentinued operations 49 (36.2)
Profit before interest and tax 526.5 472.4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2816 270.0
Amortisation of intangible assets 24.2 20.3
Impairment 0.2 205
Pension service cost 40.9 2256
Defined benefit pension scheme administration costs 29 3.0
Pension contributions (81.0) (73.0)
Share based payments charge 1.7 6.2
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {8.6) (8.6)
Deferred income movement (10.1) (9.5}
Provisions charged to the income statement 20.0 11.0
Utilisation of provisions for liabilities and charges (26.0) (13.8}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 7183 739.0
(Increase)decrease in invantory {5.7) 4.4
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2015 2014

Em £m

Increase in amounts recelvable {32.5) {171.2)
Increase in amounts payable 20.0 4,0
Cash generated from operations 760.1 730.2
Tax (pald¥recelved (28.6) 272
Net cash generated from operating actlvities 7315 757.4

b) Non-cash transactions
Na additions to property, plant and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases {2014: nil).
Assets transferred from developers at no cost were recognised at their fair value of £29.8 million (2014: £24.7

million).

c) Exceptional cash flows
The following cash flows arose from items classified as exceptional in the income statement:
2015 2014
£m £m
Restructuring costs (25.4) {4.3)
Disposal of fixed assets 9.4 8.4
Disposal of subsidiaries (3.5) -
Settlement of customer contractua) disputes - (1.8}
Obligations arising from disposal of businesses - (1.6)
Professional fees relating to LongRiver proposal - (18.7)
19.5) (17.1)
d) Reconclliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt
As at RP! uplift 6n ‘ Other As at
1 Aprl Fair value Index-inked Foreign non-cash 31 March
2014 Cashflow | adjustments debt exchange movements 2015
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net cash and cash
equivalents 123.2 7256 - - 0.2 (19.3)" 178.7
Bank loans (504.9) (683.0) - (1.3) - - (1,279.2)
Other loans (3,826.0) 3322 - (20.7) 73.3 (26.3) (3,467.5)
Finance leases {201.2) 21.2 - - - - {180.0)
Cross cumrency swaps 51.4 - {78.1) - - 241 (2.6)
Net dobt (4,447.5) (257.0) (78.1) {22.0) 73.5 (21.5) (4,752.6)
1. Other non-cash movements on cash and cash equivalents represent amounts transferred to assets held for sale (ses note 38).
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40  Contingent liabilities

Bonds and guarantees
Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantees in the normat course of business. No liabiiity is
expected to arise in respect of either bonds or guarantees.

The group has given certain guarantees in respect of the borrowings of its associate, Servizio Idrico Integrato
S.c.p.a. The guarantees are limited to €5.1 miflion (2014: €5.1 million). The group does not expect any liabilities
that are not provided for in these financial statements to arise from these arangements.

41 Service concession arrangements

The group’s contract to provide water and waste water services to the Ministry of Defence (MoD) is a service
concession arrangement under the definition set out in IFRIC 12, The group acts as the service provider under the
MoD Project Aguatrine Package C - a 25 year contract spanning 1,295 sites across England covering the Eastern
sea border and from Lancashire in the North West to West Sussex on the South Coast.

Under the contract the group maintains and upgrades the MoD infrastructure assets and provides operating
services for water and waste water. Both the operating services and maintenance and upgrade services are
charged under a volumetric tariff, along with standard charges, which are adjusted with inflation as agreed in the

contract.

Since the group has an unconditional right to receive cash in exchange for the maintenance and upgrade
services, the amounts receivable are recognised as a financial asset within prepayments and accrued income. At
31 March 2015 the amounts receivable were £24.4 million (2014: £24.8 miliion).

There have been no significant changes to the arrangement during the year.

42 Financial and other commitments

a) Investment expenditure commitments
2015 2014
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 752 158.5

In addition to these contractual commitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans
which include investments to achieve improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water
Services (Ofwat) and to provide for growth in demand for water and sewerage services,

b) Leasing commitments
At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum operating lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m

Within 1 year 4 34

2-5 years 6.3 7.2
After more than 5 years 64 _ s.gj

161 16.5

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and

equipment.
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43 Post balance sheet events

Dividends
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dividend of 50.94 pence per share. Further
details of this are shown in note 14,

Discontinued operations

On 12 May 2015 the group entered into a binding agreement to sell its Water Purification business to industrie De
Nora. The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the carrying value of the group's share of the disposal
group's net assets and hence no impairment loss has been recognised on the classification of these operations as
held for sale. Further details of this are shown in note 38.

44  Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not included in this note. Trading transactions between the group and its associates and
Joint ventures are disclosed below.

Amounts due from related

Sale of services parties

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m

si 55 5.8 14.1 17.1

The related parties are associates and joint ventures in which the group has a participating interest. The
retirement benefit schemes operated by the group are considered to be related parties. Details of transactions and
balances with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 28.

Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel comprise the members of STEC during the year.

The remuneration of the directors is included within the amounts disclosed below. Further information about the
remuneration of individual directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages
75 to 84,

2015 2014

£m £m

Short temm employes benefits €1 6.3
Post employment benefits 0.2 0.4
Temmination benefits 0.2 -
Share based payments 4.0 1.4
10.5 8.1

45  Subsidiary undertakings

Principal subsidiary undertakings
Details of the principal oparating subsidiaries as at 21 May 20415 are given below. A complete list of subsidiary
undertakings is available on request to the company and will be filed with the next Annual Return.
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Country of incorporation and main operation is Great Britain and registration is in England and Wales unless

otherwise stated.

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned and all shareholdings are in ordinary shares.
All subsidiary undertakings have been included in the consolidation.

Country of
Name incorporation Principal acthvity
Derwent Insurance Limited Gibrattar Provision of Insurance servicas to other group companies
Severn Trant Environmental Services Inc. USA Operation of water and sewerage infrastructure
Severn Trent Property Solutions Limited Great Britain Provision of residential and commercial praperty searches
Severn Trent Select Limited Great Britain Provision of licensed water and sewerage services
Sevemn Trent Services Defence Limited Great Britain Provision of water and sewerags sesvices to the Ministry of

Defence

Sevemn Trent Services Operations UK Great Britain Operation of water and sewerage infrastructure
Limited
Sevem Trent Water Limited Great Britain Provision of regulated waier and sewerage sarvices

Subsidiary audit exemptions

Severn Trent Pl¢ has issued guarantees over the liabilities of the following companies at 31 March 2015 under
section 479C of Companies Act 2006 and these entities are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to
the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Act.

Company number

Cliy Analytical Services Limited 2050581
East Worcester Water Limited 2757948
Gunthorpe Fields Limited 4240764
Sevemn Trent (W&S) Limited 3965023
Severn Trent Carsington Limited 7570384
Severn Treni Corporate Holdings Limited 4385566
Severn Trent Data Portal Limited 8181048
Severn Trent Draycote Limited 7681784
Sevem Trent Finance Holdings Limited 6044159
Sevem Trent Finance Limlted 6254618
Sevemn Trent Financing and investments Limited 6312635
Sevem Trent General Partnership SC4166‘L4_
Severn Trent Holdings Limited 5656363
Severn Trant Investment Holdings Limited 7560050
Severn Trent LCP Limited 7943556
Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited 2455508
Severn Trent Power Generation Limited 2651131
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[Savem Trent Services Holdings Limited 4395572
Severn Trent Services Intemational {Overseas Holdings) Limited 3125131
Sevem Trent Services Purification Limitex 2400826
Severn Trent Systems Limited 2394552
Sevem Trent Utility Services Limited 4125386
Sevemn Trent Wind Power Limited 742177
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Company statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Em £m
Profit for the year 191.1 3107
Qther comprehensive income
lterns that will not be reciassified to the income statement:
Deferred tax arising on change of rate - {0.5)
- (0.5}
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement:
Amounts cn cash fiow hedges trensferred o the Income statement in the year 27 2.6
Deferred tax on transfers to income statement (0.5) (0.5}
22 2.1
Other comprehensive income for the year 22 1.
Total comprehensive income for the year 183.3 3123
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible fixed assets 1 0.2 02
Tanglble fixed assets 2 0.3 04
[nvestments in subsidiaries 3 3,760.3 3,762.7
Derivative financial instruments - 26
3,760.8 3,765.9
Current assets
Debtors 4 4.8 25.0
Derivative financial mstruments 2.0 3.6
Cash at bank and in hand - 259
368 545
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 5 {325.7) (217.1)
Net current liabiiities (280.1) (162.6)
Teotal assets less current Habilities 34717 3,603.3
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 6 {82.7) {113.8)
Net gssets 3,389.0 3,489.5
Capital and reserves
Caited up share capital 8 2337 233.9
Share premium acoount 9 100.2 94.2
Other reserves 10 159.6 156.5
Retained eamings 2,805.5 3,004.9
Total capital and reserves 3,388.0 3.489.5
Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 21 May 2015.
Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Company number: 02366619
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium raservos earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2013 2333 80.7 154.4 2.877.0 3.354.4
Profit for the year - - - 310.7 3107
Amounts on cash flow hedges transfemed to the
income statement - - 26 - 26
Deferred tax on transfers to the income statement - - (0.5) - (0.5)
Deferred tax arising from rate change - - - (0.5) ({0.5)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2.1 310.2 3123
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares Issued 06 45 - - §.1
- value of employees’ services - - - 30 3.0
Dividends paid - - - (185.3) (185.3)
At 31 March 2014 2339 4.2 156.5 3,004.9 3,489.5
Profit for the yeat - - - 1911 1911
Amounts on cash flow hedpes transferred to the
income statement - - 2.7 - 2.7
Deferrad tax on transfers to the income statement - - (0.5} - {0.5)
Tota! comprehensive income for the year - - 2.2 181.1 193.3
Share options and LTIPg
- proceeds from shares issued 07 6.0 - - 6.7
- own shares purchased - - - (3.6) (3ﬂ_‘
Share buy back - - - (100.0) (100.0}
Share cancellation {0.9) - 0.9 - -
Dividends pald - - - {196.9) (156.9)
At 3 March 2015 233.7 100.2 159.6 2,895.5 3,380.0
In previous years £1,221.2 million of the company’s retained profit arose &s a resuit of group restructuring
exercises, and is not considered likely to be distributable.
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Notes to the company financial statements
Far the year ended 31 March 2015

1 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased
software
£m
|—Cost
ALY April 2014 and 31 March 2015 0.9
Amortisation
At 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 (0.7)
Nat book value
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 0.2
2 Tangible fixed assets
Office
Land and | fixtures and
bulldings equlpment Total
£m £m Em
Cost
As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 0.1 0.6 0.7
Depreciation
As at 1 April 2014 - {0.3) (0.3)
Charge for the year - (0.1} 0.1)
As at 31 March 2015 - (0.4) {0.4)
Net book value
Ags at 31 March 2015 0.1 0.2 0.3
As at 31 March 2014 0.1 0.3 04
3 investments
Subsidiary undertakings
Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m
As at 1 Aprll 2014 33136 4481 3,762.7
Loans repaid - (2.4) (2.4)
As at 31 March 2015 33136 448.7 3,760.3
Detalls of principal subsidiaries of the company are given in note 45 of the group financial statements.
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4 Debtors
2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 19.3 182
Deferred tax 19 4.8
Corporation tax recoverable 11.6 -
Other debtors 1.8 0.3
Prepayments and accrued income - 0.6
4.6 250
An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the company is set out
below:
Accalerated Falr value
tax of financial
depreciation Instruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m
Al 1 April 2013 0.1 7.3 08 82
Charge to profit and less account - (2.2) 0.5 {1.7)
Charge to profit and less account arising from rate change - (0.5 (0.1) {0.6)
Charge to other comprehensive income - {0.5) - {0.5}
Charge to other comprehensive income arising from rate change - (0.5} - (0.9)
At 1 April 2014 0.1 3.6 12 49
Charge to profit and |oss account - {1.9) {0.8) {(2.7)
Charge to other comprehensive income - (0.5) - (0.5)
Transfers - - p.2 0.2
At 31 March 2015 0.1 1.2 0.6 1.9
5 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2015 2014
£m £m
Bank overdrafts {6.1) (4.0)
Other loans {17.0) {284)
Borrowings (see note T) {23.1) {30.4)
Derivative financial instruments (6.5) 0.2)
Trade creditors {0.1) (0.4)
Amounts due to group undertakings {204.8) (146.2)
Other creditors (7.0) {10.1)
Taxation and social security - (28.7}
Accrued expenses (84.2) (1.1)
{325.7) (217.1)
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6 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2015 2014
£m £m
Borrowings — other loans (see note 7) (79.7) (85.5)
Amounts due to group undertakings (3.00 -
Derlvative finandia! instrumants - (18.3)
827 (113.8)
7 Borrowings
2015 2014
£m fm
Borrowings due within one year 234 304
Borrowings due after more than one year
Between one and two years - 17.8
Between two and five years - -
After more than five years 79.7 T1.7
Total borrowings due after one year 79.7 55
102.8 1259

Borrowings repayable after more than 5 years comprises the company's RPI linked retail bonds issued in July

2012. The bonds carry a coupon of 1.3% on the principal amount which is uplifted by RPL The bonds are

repayable in July 2022,

The company's borrowings are denominated in sterling, after taking account of cross currency swaps the

company has entered into. There is no significant difference between the book value and the fair value of the
company's borrowings. Fair values are based on the expected future cash flows discounted using zero coupon

forward interest rates related to the expected timing of payments.

At the balance sheet date the company had committed undrawn borrowing facilities expiring as follows:

2015 2014
£m Em
2-5 years - 200.0
The facility in the prior year was shared with Severn Trent Water Limited. During the year the facility was
renegotiated as a Severn Trent Water Limited only facility.
8 Share capital
2015 2014
£m £m
Total issued and fully paid share capital
238,683,513 ordinary shares of 97" /.ep (2014: 236,942.647) 233.7 233.9
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Changes in share capital were as follows:

Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97"/4p
At 1 April 2014 238,842,647 233.9
Shares issued under the group’s Employee Sharesave Scheme 707.444 0.7
Share buy back (966,578) (0.9)
At 31 March 2015 238,683,513 2337
9 Share premium
2015 2014
£m £m
At 1 Aprii 042 B9.7
Share premium arising on shares issued under the group’s Employee Sharesave Scheme 6.0 4.5
At 31 March 1002 942
10  Other reserves
Capital
retlemption Hedging
resarve reserve Total
£m £m £m
At 1 April 2013 156.1 1.7 154.4
Total comprehensive income for the year - 21 2.1
At 1 April 2014 156.1 0.4 186.5
Total comprehgnsive Income for the year - 22 22
Share buy back 0.8 - 0.9
At 31 March 2015 157.0 28 159.6

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares, The movement in the current year arcse

from the repurchase and cancellation of own shares, as outlined in nole 30 of the group financial statements.

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge

accounting provisions of 1AS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1.

11 Share based payments

For details of employee share schemes and options granted over the shares of the company, see note 37 of the
group financial statements. Details of options exercised and awards vesting during the year and of the weighted
average share price of the company during the year are also disclosed in that note.
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12 Pensions

The group operates group defined benefit pensicn schames, of which some employees of the company are
members. There is no contractual agreement for charging the net defined benefit cost of these schemes between
the companies that participate in the schemes. As a result, the net defined benefit cost of the scheme is
recognised in the financial statements of the sponsoring employer, Severn Trent Water Limited. The cost of
contributions to the group schemes amount to £0.1 million {2014: £0.1 million). There were no amounts
outstanding for contributions to the defined benefit schemes (2014 nit).

information about the plans as a whole is disclosed In note 28 to the group financia! statements.

13 Related party transactions

The retirement benefit schemes operated by the company are considered to be related parties. Details of
transactions and balances with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 12.

14  Contingent liabilities

a} Bonds and guarantees
The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business. No liabilities are expected
to arise in respect of either the bonds or guarantees.

b) Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pocled basis with certain of its subsidiary undertakings.
Under these arrangements participating companies guarantee each others’ overdrawn balances to the extent of
their credit balances, which can be offset against balances of participating companies. As at 31 March 2015, the
company had no contingent liabilities (2014 £25.8 million).

15 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dividend of 50.94 pence per share.

16 Dividends
For details of the dividends paid in the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 see note 14 in the group
financial statements.
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Five year summary

2014
As
2014 previously
2015 Restated’ statod 2013 2012 2011
Ceontinuing oporations £m £m £m £m £m £m
Tumover 1,801.3 1.756.7 1,856.7 1,831.6 1,770.6 1,711.3
Profit before interest, tax and
axcepfional items 540.3 523.8 516.8 4954 504.2 519.1
Net exceptional items before tax {18.7) (15.2) (44.4) (5.8) {50.9) (21.4)
Net Interest payable bafore
{losses)/gains on financial
instruments and exceptional finance
costs (240.0) (247.9) (247.9) (244.3) (229.0) {230.6)
{Losses)galins an finandial
instruments {133.5) 58.0 580 (45.3) {67.7) (14.2)
Results of associates and joint
ventires 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 041
Profit on ordinary actlvities before
taxation 143.2 318.9 282.7 200.2 156.7 253.0
Current tax on profil on ordinary
activities {(37.8) {55.8) (56.5) (27.9) {60.5) {32.1)
Ceferred tax 5.1 {21.5) {21.5) 82 78.2 53.6
Exceptional tax - 230.2 2302 3584 - -
Profit on ordinary actlvities after
fax 1155 471.8 434.9 218.9 174.4 2745
Profit for the pariod 115.5 471.8 4349 218.9 174.4 274.5
Net assets omployed
Fixed assets 1,325.5 7,123.8 7.123.8 6,008.1 6,743.6 6,635.3
Other net fiabllities exdluding net
debt, retirement benefit obligation,
provisions and deferred tax {516.1) {348.2) (348.2) (273.8) (341.3) {320.4)
Derivative finandial instruments ' 177.7) {197.1} {187.1) (279.8) (261.8) {80.5)
Retirerment benefit obligation (468.9) (348.3) (348.3) {383.7) {345.8) (282.1)
Provisions for liabilites and charges
and deferred tax {659.5) {692.6) (692.6) (827.5) {845.5) (957.4)
Net assets held for sale 726 - - - - -
5,575.9 §,537.68 5,537.6 5,141.3 49482 49749
Financed by
Called up share capital 2337 2338 2338 2333 2326 232.2
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Other information

2014
As
2014 praviously
2015 Restated® stated 2013 2012 2011
Continuing operations £m £m £€m £m £m £m
Reserves 578.2 B43.7 843.7 580.9 740.8 867.6
Total shareholdars’ funds 809.9 1,077.6 1,077.6 833.2 973.5 1.099.8
Non-controlling interests 134 125 125 10.8 7.9 6.3
Net debt * 4,752.6 44475 4.447.5 4,207.3 3,967.8 3.868.8
5,575.9 5537.6 5,537.6 5,141.3 4,949.2 49749
Statistics
Eamings per share {continuing) —
pence 48.3 198.5 182.1 90.9 72.5 115.2
Adjusted eamings per share — pence 107.2 92.5 a8.4 892.6 88.9 105.6
Dividends per share (excluding
special dividend) — pence 84.9 80.4 80.4 75.8 70.1 65.1
Dividend cover (before exceptional
items and deferred tax) 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.6
Gearing 85.2% 80.3% 80.3% 83.6% B0.2% 77.8%
Qrdinary share price at 31 March —
| pence 2,059.0 1,823.0 1.823.0 1,712.0 1,544.0 1,446.0
Average number of employees
- Sevem Trent Water 5,532 5,634 5,634 5,458 5,162 5237
-~ Other 1,910 1,914 2,358 2,763 2,889 3,045
1 Exciudes instruments hedging foreign currency debt
2 Includes instruments hedging foreign currency debt
3 Restated for discontinued operations (see note 38)
Gearing has been caiculated as net debt divided by the sum of equity and net debt.
197




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline
The company's registrar is Equiniti Limited. Equinit’'s main responsibilities include maintaining the shareholder
register and making dividend payments.

If you have any queries relating to your Severn Trent Ple shareholding you should contact Equiniti.
Registrar contact details:

Online: www.shareview.co.uk from here, you will be able to securely email Equiniti with your query.
Telephone: 0871 384 2967*

Overseas enquiries: +44 121 415 7044

Text phone: 0871 384 2255*

By post: Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex, BNGG 6DA

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit our website www.severntrent.com which provides:

« company news and Information;

» links to our operational businesses’ websites;

« details of our governance arrangements;

« details of our strategy,;

« details of the group’s business models and business plan; and

« the company's approach to operating responsibly.

There is also a dedicated Investors' section on the website which contains up to date information for shareholders
including:

» comprehensive share price information;

+ financial resulis,

« a history of dividend payment dates and amounts; and

. access to current and historical shareholder documents such as the Annual Report and Accounts.

Electronic communications
By registering to receive shareholder documentation from Severn Trent Plc electronically shareholders can benefit

from being able to:

e view the Annual Report and Accounts on the day it is published;

e receive an email alert when shareholder documents are available;

e cast their AGM vote electronically; and

+ manage their shareholding quickly and securely online, through Shareview.

Electronic shareholder communications also enable the company to reduce its impact on the environment and
benefit from savings associated with reduced printing and mailing costs.

For further information and to register for electronic shareholder communications visit www.shareview.co.uk.
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Dividend payments

Bank mandates

Dividends can be paid automatically into your bank or building society account.

The benefits of doing this are that you will:

¢ receive cleared funds in your bank account on the payment date;

» avoid postal delays; and

» remove the risk of your cheques getting lost in the post.

To take advantage of this service or for further details contact Equiniti or visit www.shareview.co.uk.

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the option of using their dividend payments to buy more Severn Trent Plc shares
instead of receiving cash. If you would like to participate in the DRIP, please request a dividend reinvestment plan
mandate from Equiniti Financial Services Limited,

Telephone: 0871 384 2268*
Telephone number from outside the UK: +44 121 4157173

Buying and selling shares in the UK

If you wish to buy or sell certificated Severn Trent Plc shares, you will need to use a stockbroker or high street
bank which {rades on the London Stock Exchange. There are also many telephone and online services available
to you. If you are selling, you will need to present your share certificate at the time of sale. Details of low cost
dealing services may be obtained from www.shareview.co.uk or 0845 603 7037*,

Share price information
Shareholders can find share price information on our website and in most national newspapers. For a real-time
buying or selling price, you should contact a stockbroker.

Shareholder security

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure investors into scams. They may offer to sell shares
that turn out to be worthless or non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated price in return for an upfront payment.
While high profits are promised, if you buy or sell shares in this way you will probably lose your money.

How to avoid share fraud:

» Keep in mind that firms authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA} are unlikely to contact you out of
the blue with an offer to buy or sell shares.

¢ Do not get into a conversation, note the name of the person and firm contacting you and then end the call.
* Check the Financial Services Register from www .fca.org.uk to see if the person and firm contacting you is
authorised by the FCA.

¢ Beware of fraudsters claiming to be from an authorised firm, copying its website or giving you false contact
details.

+  Use the firm’'s contact details listed on the Register if you want to call it back.

¢ Call the FCA on 0800 111 6768 if the firm does not have contact details on the Register or you are told they
are out of date.

* Search the list of unautharised firms to avoid at www.fca.org.uklscams.
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« Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised firm you will not have access to the Financial
Ombudsman Service or Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

e Think about getting independent financial and professional advice before you hand over any money.

« Remember, if it sounds too good to be true, it probably is.

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the share fraud reporting form at
www.fca.org.uk/scams, where you can find out more about investment scams.

You can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768.

If you have atready paid money to share fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040.

Unsolicited mail
The company is legally obliged to make its share register available to the general public. Consequently some
shareholders may receive unsolicited mail. If you wish to limit the amount of unsolicited mail you receive please

contact:
The Mailing Preference Service (MPS), Freepost 29 LON20771, London W1E 0ZT
Alternatively, register online at www.mpsonline.org.uk or call the MPS Registration line on 0845 703 4599.

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)
Severn Trent has a sponsored Levei 1 American Depositary Receipt {ADR) programme, for which The Bank of
New York Mellon acts as Depositary.

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on OTCQX which is the premier lier of the US over the counter {OTC) market
under the symbo! STRNY (it is not listed on a US stock exchange). Each ADR represents 1 Severn Trent ordinary

share.
If you have any enquiries regarding Severn Trent ADRSs please contact The Bank of New York Mellon.

By post: BNY Mellon Shareowners Services, PO Box 30170, College Station, TX 77842-3170, Us
By telephone:

If calling from within the US: (888) 269 2377 (toli-free)

If calling from outside the US: +1 201 680 6825

By email: shrrelations@cpushareownerservices.com
Website: www.mybnymdr.com

* Calls cost 8 pence per minute plus network extras. Lines are open from 8.30am to 5.30pm Monday to Friday.
*+ | ines are open Monday to Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm for dealing, and until 6:00pm for enquiries,
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Financial calendar

Ex dividend date — final dividend 18 Juns 2015
Record date to be eligible for the final dividend 19 June 2015
AGM. 15 July 2015
Interim management statement - Q1 Year ending 31 March 2016 18 July 2015
Final dividend payment date 24 July 2015
Interim results announcement — Year ending 31 March 2016 26 November 2015
Ex dividertd date — interim dividend 3 December 2015
Record date to be eligible for the interim dividend 4 Docember 2015
Interim dividend payment date 8 January 2016
All dates are indicative and may be subject to change.
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This report has been printed on Chorus Lux Silk a paper which is certified by the Forest Stewardship Council®.
The paper is made at a mill with ISO 14001 environmental management system accreditation.

This report was produced using the pureprint® environmentat print technology, a guaranteed, low carbon, fow
waste, independently audited process that reduces the environmental impact of the printing process. Printed using
vegetable oil based inks by a CarbonNeutral® printer certified to ISO 14001 environmental management system
and registered to EMAS the Eco Management Audit Scheme. '
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Severn Trent Plc

Registered office:
Severn Trent Centre
2 St John's Street
Coventry CV1 2L.Z

Tel: 02477 715000
www.severntrent.com

Registered in England and Wales
Registration number: 2366619
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